UNCLASSIFIED

AD NUMBER

AD844920

NEW LIMITATION CHANGE

TO

Approved for public release, distribution unlimited

FROM

Distribution authorized to U.S. Gov't. agencies and their contractors; Administrative/Operational Use; OCT 1968. Other requests shall be referred to US Air Force Material Laboratory, Attn: MAFT, Wright-Patterson AFB, OH 45433.

AUTHORITY

afml ltr, 1 sep 1970

THIS PAGE IS UNCLASSIFIED

AFMDC 68-6

FOURTH ANNUAL REPORT OF THE AIR FORCE MACHINABILITY DATA CENTER

John Maranchik, Jr. Metcut Research Associates Inc.

> D D C DEC 1 9 1968

OCTOBER 1968

Advanced Fabrication Techniques Branch Manufacturing Technology Division Air Force Materials Laboratory Research and Technology Division Air Force Systems Command United States Air Force Wright-Patterson Air Force Base, Ohio

This document is subject to special export controls and each transmittal to foreign governments or foreign nationals may be made only with prior approval of the Manufacturing Technology Division.

atter MATE

FOREWORD

۲

The Fourth Annual Report of the Air Force Machinability Data Center (AFMDC) covers work performed under Contract AF 33(615)-5262 from February 1, 1968 through September 30, 1968. The manuscript was released by the author in October 1968 for publication as an AFMDC report.

This contract with Metcut Research Associates Inc., Cincinnati, Ohio, was initiated under Manufacturing Technology Division Project 9-700, 'Air Force Machinability Data Center'. It was an extension of Manufacturing Technology Division Project 8-239 as indicated in our First, Second and Third Annual Reports. This contract was performed under the technical direction of Mr. Max A. Guenther of the Advanced Fabrication Techniques Branch (MATF), Manufacturing Technology Division, Air Force Materials Laboratory, Wright-Patterson Air Force Base, Ohio.

This project was accomplished as a part of the Air Force Manufacturing Methods Program. The primary objective of AFMDC is to be highly specialized in the collection, evaluation, storage, retrieval and dissemination of significant data and information pertaining to all aspects of material removal processes. Recipients of these data include aerospace industry, Department of Defense (including all of the military services and their contractors), and other Government agencies, technical institutions, and nonmilitary industries in a position to assist the defense effort. In the area of material removal activity, this Center serves as the communications link for the entire technical community, both Government and industry.

Your comments are solicited on the potential utilization of the Air Force Machinability Data Center as applied to your present or future production programs.

This report has been reviewed and is approved.

Maril

Jack R. Marsh, Chief Advanced Fabrication Techniques Branch Manufacturing Technology Division A F Materials Laboratory

ABSTRACT

FOURTH ANNUAL REPORT OF THE

AIRFORCE MACHINABILITY DATA CENTER

John Maranchik, Jr.

This is the Fourth Annual Keport of the Air Force Machinability Data Center covering period February 1, 1968 through September 30, 1968 (Contract AF 33 (615)-5262). Two thousand eight hundred and forty (2,840) documents were processed from which 13,833 cards were key punched. Currently, there are 15,941 evaluated documents and 116,083 punched cards in AFMDC files. Nine hundred and eighty two (982) specific inquiries were answered for 439 different companies, representing 596 individuals in 105 different SIC categories. The average of 123 inquiries per month is an increase of 46% over the average of 84 per month processed in the previous year.

The average cost of inquiries equaled \$58.58 per inquiry.

Two data products were completed and made available to the Center's users.

The data acquisition plant visit program was continued and since late 1966, 46 Visitations have been made, primarily to aerospace firms.

Computer programs have been developed and made operational for storage and retrieval of all the information files in use by the Center. In addition, a computer program has been made operational for investigating relationships between machining variables. Determination of existing relationships will be very valuable for evaluation of new data and filling in gaps in accrued data.

At the request of DoD, a report was prepared estimating the cost savings resulting from AFMDC's operation. For a 4-year period these savings were estimated to be \$37,800,000.00.

Plans for next year's effort call for augmenting current efforts and services. This includes identification of potential users of the Center and increased contact with them. This will be accomplished directly by AFNDC and through cooperation with other centers and State Technical Services Programs. This controlled effort will result in an increase in AFNDC inquiries from the current 123 per month rate to about 160 per month by October, 1969, consistent with the increasing capability of the Center. AFNDC will participate in Special Merit Projects with the States of Vermont and New York. The objectives are to establish access to information from Centers and transfering it to indstry.

Four data products will be prepared and made available to users. Work will continue on the program for investigating relationships between machining variables. A study will be made concerning the potential and the required mechanisms by which users of the center may have a computer data-link with AFMDC.

PREFACE

This report covers a 8-month period of operation from February 1, 1968 through September 30. 1968. It is presented primarily in the form of individual charts which are self-explanatory with regard to organization of the Center and the results of its efforts, including costs. For each individual chart, the Appendix provides some further comments concerning various aspects of AFMDC during its third year of operation.

For a complete analysis of the progress made by the Center from its early inception to the present, the following four references should be reviewed:

''Final Report on the Design of a System for Collecting, Evaluating and Disseminating Machinability Data for Aerospace Materials'', Technical Documentary Report Nr. ASD-TDR-63-572, July 1963, AD-416743.

''First Annual Report of the Air Force Machinability Data Center'', AFMDC 65-2, February 1966, AD-482278.

"Second Annual Report of the Air Force Machinability Data Center", AFMDC 66-4, February 1967, AD-813037.

''Third Annual Report of the Air Force Machinability Data Center'', AFMDC 67-8, February 1968, AD-829879.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

,

	PAGE	APPENDIX PAGE
AFMDC ORGANIZATION		
Description of AFMDC.	1	A-1
AFMDC Organization Chart, Figure 1	2	A-1
AFMDC Operational Areas	3	A-2
AFMDC Operations Chart, Figure 2	4	A-2
AFWDC LISER FILE		
ARMOC User File Man Figure 3	5	A-4
Distribution of AFMDC User File	6	A-4
	v	
IBM 1130 COMPUTER - DATA PROCESSING		
Computer Input and Output Flow Chart, Figure 4	7	A-5
Data Code Forms for Final Technical Evaluation, Figure 5	8	A-6
Flow Chart for Fortran Program to Store, Add or Search Inquiry, Figure 6	9	A-7
Inquiry File Search, Figure 7	10	A-8
Output of Preliminary Technical Evaluated Data, Figure 8	11	A-8
Output of Uniterm File Search, Figure 9	12	A-9
Output of Final Technical Evaluated Data, Figure 10	13	A-9
Cost Per Piece in Face Milling and End Milling, Figure 11	14	A-9
Cost and Production Raie for Milling, Figure 12	15	N-10
Figure 13	16	A-10
Computer Printout of a Selective Search on Surface Integrity Bibliography	2.0	A 10
File. Figure 14	17	A-10
Computer Printout for Metal Removal Rates, Figure 15	18	A-11
Cost Study Analysis of IBM 1130 Computer	19	A-11
SUMMARY OF SPECIFIC INCUIRIES		
Inquiry Processing Flow Chart, Figure 16	20	A-11
Typical Inquiry Input and Response, Figure 17	21	A-11
Analysis of Inquiries by State, Figure 18	22	A-12
Summary of Specific Inquiries by Type of Inquiry, Figure 19	23	A-12
General Analysis of Inquiries, Figure 20	24	A-13
Analysis of Inquiries by Material Group, Figure 20	24	A-13
Analysis of Inquiries by Type of Machining Operation, Figure 71	25	A-13
Analysis of Uniterm Type Inquiries, Figure 22	26	A-14
Summary of Specific Inquiries by SIC Number, Figure 23	27	N-14
Government Agencies and Services Supported Directly or Indirectly by Armuuc	91	K-14
Inquiries, Figure 24	31	A-14 A-14
Companies and Agencies Summitting inquiries to Armut, Figure 25	Je	N-11
Figure 26	41	A-14
DATA PRODUCTS		
Photograph of APMDC Data Products, Figure 27	42	A-15
Photograph of AFMDC Titanium Booklet, Figure 28	43	A-15
Typical Formats for Data Presentation, Figure 29	44	A-15
Description and Distribution of AFNDC Data Products, Pigure 30	45	A-15
VALA AGUIDIIIVA	46	A-16
Data Acquisition Fight Visit Frogram.	10	n-14
APADC COST AND FUTURE PLANNING		
Code Sheet for Project Time Card, Figure 31	47	A-16
AFMCC Daily Time Slip, Figure 32.	49	A-16
Computer Print out of APMDC Project Time Cards, Figure 33	50	A-16
AP ADC Operating Costs, Figure 34	51	A-16
APMDC Input and Output Summary, Figure 35	52	A 16
Future Planning	53	A=17
Economic Environment for APHDC Operation	55	•
Potential For AFMDC Services to Industry, Figure 36	56	A- 19
Cost Savings Resulting From AFMDC Operation, Figure 37	57	A-20

¥



DESCRIPTION OF AFMDC

AIR FORCE MACHINABILITY DATA CENTER, 3980 Rosslyn Drive, Cincinnati, Ohio 45209. Operated for the Air Force Materials Laboratory, Manufacturing Technology Division, under Contract AF 33(815)-5282, by Metcut Research Associates Inc.

SCOPE

The Air Force Machinability Data Center (AFMDC) collects, evaluates, stores, and disseminates material removal information including specific and detailed machining data for the benefit of industry and government. Strong emphasis is given to engineering evaluation for the purpose of developing optimized material removal parameters, such as speeds, feeds, depths of cut, tool material and geometry, cutting fluids and other significant variables. Data are being processed for all types of materials and for all kinds of material removal operations such as turning, milling, drilling, tapping, grinding, electrical discharge machining, electrochemical machining, etc.

COLLECTION

AFMDC has a mechanized system in which punch cards are used to store and retrieve all types of material removal information including all significant numerical data. An ISM 1130 computing system is being used for storing and processing data from a master card and disk file and for computer decoding. The focal concept for acquisition, interregation, or presentation of information is the specific material (with definite chemical, physical, or mechanical preperties) and the specific material removal operation being used. When necessary, card source control codes may be used to retrieve original documents which are in document storage at AFMDC.

INFORMATION SERVICES

AFMDC places strong emphasis on providing specific and detailed answers to technical inquiries in the field of material removal. A User File, consisting of important users in the field of material removal, has been developed to receive information products including machining date pamphlats and tables on materials of current interest, state-of-the-art reports, technical announcements, and other appropriate item2. Services are available without charge to the serespace industry, Department of Defense (including all of the military services and their centractors), and other government agencies, technical institutions, and non-military industries in a position to assist the defense effort.

TO REQUEST MACHINING INFORMATION

Telephene:	513-271-8510
TUX:	810-461-2840 or
Write:	Air Force Machinability Data Contor
	3080 Resslyn Drive
	Cincinnati, Ohio 45209

TO HELP US ANSWER YOUR INQUIRY, IF POSSIBLE PLEASE:

- Identify the material being machined (specification or trademene); condition, (as cast, hot rolled, cold drawn, annealed, quenched and tempered, etc.); miscostructure and hardness.
- identify the material removal operation in question (turning, milling, drilling, tapping, surface grinding, electrical discharge machining (EDM), electrochemical machining (ECM), etc.).
- 3. Specify reasons for requiring data unless your needs are proprietory. This enables AFUDC to broaden the scope of its technical advice.
- 4. Specify delivery requirements.
- 5. Indicate to whom the inquiry reply should be sent.
- Transmit all details concerning present practices, including foods, speeds, cutting teel
 material and geometry, cutting fluids, etc., in the event your inquiry pertains to
 improvement of an existing machining situation.

NOTE: Association of the names of companies and individuals with specific requests is kept confidential. However, data developed remain the property of APNDC for dissemination as required for answering similar inquiries and for developing data products.

SEE APPENDIX, PAGE A-1



.

. .

AFMDC OPERATIONAL AREAS

:

At AFMDC, personnel shown in Figure 1, page 2, work in ten functional areas of operation. These are indicated below along with the numbers used for time coding purposes:

1	Administration	Administration of technical and general activities of AFMDC
2	Engineering Supervision	Technical activities including all mech- anized handling of data and processing of inquiries
3	Systems Analysis	Design of the machinability data system, particularly processing
4	Hachining Data Analysis	Technical evaluation of machinability data and information including Prelimi- nary Screening
5	Data Processing	Operation of a mechanized system including a computer
6	Data Control	Superimposition and use of controls to guarantee proper operation of data processing system
ו	Bocument Acquisition and Bocument Storage	Acquisition of all types of data and information for processing. Storage of documents including those which have received Final Technical Evaluation and those in process
1	Bata Dissemination	Dissemination including duplication and printing
8	Nachining Data Verification - Experimental Machining	Laboratory and shep work necessary for resolving highly significant and contro- versial data situations
	Secretarial and Clerical	Development and execution of all proce-

SEE APPENDIX, PAGE A-2

3

dures relating to typing and filing





SEE APPENDIX, PAGE A-2

4

ىرىپىرىيىر بىر بىيىلۇرىپىرى بىرىيىن ئۆتىرى ئىلىرىدى بىرىيىرى بىرىيىر



SEE APPENDIX, PAGE A-4

FIGURE 3

:

DISTRIBUTION OF AFMDC USER FILE

The basic User File was developed as indicated in Appendix, Page A-4. Names are added to the User File as a result of 1) inquirers, 2) visitors, 3) additional names submitted by current Users, 4) requests resulting from dissemination of data products, and 5) technical articles published in periodicals and announcements pertaining to the Center.

GENERAL CONCENTRATION OF USERS BY NUMBERS

STATES	ORGANIZATIONS	TOTAL NO. ORGANIZATIONS	STATES.	INDIVIDUAL	TOTAL INDIVIDUAL USERS
4	0	0	•	0	0
21	1-10	117	21	1-25	310
13	11-25	201		28-50	269
3	26-50	106		51-125	557
4	51-100	243	6	126-300	1,123
6	OVER-100	859	4	OVER-300	1,787

AREA CONCENTRATION OF ORGANIZATIONS

West Coast (3 states) - 184 companies North Midwest (5 states) - 534 companies Northeast (5 states) - 439 companies

These figures indicate that 75% of User companies lie in 25% of the United States.

The total User File (4,026), can be broken down as follows:

Company Users (Individuals) Companies	3,122 1,238
College Users (Individuals)	734
Colleges	185
Societies, Centers, etc. (Individuals)	170
Societies, Centers, etc.	103

*Includes Bashington, D.C.

SEE APPENDIX, PAGE A-4



SEE APPENDIX. PAGE A-S

.

Ĺ

į

ł

FIGURE 4

DATA CODE FORMS FOR FINAL TECHNICAL EVALUATION



FIGURE 5

13.5

....

SEE APPENDIX, PAGE A-6





•

1

	SIC CO SEQ DATE	3541 41 11 63 2015	3610 42 11 97 3035	3722 79 11 112 3045	2911 82 11 119 3125	3722 35 11 138 3185	5722 35 1 138 3185	<u>5722 35 1 138 3185</u>	5722 35 1 138 3185	P, INCO X750; DNITERN, CUT FLUID	SIC CO SEQ DATE		3541 41 11 63 2015	3722 35 11 138 3185	3722 35 1 138 3185	3722 35 1 138 3185			01; MATL DESCAIP, INCO 2750; WRITEMB, COT FLUID	SIC CO SEQ DATE		3722 35 1 138 3185
INQUIRY FILE SEARCH	DER MG MAT DESCRP UNITERMS	0 0 0 0 CUTFLUID 170 501 INCOX750 1 CUTFLUID	0 0 14 CARB TOOLSCUT FLUID	0 501 WASPALOY 2 CUT FLUID TOOL GEOM	0 0 14 CUT FLUID STRESS - CORROSION	1 301 INCOX750 13 CUT FLUID	45 301 INCOX750 13 CUT FLUID	55 301 INCOX750 13 CUT FLUID	1 301 INCO722 13 CUT FLUID	CONTROL ON BATA SPITCHES NOS. 3, 4 & 5 - NATL GRP, 301; NATL DESCR	D DER MG MAT DESCRP UNITERMS	0 301 INCOX750 0 CUT FLUID	170 501 INCOX750 1 CUT FLUID	1 501 INCOX750 15 CUT FLUID	ES 301 INCOX750 13 CUT FLUID	55 301 IMCOX750 13 CUT FLUID	SEE	SET SEARCH FIELD SWITCHES		DPER MG MAT DESCRP UNITERMS	S 201 INCOX750 0 CUT FLUID	es sol incox750 13 CUT FLUID

NOM NC NT NAT GEGRIP TN SOURCE CONTROL CODE 6 1 3 1 NEOTIS 5 1 0 6 1 1 1 NEOTIS C 239012 G640001401011 7 5 1 0 3 1 NEOTIS C 239012 G640001401011 6 5 1 0 3 1 NEOTIS C 230012 23012 24000140101 6 5 1 0 3 1 NEOTIS C 23001101 2010	PFR MOM MAT DESCRIP T SOURCE CONTROL COOR 013 31 31 30000 300000 100000 100000 100000 100000 100000 100000 100000 100000 100000 100000 100000 100000 100000 100000 100000 100000 100000 100000 1000000 1000000 1000000 100000000000 10000000000000000 1000000000000000000000000000000000000	OPER HOM NC NT 065 CM 01 61 065 CM 01 61 065 CM 01 60 065 CM 01 60 065 CM 01 60 065 CM 01 61 065 CM 03 60 065 CM 03 60 065 CM 03 61 065 CM 03 60 065 CM 03 60 065 CM 03 60 065 CM 05 60 065 CM 05 60 065		L EVALU	ATED DATA
Mem Mer MT MT MAT DESCRIP TA SOURCE CONTAGL CODE 3 3 1 14C0714 C 239011 CODE CODE 5 C1 01 301 14C0714 C 239011001011 CODE 5 C1 01 301 14C0714 MS 510001010111 CODE 5 C1 01 301 14C0714 MS 73000716430111 CODE 5 C1 01 301 U0590 C 8110021060201213451 CODE 8110021061201213451 5 C10 01 301 14C0714 MS 8110021060201213451 CODE 8110021060201213451 CODE 8110021060201213451 CODE 8110021060201213451 CODE 8110021060200121341 CODE 8110021060200121341 CODE CDE 8110021060200121341 CODE CDE 8110021060200121341 CDE CDE CDE CDE CDE CDE CDE CDE CD	MM MC MT MT Descrit TA SOURCE CONTROL GOE 01 01 101 10001 2001 10001 01 01 100 100 100 100 100 01 01 01 100 100 100 100 100 01 01 01 000 0 10001011 10001011 01 01 01 000 0 10001011 1000100111 01 01 01 000 0 1000100111 1000100111 01 01 01 010 01 01 1100110011011 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01	OPER HOH HC HT 065 CM 01 61 015 C V0 01 61 015 C V3 01 00 015 C V3 01 60 015 C V3 01 60 015 C V3 01 61 016 C V3 01 61 015 C V3 01 61 015 C V3 01 61 016 C V3 01 61 015 C V3 01 60 016 C V3 01 60 015 C V3 01 60 016 C V3 01 60 016 V3 01 60			
90 901 5 640 61 61 901 IACOTIA C 220012 6440001011 5 613 61 901 IACOTIA C 220015 64101011 5 613 61 901 IACOT730 HS 920021861511141223171 5 613 61 901 U0500 C 6001401011 5 613 901 U0500 C 6001401011 5 613 901 U0500 F 600140101 5 61 901 U0500 F 600140101 6 61 61 101 U0500 F 600140101 6 61 61 101 U0500 F 6010140101 6 61 61 101 U0500140101 F 1000140101 6 61 61 101 U0500140101 H 100140101 6 101 61 101 </th <th>06 79 70 05 Cri 01 61 31 IAGO714 C 270013 06100101011 05 C3 01 92 1460713 C 2700134513 1 05 C3 01 92 1460713 HS 9200206600134513 1 05 C3 01 91 IAGO40 HS 730027667301317941 1<</th> <th>045 CA4 01 61 045 C35 01 60 045 C35 01 00 045 C31 03 61 045 C31 03 61 045 C31 03 61 045 C35 03 60 045 C35 03 60 045 C34 01 61 045 C35 01 61 045 C35 01 61 045 C35 01 61 045 C35 91 61 045 C36 91 61 045 C35 91 61 045 91 91 61</th> <th>MTG MAT DESCRIP</th> <th>Ĩ</th> <th>SOURCE CONTROL CODE</th>	06 79 70 05 Cri 01 61 31 IAGO714 C 270013 06100101011 05 C3 01 92 1460713 C 2700134513 1 05 C3 01 92 1460713 HS 9200206600134513 1 05 C3 01 91 IAGO40 HS 730027667301317941 1<	045 CA4 01 61 045 C35 01 60 045 C35 01 00 045 C31 03 61 045 C31 03 61 045 C31 03 61 045 C35 03 60 045 C35 03 60 045 C34 01 61 045 C35 01 61 045 C35 01 61 045 C35 01 61 045 C35 91 61 045 C36 91 61 045 C35 91 61 045 91 91 61	MTG MAT DESCRIP	Ĩ	SOURCE CONTROL CODE
C C 229012 G6100014011 F CS 0 90 Reff NS 5020206400013351 F CS 0 90 Reff NS 7320027653126121 F CS 0 90 NE 7320027653126121 F CS 0 50 NG NS 81100210602011 F CS 0 1 100 NG 8 8110021060201191 F CS 0 50 NG NG 8110021060201191 NG F CS 0 60 NG NG 8110021060201191 NG F CS 0 S NG NG 8110021060201191 NG F CS 0 S NG NG 81100210602011 NG F CS 0 S 110021060201191 NG	05 Ci 0 1 Mc0714 C 739012 G6400101011 05 C15 01 31 Mc0715 HS 520020664000133451 05 C15 01 31 Mc07150 HS 732002166100101 05 C15 01 31 W0560 C 10701 HS 1100116200117961 05 C1 01 W1 W10011 HS 1100116200117961 05 C1 01 MC011 HS 11001162001162011 HS 05 C1 01 MC011 HS 1100116200115271 HS 05 C1 01 MC011 HS 110011621011 HS HS 05 C1 01 HC011 HS 110011621011 HS HS HS 05 C1 01 HC011 HS 110011621011 HS HS<	045 CM 01 61 045 C35 01 00 045 C34 01 01 045 C34 01 61 045 C34 01 61 045 C35 03 60 045 C35 03 60 045 C35 03 61 045 C34 01 61 045 C34 03 61 045 C31 03 61 045 C35 01 61 045 C35 01 61 045 C35 03 61 045 C35 03 61 045 C36 04 61 045 C36 91 61 045 C36 91 61 045 C36 91 61 045 C36 91 61 045 91 91 61	301		
C CS O I O I Reff L HS 902005005135151 C C3 0 I 0 31 IMCX730 HS 7320027683126123191 C C3 0 I 5 3 10 031 IMCX730 HS 732002768312612191 C C3 0 I 5 3 10 10060 HS 110021060200137961 C C3 0 I 5 3 U0700 HS 110021060200137961 C C3 0 I 5 1 91 U0700 HS 1100210602013791 C C3 0 I 5 1 91 MAFPALOY HS 81100210602013791 C C3 0 I 61 91 IMCONTSO HS 817012 67700010917 C C4 0 I 10 1 10021060201371 HS 817012 6770010917 C C4 0 I 10 10 1 1002101011 HS 11002101011 C C4 0 I 10 1 10012 67001093771 HS 11012 110	05 05 01 Referi HS 50200213451 05 C3 01 1400170 HS 732007783338223371 055 C3 01 101 U0560 C 60711 440001001 055 C1 01 1020 HS 11002106020127961 055 C1 01 HS 1100210602012791 055 C1 01 HS 11002106020127161 055 C1 01 HS 1100210602012771 056 C1 01 HS 1100210602012771 051 C1 01 HS 11002106101 051 C1 01 11002106101 C 051 C1 01 HS 11002106101 051 C1	015 C35 01 00 015 C34 01 00 015 C31 01 61 015 C31 03 61 015 C35 03 60 015 C35 03 60 015 C35 03 60 015 C35 03 61 015 C31 03 61 015 C31 03 61 015 C31 03 61 015 C31 03 61 016 C31 03 61 015 C31 03 61 016 C33 01 61 015 C31 03 61 016 C33 01 61 015 C33 01 60 016 C35 01 60 015 C36 01 61 016 C36 01 61 015 C36 01 61 016 C36 01 61 015 01 01 61 016 C36 01 61 015 </td <td>301 INCO718</td> <td>υ</td> <td>229012 6640001401011</td>	301 INCO718	υ	229012 6640001401011
C30 01 00 901 IMCONT96 MS 732002766531261226131 5 C51 01 101 UD500 C 00711 46.000140101 5 C40 01 61 301 UD700 MS 110021060200127961 6 C40 01 61 301 UD700 MS 110021060200127921 7 C15 01 MSFALOY MS 1100071060200129271 7 C15 01 S01 MSFALOY MS 8170012 667000109127 6 C15 01 S01 MSFALOY MS 8170012 66700109127 6 C15 01 MSFALOY MS 8170012 667000109127 6 C13 01 MSFALOY MS 8170012 667000109127 6 C13 01 MSCMTSO MS 817012 667000109127 6 C1 0 S01 MSCMTSO MS 817012	05 Ci 01 03 14:00130 15:002130 15:001 10:0011 05 Ci 01 51 91 00500 C 60711 14:000101011 05 Ci 01 51 91 00700 HS 6110021060200137961 05 Ci 91 Keth HS 611002106020013791 05 Ci 91 Keth HS 611002106020013791 05 Ci 91 Keth HS 611002106020013771 05 Ci 91 Keth HS 611002106020013771 05 Ci 91 Keth HS 81100140101 05 Ci 91 HC 8110012015351 05 Ci 91 HC 81100120135351 05 Ci 91 HC 81100123351 05 Ci 91 HC 91100123351 05 Ci 91 HC 911001235171 <t< td=""><td>015 C34 01 00 015 C51 05 C51 05 015 C40 01 61 015 C35 03 60 015 C35 03 60 015 C35 03 61 015 C35 03 61 015 C34 01 61 015 C34 01 61 015 C31 03 61 015 C31 03 61 016 C35 01 61 015 C35 01 61 016 C35 01 61 016 C35 01 61 015 C35 01 61 016 C35 01 61 015 C35 01 61 016 C35 91 61 015 C35 91 61 016 C35 91 61</td><td>301 RENELL</td><td>HS</td><td>50200280640001243451</td></t<>	015 C34 01 00 015 C51 05 C51 05 015 C40 01 61 015 C35 03 60 015 C35 03 60 015 C35 03 61 015 C35 03 61 015 C34 01 61 015 C34 01 61 015 C31 03 61 015 C31 03 61 016 C35 01 61 015 C35 01 61 016 C35 01 61 016 C35 01 61 015 C35 01 61 016 C35 01 61 015 C35 01 61 016 C35 91 61 015 C35 91 61 016 C35 91 61	301 RENELL	HS	50200280640001243451
C (51 01 01 00500 C 01011 640001011 C (20 01 5 301 U0700 HS 110021060200127961 C (23 03 60 301 KEKEA1 HS 81100210602001217961 C (23 03 61 301 MAEPALOY HS 81100210602001262741 C (23 03 61 301 MAEPALOY HS 817004 465000109121 C (23 03 61 301 INCOMPIL C 817012 6670001092571 C (21 03 61 301 INCONTSO HS 817012 6670001092571 C (21 03 61 91 1N00120717 1 9110010127761 C (23 01 67 901 HS 9110010127761 1 C (21 02 91 100014010127761 1 922004M66100127761 C (23 01 67 91 922004M661001277761 1 1 <tr< td=""><td>615 C1 61 91 00500 C 60701 46400140111 615 61 91 00700 HS 81100210602001377961 615 61 91 61 91 00700 HS 81100210602001377961 615 61 91 MAFALOY HS 81100676600132771 615 61 91 MAFALOY HS 81100100132771 615 61 91 14001101 HS 81100126052013771 615 61 91 14001101 HS 81100110127351 615 61 61 91 1400110110123451 615 61 61 HS 8110110123451 615 61 61 HS 811011234551 615 61 61 HS 81101234551 615 61 61 HS 8120040612310121 616 61 61 HS 812004061230127711 617 61</td><td>015 C51 01 61 015 C30 01 61 015 C35 03 60 015 C35 03 60 015 C35 03 60 015 C34 01 61 015 C34 01 60 015 C34 01 60 015 C31 00 61 016 C31 01 60 015 C31 01 61 016 C31 01 60 015 C31 01 60 016 C35 01 61 015 C35 01 60 016 C35 01 60 015 C36 01 60 016 C36 01 60 015 C36 01 60 016 C36 01 60 016 C36 01 60 016 C36 91 61<td>501 INCOX750</td><td>HS</td><td>732002556531288228371</td></td></tr<>	615 C1 61 91 00500 C 60701 46400140111 615 61 91 00700 HS 81100210602001377961 615 61 91 61 91 00700 HS 81100210602001377961 615 61 91 MAFALOY HS 81100676600132771 615 61 91 MAFALOY HS 81100100132771 615 61 91 14001101 HS 81100126052013771 615 61 91 14001101 HS 81100110127351 615 61 61 91 1400110110123451 615 61 61 HS 8110110123451 615 61 61 HS 811011234551 615 61 61 HS 81101234551 615 61 61 HS 8120040612310121 616 61 61 HS 812004061230127711 617 61	015 C51 01 61 015 C30 01 61 015 C35 03 60 015 C35 03 60 015 C35 03 60 015 C34 01 61 015 C34 01 60 015 C34 01 60 015 C31 00 61 016 C31 01 60 015 C31 01 61 016 C31 01 60 015 C31 01 60 016 C35 01 61 015 C35 01 60 016 C35 01 60 015 C36 01 60 016 C36 01 60 015 C36 01 60 016 C36 01 60 016 C36 01 60 016 C36 91 61 <td>501 INCOX750</td> <td>HS</td> <td>732002556531288228371</td>	501 INCOX750	HS	732002556531288228371
C40 01 61 901 UD700 NS 11002106020127941 5 C35 01 6 301 REMEA1 HS 811006786200126271 6 C35 01 6 301 NASFALOY HS 811006786200126271 6 C35 01 60 301 NASFALOY HS 811006786200126271 6 C39 05 61 301 REMEA1 HS 817004 4550001002571 7 C3 01 60 301 INCOPE1 C 817012 6670001002571 6 C3 01 61 301 INCOPE0 HS 817012 6670001002571 6 C3 01 61 301 INCON750 HS 817012 6670001002571 6 C3 01 67 901 HS 911001MB611101221 6 C3 01 F 817024 HS 912004MB641001221 C31	65 Cio 01 61 301 U0706 HS 811002106220119211 65 C53 05 301 REMEA1 HS 8110021062731 66 C53 05 501 MASFALOY HS 8110061562731 66 C53 05 501 MASFALOY HS 8110061562731 66 C39 61 301 MASFALOY HS 8110061562731 66 C39 61 301 MC0901 C 81000193571 69 C31 61 301 MC09013 C 8100193571 61 61 301 MC0913 C 81001993571 61 61 61 810 81701329351 61 61 61 81 8100190213551 61 61 61 61 81 8100190213551 61 61 61 61 81 81001902135551 61 61 61	015 CA0 01 61 015 C35 03 60 015 C35 03 60 015 C35 03 60 015 C35 03 60 015 C34 01 60 015 C31 03 61 015 C31 03 61 016 C31 03 61 015 C31 01 60 015 C31 01 61 016 C33 01 60 015 C31 01 60 016 C35 01 60 015 C36 01 60 015 C36 01 60 015 C36 01 60 015 C36 01 60 016 C36 01 60 016 C36 01 60	501 UD500	υ	807011 4640001401011
C 35 0 3 6 901 REMEA1 HS 81100678620001362741 F C25 0 3 0 301 VASFALOY HS 81100678620001362741 F C39 0 5 5 301 VASFALOY HS 81100678620001362741 F C39 0 5 5 301 NASFALOY HS 81100141011 F C39 0 5 501 INCO901 C 817012 6670001092571 F C31 0 5 501 INCON750 HS 81100146611101234551 F C31 0 5 501 INCON750 HS 9100140513 F C35 0 1 501 REMEA1 HS 91100146611001235541 F C35 0 1 501 INCON750 C 9120044661001235741 F C35 0 1 501 HS 91200146611101234551 F C35 0 1 501 HS 92200444641001237751	65 C53 05 64 AER4A1 HS 81100210605.201312711 645 C23 05 61 201 MASFALOY HS 8110061765.201312711 645 C34 01 66 201 MASFALOY HS 811006175711 645 C34 01 66 201 Income1 C 8110019012571 645 C34 01 60 201 Income1 C 8110019012571 645 C31 61 101 61 301 Income1 C 11/0125571 645 C31 61 101 61 11 11/012 12/012 645 C31 61 KERE1 HS 81100190125571 12/012 645 C31 61 KERE1 HS 8110019051571 12/012 645 C31 61 KERE1 HS 8110019051571 12/012 645 C31 61 10 KERE1	015 C35 03 60 015 C15 03 60 015 C15 03 60 015 C14 01 61 015 C13 01 61 015 C31 03 61 015 C31 03 61 015 C31 01 61 015 C31 01 61 015 C31 01 61 015 C31 01 60 015 C35 01 61 016 C35 01 60 015 C35 91 61 015 01 91 61	301 UD700	HS	8110021D602001279961
C25 03 04 301 MASPALQY HS 6110061762701 F C34 01 61 01 REMEN1 HS 81700014657001092571 F C34 01 60 301 IMC0901 C 817012 6670001092571 F C31 05 61 301 IMC0901 C 817012 6670001092571 F C31 06 501 IMC00750 HS 817012 6670001092571 F C31 06 61 301 IMC00759 HS 817012 6670001092571 F C31 06 61 1 HS 817012 6670001092571 F C31 01 IMC00759 HS 817012 66700010927761 F C31 01 HS 91200446611001277761 HS 9120044661001277761 F C31 01 HS 92200446641001277761 HS 92200446641001277761 F C3	05 C13 01 MAEPALOY HS E11006TB62001162711 01 C13 01 REKE1 HS E1700h. 465001010121 015 C13 01 REKE1 HS E1700h. 4650010012571 015 C13 01 60 01 HKC1 HS E17012. 667001091571 015 C13 01 1 REKE1 HS 217012. 667001091571 015 C13 01 1 MCONT59 HS 217012. 667001091571 015 C13 01 1 MCONT59 HS 217012. 667001091571 015 C13 01 1 MCONT59 HS 2170146110127771 016 C13 01 1 MCONT59 HS 911001401271 016 C13 01 HKC1 HS 911001401271 016 C13 01 HKK1 HS 911001275751 016 C13 01 HKK1 HS 911001275751 </td <td>015 C25 05 C16 015 C39 05 C1 015 C34 01 61 015 C34 01 61 015 C31 05 61 015 C31 05 61 015 C31 01 61 015 C31 01 61 015 C31 01 61 015 C31 01 60 015 C31 01 60 015 C31 01 60 015 C35 01 60 015 C35 01 60 015 C35 01 60 015 C35 91 61 015 C36 91 61</td> <td>SOL RENEAL</td> <td>HS</td> <td>81100210602301219211</td>	015 C25 05 C16 015 C39 05 C1 015 C34 01 61 015 C34 01 61 015 C31 05 61 015 C31 05 61 015 C31 01 61 015 C31 01 61 015 C31 01 61 015 C31 01 60 015 C31 01 60 015 C31 01 60 015 C35 01 60 015 C35 01 60 015 C35 01 60 015 C35 91 61 015 C36 91 61	SOL RENEAL	HS	81100210602301219211
C39 05 61 301 RENELI HS 817004 6650001092571 C C1 05 61 301 INCO901 C 817012 6670001092571 F C1 05 61 301 INCO901 C 817012 6670001092571 F C17 05 60 301 INCON750 HS 817012 6670001092571 F C13 01 61 301 INCON750 HS 817012 6670001092571 F C13 01 67 301 HS 817012 6670001092571 F C13 01 67 301 HS 91000 450001001275561 F C13 01 67 901 HS 922004M66A1001277761 F C13 01 67 901 HS 922004M66A10012755541 F C13 01 06 501 HS 922004M66A100127555541 F <t< td=""><td>613 C13 61 J01 RENEA1 HS 617000 4500010011 613 C14 01 60 301 Infcorol C 817012 667000109131 613 C1 01 RENELI HS 817012 667000109131 613 C1 03 L1 NICCORTS HS 817012 667000109131 613 C11 RENELI HS 817012 667000109131 1 614 C17 01 E1 HS 817012 667000109131 615 C13 01 RENELI HS 811001466110123 1 615 C13 01 RENEX1 HS 91200446100123 1 615 C13 01 HATX HS 91200446100123561 1 615 C13 01 HATX HS 922004464100123561 1 1 1 615 C13 01 HATX HS 9220044641001235561<td>015 C33 05 C34 01 015 C34 01 60 015 C31 05 61 015 C31 05 61 015 C31 01 60 015 C31 01 61 015 C35 01 61 015 C35 01 61 015 C31 01 00 015 C31 01 00 015 C31 01 00 015 C35 01 00 016 C35 01 00 015 C35 01 00 016 C35 01 00 015 C36 01 00 015 C31 01 01 016 C35 01 01 017 01 01 01 018 C36 01 01 018 C31 01 01</td><td>SOI WASPALOY</td><td>HS</td><td>811006T8620001262741</td></td></t<>	613 C13 61 J01 RENEA1 HS 617000 4500010011 613 C14 01 60 301 Infcorol C 817012 667000109131 613 C1 01 RENELI HS 817012 667000109131 613 C1 03 L1 NICCORTS HS 817012 667000109131 613 C11 RENELI HS 817012 667000109131 1 614 C17 01 E1 HS 817012 667000109131 615 C13 01 RENELI HS 811001466110123 1 615 C13 01 RENEX1 HS 91200446100123 1 615 C13 01 HATX HS 91200446100123561 1 615 C13 01 HATX HS 922004464100123561 1 1 1 615 C13 01 HATX HS 9220044641001235561 <td>015 C33 05 C34 01 015 C34 01 60 015 C31 05 61 015 C31 05 61 015 C31 01 60 015 C31 01 61 015 C35 01 61 015 C35 01 61 015 C31 01 00 015 C31 01 00 015 C31 01 00 015 C35 01 00 016 C35 01 00 015 C35 01 00 016 C35 01 00 015 C36 01 00 015 C31 01 01 016 C35 01 01 017 01 01 01 018 C36 01 01 018 C31 01 01</td> <td>SOI WASPALOY</td> <td>HS</td> <td>811006T8620001262741</td>	015 C33 05 C34 01 015 C34 01 60 015 C31 05 61 015 C31 05 61 015 C31 01 60 015 C31 01 61 015 C35 01 61 015 C35 01 61 015 C31 01 00 015 C31 01 00 015 C31 01 00 015 C35 01 00 016 C35 01 00 015 C35 01 00 016 C35 01 00 015 C36 01 00 015 C31 01 01 016 C35 01 01 017 01 01 01 018 C36 01 01 018 C31 01 01	SOI WASPALOY	HS	811006T8620001262741
C34 01 60 301 INCO901 C 817012 6670001092571 C C1 05 61 301 INCONTGO MS 817012 6670001092571 C C1 05 61 301 INCONTGO MS 817012 6670001092571 C C1 00 61 301 INCONTGO MS 817012 6670001092571 C C31 00 61 MS 817001 MS 911001021 C C31 01 67 01 MS 91200MB611001253551 C C31 01 S01 INCONTGO MS 92200MB61001255551 C C31 01 S01 MASTX MS 92200MB61001255551 C C33 01 A1 MASTX MS 92200MB61001255551 C C34 D1 MASTX MS 92200MB61001255551 C C34 D1 MASTX MS <	65 C3 01 Incode1 C 01/012 647000103571 013 C1 05 1 301 Incode1 C 01/012 667000103571 013 C1 05 60 301 Incod759 HS 01/012 6670001002571 015 C1 06 501 Incox759 HS 51100146611101234351 015 C13 01 67 310 06500102251 1 015 C13 01 100 101 10001251351 1 015 C13 01 10027750 HS 922004M66A1001275781 1 015 C13 01 Incox7750 HS 922004M66A1001255781 1 015 C19 01 MATX P3 922004M66A1001255781 1 015 C14 MATX P3 922004M66A1001255781 1 1 015 C19 01 MATX P3 922004M66A1001255781 1	015 C34 01 60 015 C41 05 C1 61 015 C31 05 61 61 015 C35 01 61 61 015 C35 01 61 61 015 C35 01 60 61 016 C35 91 61 61	SOI RENELI	HS	817004 4650001401011
C41 O3 G1 D61 REMEA1 HS B17012 G670001093571 F C17 05 60 301 IMCOX750 HS 817012 G670001093571 F C1 00 61 301 IMCOX750 HS 811001M6611101234551 F C35 01 67 301 IMCOX750 C 917000 4596001401021 F C35 01 60 361 IMCOX750 HS 922004M6641001277761 F C37 03 501 IMCOX750 HS 922004M6641001277761 F C37 03 501 IMCOX750 HS 922004M6641001275761 F C37 03 501 MSTX P3 922004M6641001255541 F C36 01 64 301 IMCOX750 C 922004M6641001255541 F C36 01 63 MS 922004M66410012255541 E F C36 01	643 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 11 11 61 11 61 11 61 11 61 11 61 61 51 11 61 61 61 501 1 10 61 51 11 10 11 10 11 10 11 10 11 10 11 10 11 10 11 10 11 10 11 10 11 10 11 10 11 10 11 10	015 C31 05 C1 05 C1 015 C31 01 05 C1 00 61 015 C31 01 00 61 60 015 C31 01 00 61 015 C31 01 00 015 C32 01 00 015 C31 01 01 015 C31 01 01 015 C31 01 01 015 C31 01 01	301 INCO901	U	817012 6670001092571
C37 63 60 301 IMCOX750 HS 6170135351 C41 00 61 501 REMEAL HS 911001M6611101234351 F C35 01 67 501 IMCOX750 C 911001M6611001234351 F C35 01 67 301 IMCOX750 C 912004M864100127781 C C35 01 60 301 IMCOX750 HS 922004M8641001277781 C C37 03 601 HASTX HS 922004M864100127751 H C37 03 601 HASTX HS 922004M8641001255541 H C35 01 60 301 HASTX HS 922004M8641001255551 H C36 01 61 AST HS 922004M8641001255551 H C36 01 61 AST HS 92001066660005267721 H C36 01 61 AST HS 92001066866000526	65 C37 61 63 61 701 REMEN1 MS 617012 6670001092371 015 C31 00 61 301 REMEN1 MS 9100010661110123553 015 C35 01 60 301 IMCOX750 C 917000 45900010021 015 C35 01 301 IMCOX750 MS 922004M6611001275761 015 C37 01 301 IMCOX750 MS 922004M661001275761 015 C35 01 301 IMCOX750 MS 922004M661001275761 015 C35 01 301 MASTX PS 922004M661001275561 015 C35 01 301 MASTX MS 922004M661001275561 015 C36 01 01 MASTX MS 922004M661001275561 015 C36 01 01 MASTX MS 92001C1660005265501 015 C36 01 01	015 C37 05 60 015 C31 00 61 015 C35 01 67 015 C35 01 61 015 C31 01 06 015 C31 01 06 015 C35 01 67 015 C35 01 61 015 C35 91 61	501 RENELI	RS	8 17012 66 70001092571
C41 00 61 301 REMEA1 HS 91100148611101234351 C 55 01 67 301 IMCOX750 C 917000 45900140127761 C 53 01 60 301 IMCOX750 HS 922004M86A1001277761 C 51 03 60 301 IMCOX750 HS 922004M86A1001275761 C 51 03 60 301 IMCOX750 HS 922004M86A1001255541 C 53 01 60 301 IMCOX750 HS 922004M86A1001255541 C 53 01 61 AA5TX HS 922004M86A10012555541 C 53 01 61 MA5TX HS 922004M86A1001259501 C 53 01 61 MS 922004M86A1001259501 1 C 53 01 61 MS 922004M86A1001259501 1 C 53 01 61 MS 920010618660005267721 1 C 53 01 61 501 7600106186	65 Ca1 00 61 301 RENEA1 HS 911001461110123451 615 C15 01 61 50 14000 5596001401021 615 C13 01 60 301 14000X750 C 9170001277781 615 C13 01 60 301 1400X750 HS 9220048641001277781 615 C19 00 301 1460X750 HS 9220048641001275761 616 C19 01 MA5TX YS 92200486641001235541 615 C19 01 501 HA5TX YS 92200486641001235541 615 C19 01 M45TX YS 92200486641001235541 1 615 C19 01 M45TX YS 9200106126560005267721 615 C19 91 G1 MS 950010618660005285791 615 C19 91 G1 M5 950010618660005287731 616 C1 S1	015 CA1 00 61 015 C35 01 67 015 C35 01 61 015 C33 01 60 015 C33 01 60 015 C35 00 00 015 C35 00 00 015 C35 00 00 015 C35 01 01 015 C35 01 01 015 C35 01 01 015 C35 01 01	501 INCOX750	¥	£17012 G£70001092571
C35 01 61 18COX750 C 017000 659001401021 C33 01 00 301 18COX750 HS 9220048641001275761 C27 05 00 301 18COX750 HS 9220048641001275761 C27 05 00 301 18COX750 HS 9220048641001255761 F89 05 00 301 MASTX P3 9220048641001255761 C36 01 04 301 18CO1255561 HS 9220054864001255561 C59 01 04 301 18CO1255561 HS 92200548664001255561 C59 91 61 361 18CO11 HS 920010658660005267721 C59 91 61 361 T8 950010658660005265721 C59 91 61 36010658660005265721 HS 950010658660005265721	65 C35 01 67 301 IMCOX750 C 917000 599001401011 015 C13 01 06 361 IMCOX750 HS 922004M864100117761 015 C17 01 301 IMCOX750 HS 922004M8641001275761 015 C19 03 301 IMCOX750 HS 922004M8641001255541 015 C19 03 301 MASTX HS 922004M8641001255541 015 C19 031 MASTX HS 922004M8641001255541 016 C1 03 JASTX HS 922004M8641001255541 016 C1 03 JASTX HS 922004M8641001255541 016 C1 03 JASTX HS 95001061866005267721 016 C1 03 1MCO100C C 950010618660005267721 016 C1 01 JS 96010618660005245721 HS	015 C35 01 67 015 C33 01 00 015 C31 01 00 015 C31 03 00 015 C35 00 00 015 C35 00 00 015 C35 00 00 015 C36 01 00 015 C36 01 00 015 C36 01 00 015 C36 01 00	501 RENEAL	ΗS	\$11001M8611101234351
C33 01 06 561 INCOX750 HS 9.22004M6641001277761 C27 03 06 501 INCOX750 HS 9.22004M6641001275761 E89 05 06 501 MASTX HS 9.22004M6641001255541 C54 01 0.3 MASTX HS 9.22004M6641001255561 C54 01 6.1 6.1 MASTX HS 9.22004M6641001255561 C54 01 6.1 5.0 1.MCO100C C 950010FE660005267721 C54 9.1 1.MCO100C C 950010FE660005267721 1.	065 C33 01 00 301 INCOXT5G HS 922004M864.1001275761 065 C27 05 00 301 INCOXT5G HS 922004M864.1001275761 065 C36 01 MASTX HS 922004M864.1001255541 065 C36 01 MASTX HS 922004M864.100124.9501 065 C36 01 MASTX HS 922004M864.100124.9501 065 C36 01 61 301 INCOLOGC C 065 C36 01 61 301 1 HS 9500.106E860005267721	015 C33 01 00 015 C31 03 00 015 C35 00 00 015 C35 00 00 015 C35 00 00 015 C35 01 01 015 C35 01 00 015 C39 91 61	301 INCOX750	υ	917000 \$596001401021
C27 03 00 501 Incox750 HS 922004m6611001275761 1 849 63 00 501 MASTX P3 922004m6611001255541 1 C35 00 00 501 MASTX P3 922004m6611001255541 1 C36 01 04 301 Inco1000C C 920010fE6660005267721 1 C39 91 61 301 Texte1 MS 950010fE6660005267721	65 C27 05 06 301 Incox756 HS 922004H86A10012535A1 065 68 05 06 301 HASTX PS 922004H86A10012535A1 065 C35 06 06 301 HASTX HS 922004H86A10012595A1 065 C36 01 04 301 HASTX HS 922004H86A1001259501 065 C39 91 61 MC0100C C 950010E8660003267721 045 C39 91 61 76K641 HS 950010E8660003267721	015 C27 05 06 015 015 015 01 01 015 C36 01 01 01 015 C36 01 01 01 015 C39 91 01 01	361 I NCOX750	¥	922004MB641001277781
B49 B5 B0 S01 MASTX F3 922004M641001253541 C C35 00 00 301 MASTX MS 922004M6641001249501 C C36 01 64 301 1 MC0100C C 950010F5660005267721 C C39 01 61 501 7 MS 950010F5660005249591	013 03 00 301 MASTX Y3 922004m64,1001253501 015 C35 00 00 301 MASTX HS 922004m64,1001245501 015 C36 01 04 301 IASTX HS 922004m64,1001245501 015 C36 01 61 01 Imcolooc C 950010CB660005267721 015 C39 91 61 S01 Year 950010CB660005267721 016 C39 91 61 HS 950010CB660005267721	015 013 01 01 015 C35 00 00 015 C36 01 04 015 C39 91 61 64	501 I MCOX750	¥S	922004M8641001275761
C35 00 00 301 MASTX MS 922004M6641001249501 C36 01 04 301 1 MC0100C C 9500100E6660005267721 C39 91 61 501 950010E6660005267721	65 C35 00 J01 MASTX HS 92200HM6611001219501 815 C36 01 01 J01 Imccolooc C 950010EE660005267721 615 C39 91 61 J01 TEME11 HS 950010EE660005219591	015 C35 00 00 015 C36 01 04 015 C39 91 61	301 HASTX	r.	922004MB641001253541
C36 01 04 301 1MC0100C C 950010E8660005267721 C39 91 61 501 9EMEA1 MS 950010E8660005249591	01 01 01 01 301 1 MCO100C C 950010C1660005267721 015 C39 91 61 301 4EMEA1 HS 950010E166600052145591	ets C36 D1 D4 C36 D1 D4 C36 D1 C1 D4 C39 D1 C1 D4 C39 D1 C1 D1 C39 D1 C1 D1 C39 D1 C1 D1 D1 D1 D1 D1 D1 D1 D	301 HASTX	XS	922004MB641001249501
C39 91 61 501 REMENI MS 950010EB660005219591	615 C39 01 61 301 4EMEA1 HS 950010E8660005249591	615 C39 91 61	301 I NC0100C	U	950010EB660005267721
			301 9EME41	¥	950010E8660005249591

Ľ

OUTUT OF UNITERN FILE SEARCH	301	BL SHOOTMACHG -TECHNIQUES & & \$7000 G660001 01 4 040 125 301 CH TOOL-AUTOMATIC NC TOOL GEOM TOOL DESGN500000 &580001 01 4 155 020 030 100 301 051	301 505000 G640006 01 4	T FLUID FEED RATE 506000 650006 01 4 301 506000 530005 4 T GBWNG DEEP HOLF TOOL HIDR 512000 6510007 01 4	04 0 045 050 301 301 512000 51000 510007 512000 510007 5000 510007 50001 01 4 CHG -TECHNIQUESTOOL DESGNTAP SPECS 605000 590001 01 4	RQUE THRUST TOOL FAILR 605003 6640001 01 4 301 501 605003 640001 1	D SPEC FOREIGN 501 624002 6550001 01 4 624002 550001 01 4	OL GEOM MACHG -TECHNIQUES 677000 6600001 01 4 301 577000 600001 01 4	ИLL -ТНЕОRY CUT FLUID-EFFECT 734007 G660001 01 4 301 734007 660001 01 4	17TER -GRNDG -SPECS 700L GRNDG700L GEAM 803004 8510013 01 4 301 803004 510013	0RQUE THRUST SPIRAL PT 810001 &570001 01 4 301 370001 570001 4	IGLE TOOL GEOM CUT FORCE 810006 G510001 01 4 301 810006 510001 01 4	TTING TOOL GEOM TOOL LIFE CUT FLUID 811000 &620001 01 4 073 070 110 100 301 811000 520001 01 4	JTTER -GRNDG -SPECS TOOL GRNDGTOOL GEOM 803004 8510013 UI 4 301 803004 510013 U	
. 5	100L GEOM 085	TOOL GEOM TRBL SHOOTMACHG 110 00% 085 0%0 125 Tool STDS Mach Tool-Automai UOI U85 U55 155 U20 U30 100	TOOL GEOM 085	TOOL GEOM CUT FLUID FEED RA U20 085 100 Tool ceam and counc need he	085 020 100 040 045 050 Tool geom Machg -Technig 085 110	TOOL GEOM TORQUE THRUST 085	TOOL GEOM STD SPEC FOREIG	MACHG DATATOOL GEOM MACHG 085	TOOL GEOM DRILL -THEORY	DRL GRNDG CUTTER -GRNDG 085 055 225	TOOL GEOM TORQUE THRUST	SHEAR -ANGLE TOOL G 001 056 085	MCHNBLTY -RATING TOOL G 001 085 056 073 070 110 10	DRL GRNDG CUTTER -GRNDG 085 055 225	

•

..

OUTPUT OF FINAL TECHNICAL EVALUATED DATA	MATERIAL * HEAT TREAT * MATERIAL * A F M D C D T A INDEX * GROUP DESCRIPTION * CONDITION * HARDNESS * SOURCE * STATUS * * 301 INCO718 SOLUTIONED ROCK C29 950002 660019 E8 AFMDC	TOOL * BACK * SIDE * END *SIDE* ECEA * SCEA * * * * * * * * CHIP BREAKER * Style * Rake * Relf+Relf* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	N + CUTTING FILLD CUTTING FLULD CUTTING FLULD CUTTING FLULD + CLUTE NAME DESCRIPTION CONCENTRATION C68 NOT REPORTED WATER SOLUBLE OLL -LIGHT DUTY 1 TO 020 AFMDC	* FEED * Depth * CUT * LIA * HI * 10 * CUT * LIA * H * * 11 * IN/BEV * INCH * H * 5 0.009 0.060 10 0.015 ***** 2.000 ***** AFMDC 0 0.009 0.060 15 0.015 ***** 2.000 ***** AFMDC 8 0.009 0.060 30 0.015 ***** 2.000 ***** AFMDC 0 0.009 0.060 30 0.015 ***** 2.000 ***** AFMDC	
SEE APPENDIX	<pre>Add the temperature of the temperature of the temperature of the temperature of temperature</pre>	**************************************	************************************	**************************************	

...

COST PER PIECE IN FACE MILLING AND END MILLING

معواصد المقابلة معرومات الملا

INSERTED TOOTH CUTTER - CARBIDE TIP OR HSS BLADE

FIG	URE 11				14			SEE API	PENDIX,	PAGE A-9	
INSERTED TO	ж н С	2	THROWAWAY	א יי ט	48.73	sorin Has Cu	א י ט	5	- Juos arios	א י ט	Ş
OTH CU1	D(e +		INSERT	D(e +		TTER	D(e +		- BRAZEI	<u>D(e +</u>	
	+ 기축	I	CUTTER	+ 	8		+ 미녌	1.	D CARBI	+ 	1
CARBIDE TIP (2a + e + L r	RAPIS Travere Time	<i>n</i> .	2a + e + L r	RAPID The vertee The		2a + e + L r	AAPIS TAAVENE TIK	DE TIP CUTT)	2a + e + L r	ALFE TANVERSE TIME
OR HSS BLAD	+ t	LINE L		کد +	LAAS & WILOAD TIME		لو +	LEAS E MILLEAD TIME	č,	ۍو +	
ផ	ت <mark>ع م</mark>	SETUP TIME		2012 +	SET UP TIME		בא ² +	3ET0P 1.106		א גריי ליי	AUT 1 Mit
	+ +			й <mark>и</mark> +	1886 1886 87 1886 87		й <mark>н</mark> +	53F		년 년 +	535
	+ 	쥳뵻노		+ 	MANAY Tofal Time		+ 	臣登노		+ 	臣븰닐
	Z Tt			Z II			Z T _t			L II	
	$\left[\begin{array}{c}c_{p}\\(k_{1}+1)\end{array}\right]$	CUTTER BOOT BEPRECIATION COST		$\begin{bmatrix} c_p \\ (k_1 + 1) \end{bmatrix}$	CUTTER BODY Bepreciation Cost		$\left[\begin{array}{c}c_{p}\\(k_{1}+1)\end{array}\right]$	CUTTER DEPRECIATION COST		$\left[\begin{array}{c} c_p \\ \frac{c_p}{(k_1+1)} \end{array}\right]$	CHITER 808Y DEPRECIATION COST
	+						+			+	
	1 1	NTER Marfen Cost					1 1	UTTER BHARPEN Cost		1. 1. +	LUTTER SKARPEN COST
	6 2 6	81.40E Reset Cost								G to 2	CARBIDE Rebraze Cost
	+	-		+						+	3 -
	ະ ເມີ	6LABE C 88T		k3 K3	RONANAY Nsert Cost		·			k3 K3	71,P 11,P 10,0
	ບັ	GR IND IN UNEEL COST					 ບັ	4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		ບື່ ບີ	BRINDI VNEEL COST
	(+1)	2		(15)			(16)	-		[]	Z .
							_			_	

٠

٠.

evie Tanvat Mit

1145ERTED TODIM - CARENDE T1P OR HIS BLADE 217.6 with and a route in the internet in the internet inter internet internet internet internet internet internet			COST AND PI	RODUCTION RATE FOR MILLING	
Dirie Work WAREARD SPD - TERDATIOL SEED - TRATE - COTT - SEED - STOL - S			INSERTED TO)TH - CARBIDE TIP OR HSS BLADE	
101 WASKNOV 923 C-3 VA C	DATA- WOR SET- MATER	K +HARD+TOOL+ +NESS+MATL+	<pre></pre>	<pre>*FEED*RAPD*LOAD*SET-*CUTR*BODY*CUTR*BLAD*GR *COST*TRAV*UNLD* UP *CHNG*DEPR*SHPN*RSET*COST*WH</pre>	ND+ ++TOTAL++PROD L.+ ++COST ++RATE
101 MARMUN 973 C-3 N3 0.05 3.4.0 0.71 0.01 0.51 0.01 0.51 0.01 <	NO. TALER		HI/NID NID M/JD	~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~	* ***/ /C. ** /C/H
10. WASPANOV 302 C-2 7, 0.05 3, 4, 0 0.73 0, 40 0.01 0, 50 0.01 0, 50 0.13 0, 02 2.75 5, 5 10. WASPANOV 302 C-2 7, 0.065 17, 0 0.91 0, 00 0.11 0, 01 0, 50 0.13 0, 02 2.75 5, 5 11. WASPANOV 302 C-2 7, 0.065 17, 0 0.91 0, 00 0.11 0, 01 0, 50 0.13 0, 02 2.75 5, 5 11. WASPANOV 302 C-2 7, 0.065 17, 0 0.91 0, 00 0.11 0, 01 0, 01 0, 01 0.12 0, 02 2.75 5, 5 11. WASPANOV 302 C-2 11. 0, 10, 01 0.91 0, 00 0.10 0, 01 0.11 0, 01 0, 02 2.75 5, 5 11. WASPANOV 302 C-2 11. 0, 10, 01 0.91 0, 00 0.01 0, 01 0.01 0, 01 0.11 0, 01 2.75 5, 5 11. WASPANOV 302 C-2 11. 0, 10, 01 0.11 0, 01 0.01 0, 01 0.01 0, 01 0.11 0, 01 <td>ASAN IOI</td> <td>10Y 302 C-2</td> <td>142 0.005 12.0</td> <td>0.47 0.03 0.44 0.08 0.16 0.01 1.33 0.12 0.19 0.</td> <td>03 2.86 7.3</td>	ASAN IOI	10Y 302 C-2	142 0.005 12.0	0.47 0.03 0.44 0.08 0.16 0.01 1.33 0.12 0.19 0.	03 2.86 7.3
103 MASPALOY 302 C-2 N 0.005 17.0 0.91 0.05 0.11 0.01 0.34 0.06 0.13 0.02 2.75 5.55 101 MOR	102 WASPA	LOY 302 C-2	92 0.005 24.0	0.73 0.03 0.44 0.08 0.08 0.01 0.66 0.06 0.09 0.	01 2.19 6.4
DMA WMA THROMAINY INSERT THROMAINY INSERT •••01714-••9800 BY WMA WMA WMA ************************************	105 WASPA	107 302 C-2	74 0.005 17.0	0.91 0.03 0.44 0.08 0.11 0.01 0.94 0.08 0.13 0.	02 2.75 5.5
DATA: WORK					
DATA: WORK CHMP-TOOL: CUT - FEED-TAPD-LAD-SET - HDX-860Y+ HSERT- Color - HSE-60X NEW Color - HXERALI COST FAM COST				THROWAWAY INSERT	
291 MASPALOY 502 12 0.005 12.0 0.17 0.03 0.44 0.09 0.03 0.10 1.45 6.6 292 MASPALOY 502 0-23 0.05 24.0 0.73 0.03 0.44 0.03 0.10 1.45 6.6 293 MASPALOY 502 C-2 74 0.005 17.0 0.73 0.03 0.44 0.03 0.10 1.45 6.6 293 MASPALOY 502 C-2 74 0.005 17.0 0.91 0.03 0.14 0.03 0.10 1.45 6.6 5.7 293 MASPALOY 502 C-2 74 0.005 17.0 0.91 0.03 0.14 0.03 0.14 0.03 0.14 0.03 0.14 0.03 0.14 0.05 0.14 0.05 0.14 0.05 0.14 0.05 0.14 0.05 0.14 0.05 0.14 0.05 0.14 0.05 0.14 0.05 0.14 0.05 0.14 0.05 0.14 0.05 0	DATA+ WOR SET+ NO.+ MATER	K HARD+TOOL+ 	+CUT +FEED/+TOOL + +SPD +TOOTH+LIFE + +F/M + IN +IN/TH+	<pre> FEED=RAPD=L0AD=SET==INDX=B0DY=INSERT= COST=TRAV=UNLD= UP =INST=DEPR= COST = COST=TRAV=UNLD= UP =INDX=B0DY=INSERT= COST=TRAV=UNLD= UP =INST=DEPR= COST = COST=TRAV=UNLD= UP =INSERT=DEPR= COST = COST=TRAV=UNLD= UP = INSERT=DEPR= COST = COST=TRAV=UNLD= COST=TRAV=UNLD=</pre>	**TOTAL**PROD **COST **RATE **\$/PC.**PC/H
202 MASPALOY 302 C-2 92 0.005 24.0 0.73 0.03 0.10 1.45 6.6 203 MASPALOY 302 C-2 74 0.005 21.0 0.10 0.10 0.10 1.45 6.6 203 WASPALOY 302 C-2 74 0.005 17.0 0.13 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 1.45 6.6 214 WASPALOY 302 C-2 74 0.005 1.46 0.005 0.14 0.03 0.14 1.70 5.7 214 WASPALOY 502 C-2 74 0.05 0.14 1.70 5.7 215 WASPALOY 502 C-2 74 0.05 0.14 0.05 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.14 0.10 0.14 0.10 0.14 0.14 0.14 0.14 0.10 0.14 0.14 0.14 0.14 <t< td=""><td>201 WASPA</td><td>LOY 302 C-2</td><td>142 0.005 12.0</td><td>0.47 0.03 0.44 0.08 0.09 0.03 0.20</td><td>1.34 7.8</td></t<>	201 WASPA	LOY 302 C-2	142 0.005 12.0	0.47 0.03 0.44 0.08 0.09 0.03 0.20	1.34 7.8
263 MASPALOY 302 C-2 74 0.005 17.0 5.7 Solution Solution Solution Solution Solution 1.70 5.7 Solution Sol	202 WASPA	LOY 302 C-2	92 0.005 24.0	0.73 0.03 0.44 0.08 0.04 0.03 0.10	1.45 6.6
SOLID HIGH SPEED STEEL CUTTER DATA: WORK NANDDTOOL: CUTTERD/FIDDL CATERDANDS-LAADSET-CUTR-CUTR-CUTR-CUTR-CUTR-CUTR-CUTR-GRND. SET: ************************************	203 MASPA	1LOY 502 C-2	74 0.005 17.0	0.91 0.03 0.44 0.08 0.07 0.03 0.14	1.70 5.7
DATA: WARD-1001. -CUT FEED-ATE -FEED-ATE			SOLID	HIGH SPEED STEEL CUTTER	
301 WASPALLOY 302 M-2 32 0.011 20.0 0.61 0.05 0.10 0.05 0.145 8.1 302 WASPALLOY 302 M-2 29 0.01 60.0 0.05 0.14 0.05 0.11 0.02 1.16 8.1 302 WASPALLOY 302 MASPALLOY 302 0.10 0.01 0.02 0.11 0.02 1.16 8.1 305 WASPALLOY 302 0.01 0.02 0.01 0.02 0.01 0.02 1.16 8.1 305 WASPALLOY 302 0.01 0.02 0.01 0.05 0.01 0.16 1.16 8.1	DATA• NOR 561• NO,• Kater	IX •HARD+TOOL• •NESS•NATL• 11AL • •	•CUT *FEED/*TOOL * •SPD *TOOTH*LIFE * •F/M * IN *IN/TH*	<pre> •FEEDeRAPD=LOAD=SET==CUTR=CUTR=CUTR=GRND= •COST=TRAV=UNLD= UP =CHNG=DEPR=SHPN=WHL.= • \$ • \$ • \$ • \$ • \$ • \$ • \$ • \$ • \$ • \$</pre>	**TOTAL**PROD **COST **RATE **\$/PC.**PC/H
302 WASPALOV 302 W-2 29 0.011 0.05 0.01 0.02 0.11 0.02 1.16 8.6 305 WASPALOV 302 W-2 25 0.05 0.05 0.01 0.05 0.01 1.16 8.1	VASVA LOS	LOY 502 M-2	52 0.011 20.0	0.41 0.03 0.44 0.05 0.04 0.07 0.34 0.04	1.45 8.7
1.16 8.11 113.0 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.05 0.01 0.05 0.01 113.0 25 0.01 0.05 0.05	VASVA ZOS	10V 502 H-2	29 0.011 60.0	0.45 0.05 0.44 0.08 0.01 0.02 0.11 0.02	1.16 8.6
	ANN SOS	101 502 H-2	0.211 110.0 22	0.53 0.03 0.44 0.05 0.00 0.01 0.06 0.01	1.16 8.1
		•			

•

					N N N	ESTICI	2001	BLATIO	Sano	KITEDA	NOW I	NC VI	NABLES				
AUTOMATIC CONPARE	15 - 0FI	AATI C	0M 001	(TURN	10 (041			1 .	7 1 1					2	Anna a		
COMPARE OPERATION	1 001 FI	103	41 TH 05	ERATI:	CA COL	E bio bio bio	• (,	L	nes e ge	Service and the service of the servi	an shares and				
- DPSCHATC HATERLAL		20102	PLPIH.	SMLD SMLD	EED1.						-20333	, 1011 1	TOOL	· 57660	CNC.	- 100 100	10 10 10
YARIABLE - HARDHE 1 51 550 1 51 4510	155 200 210		0.150	10. 185.	0150	• #	• • •	2 4	ariana) Maja Nadawa II.	an na an Anna an Anna Anna Anna Anna An	\$ *		10-51 12-51	6.2.	0.0	1 1 1	
VARIABLE - MARDNE 1 51 5140 1 51 5140	55 210 300		8- 150 0. 150	111.	8510 ·	<pre>/ •</pre>	•••	× •		• •	۰.	• •	16-08 10-08	- 15.9	010		~ ~
VARIABLE - NARDIE 1 51 1340 1 51 1340	1100	2 22	0.150 0. 150	340.	. 015¢	• •	•••	• •	· .	. .	· •		10-C6	-14.1	0.0	• • • •	~ ~ ~
VARIABLE - MARDHE 1 51 4510 1 51 4510	88 77 78 78	20	0.150	275.	-0150	••	••	· .	, <i>.</i>	7 4	• •	- -	10-01 10-01	. 21.8	٥. ك	2 - 2 - 8 - Pi	• •••
YARIABLE - HAADMEL VARIABLE - TOOL GI 1 51 536			8-150 0.150	225.	9110.	••	1 2	• •	• •	· .		±+4 €=4 2 4 ² €		.10.2	1.1	• ••••	-
YARIAALE - HARDNEI 1 51 5360 1 51 1360	1		0.150		. 0100	۰ ،	~ .	× •	• •	• •	۰.	9 9-4 1 9		• 0.0 •	30.0		
чаятавье - найонея 1 51 5316 1 51 5316			0.150	125.	. 0050	• •	•••	• /	· .	• •	••	9		- 0.44.	0.01	l nem	

.

COMPUTER PRINTOUT OF A SELECTIVE SEARCH ON SURFACE INTEGRITY BIBLIOGRAPHY FILE

NO, OF PECORDS ON FILE RECORD FARCUTION 15 666.

. ----

Sugar Burn

MATERIAL LEARCH.

OPERATION SEARCH. FROMEOSICS SEARCH.

AUTMOR	MATERIAL	OFERATION	PROPERTIES	SOURCE NO.
	• •		A 8 C	•
ALERSANDROV, V.P.	10	2	L	194614
CHURARDY A D			AC	17767
CLORITC, P.A.	strated and support to support up -			
PONACHIL. H. J.	GEACL	DIMSKYTU	CENCURNE	
FICLO, M.	CABCF Z	ABLIT	LACE	105761
		ABL: 7		105 866
FICLD. M.				194401
71(10° H.		LITAV	ACH -	
GLIRMAN, L.A.	1 .	-	1	12261
MEMBEL MUT, R.D.	5.		CART	507955
KONERCENTY TE YA	a 12		2.4	242665
LIV. R.K.		AEI		
		01.	LUV S	11111
	ۍ س	-	U	175062
LOGIMOV, V.YE.	- 14		L	00000
HEYER, G.E.	2 []			
MITRYAVEV, K.F.		AIK	Cr.	172265
			CDFT	119059
SINCE C	1 . 1 .	218875	f CDF	119752
SINCLAIR, G.M.		2 TIEV	76 6	12/55
	~ (-		52258
CANSRIP, "P."	- 42-			www.
VAYSALY . P. P.	513	10	150	12000
				121565
		A A	AGL	740966
SLARCH COMPLETED. Reset switches and busi	CTABT TO BED		-	
ALL SWITCHES OF CALLS		THANGINE SEARC		

. .

,

NO FURTHER SEARCHES REQUESTED. CALL EXIT.

こんきしいう

ŝ

METAL REHOVAL ANTES FOR TURNING •	
* TOOL * MARK * MARK<	
MITERIAL CONDITION DIM INL RM FPN INL RM FPN FFN FFN <t< th=""><th> DEPTH + HETAL DEPTH + EEED + REMOVAL </th></t<>	 DEPTH + HETAL DEPTH + EEED + REMOVAL
ALLY ANN 310 HSS 80. 2.000 152. 0.00 FALLY ANN 310 HSS 70. 2.000 114. 0.01 FALV ANN 310 HSS 60. 2.000 114. 0.01 FALV ANN 310 HSS 60. 2.000 114. 0.01 FALV ANN 310 CABIDE 210. 2.000 134. 0.01 FALV ANN 310 CABIDE 180. 2.000 343. 0.01 FALV ANN 310 CABIDE 180. 2.000 343. 0.01 FALV ANN 310 CABIDE 180. 2.000 343. 0.01 FALV ANN 310 CABIDE 180. 0.001 27. 0.002 40. 0.014 FALV ANN 310 HSS 90. 6.000 27. 0.002 41. 10. FALV ANN 310 HSS 90. 6.000 27. 0.002 4. 0.016 4. FALV ANN 310 HSS 90. 6.000 27. 0.002 4. 1. <th>• CUT • RATE • RATE • IN. • IN/MIN • CUIN/MIN</th>	• CUT • RATE • RATE • IN. • IN/MIN • CUIN/MIN
Silv Nun 310 HSS 70. 2.000 131. 0.01 Salav Ann 310 HSS 60. 2.000 14. 0.01 Salav Ann 310 HSS 60. 2.000 14. 0.01 Salav Ann 310 CARBIDF 180. 2.000 543. 0.01 Salav Ann 310 CARBIDF 180. 2.000 543. 0.01 Salav Ann 310 CARBIDF 180. 2.000 543. 0.01 Salav Ann 310 CARBIDF 150. 2.000 343. 0.01 Salav Ann 310 CARBIDF 150. 2.000 286. 0.01 Salav Ann 310 CARBIDF 150. 2.000 24. 0.01 Salav FPI III. HILLING HILLING HILLING HILL HIL	7 0.025 1.06 0.16
ALUV ANN 310 HSS 60. 2.000 114. 0.01 ALUV ANN 310 CARBIDE 210. 2.000 401. 0.001 BALUV ANN 310 CARBIDE 210. 2.000 491. 0.011 BALUV ANN 310 CARBIDE 150. 2.000 345. 0.011 BALUV ANN 310 CARBIDE 150. 2.000 345. 0.011 BALUV ANN 310 CARBIDE 150. 2.000 286. 0.011 BALUV ANN 310 CARBIDE 150. 2.000 286. 0.014 BALUV ANN 310 HSS 65. 6.000 41. 0.008 41. BALUV ANN 310 HSS 65. 6.000 41. 0.016 41. BALUV ANN 310 HSS 65. 6.000 41. 0.016 41. BALUV ANN 310 HSS 60. 6.000 41. 0.008 41. 0.008 41. 0.008 41. 0.008 41. 0.008 41. 0.008 41. 0.008 41. <td< td=""><td>18 0.100 1.06 0.67</td></td<>	1 8 0.100 1.06 0.6 7
SALAV ANN 310 CARBIDF 10. 2.000 401. 0.001. SALAV ANN 310 CARBIDF 180. 2.000 345. 0.011 SALAV ANN 310 CARBIDF 180. 2.000 345. 0.011 SALAV ANN 310 CARBIDF 180. 2.000 345. 0.011 SALAV ANN 510 CARBIDF 150. 2.000 345. 0.011 BALAV ANN 510 CARBIE 6.011. • • 0.011 AATERIAL • TOOLL • • MILL • • 0.01 BALAV ANN 510 HS 90. 6.000 41. 0.003 40. BALAV ANN 310 HS 90. 6.000 41. 0.024. 40 BALAV ANN 310 HS 90. 6.000 41. 0.024. 40 BALAV<	0 0.200 1.14 1.44
SALVV AIN 310 CARBIDF 180. 2.000 345. 0.011 BALAV AIN 310 CARBIDE 150. 2.000 285. 0.011 BALAV AIN 310 CARBIDE 150. 2.000 285. 0.011 BALAV AIN 310 CARBIDE 150. 2.000 285. 0.011 BALAV AIN 310 CARBIDE 500 286. 0.001 286. 0.011 BALAV AIN 310 HSS 90. 6.000 57. 0.005 4. 4. BALAV AIN 310 HSS 90. 6.000 25. 0.006 4. 0.016 4. BALAV AIN 310 HSS 65. 6.000 25. 0.005 4. 0.024 4 BALAV AIN 310 HSS 6. 0.00 25. 0.005 4. 0.024 4 BALAV AIN 310 HSS 6. 0.00 25. 0.005 4. 0.024 4 BALAV AIN 310 HSS 6.000 25. 0.005 4. 0.024 4	7 0.025 2.80 0.44
SALV AIN 310 CARBIDE 150. 2.000 286. 0.01 METAL REHOVAL RATES FOR FACE MILLING METAL REHOVAL RATES FOR FACE MILLING MILL * FEED *NO* WIL * * * * TOOL * * MILL * MIL * MIL * * MIL * MIL * * MIL * MIL * MIL * * MIL * MIL * * * * * * * * * MIL *	1 0.100 5.78 2.31
METAL REHOVAL RATES FOR FACE MILLING METAL REHOVAL RATES FOR FACE MILLING • </td <td>5 0.200 4.29 5.39</td>	5 0.200 4.29 5.39
• •	DTH +DEPTH + FEED + METAL
6AL&V ANN 31C HSS 90. 6.000 57. 0.002 4. 0.008 4 6AL&V ANN 310 HSS 65. 6.000 41. 0.004 4. 0.016 4 6AL&V ANN 310 HSS 65. 6.000 41. 0.004 4. 0.016 4 6AL&V ANN 310 HSS 40. 6.000 25. 0.006 4. 0.024 4 6AL&V ANN 310 HSS 40. 6.000 25. 0.006 4. 0.024 4 6AL&V ANN 310 HSS 40. 6.000 25. 0.006 4. 0.024 4 ALA ANN 310 HSS 40. 6.000 25. 0.005 4. 0.024 4 ALA ANN 310 HSS ANN ANN 310 HSS 0.250 458. 0.000	UIN TOEFIN TEEU TEEU UIN TEENUVAL UT + CUT + AIN FUIN FUIN/MB
6AL&V ANN 310 HSS 65. 6.000 41. 0.004 4. 0.016 4 6AL&V ANN 310 HSS 40. 6.000 25. 0.006 4. 0.024 4 6AL&V ANN 310 HSS 40. 6.000 25. 0.006 4. 0.024 4 6AL&V ANN 310 HSS 40. 6.000 25. 0.006 4. 0.024 4 6 • • • • • • • • 6 • • • • • • • • MATERIAL • • • • • • • 6AL&V ANN 310 HSS 30. 0.250 458. 0.000	4.000 0.050 0.45 0.05
GAL&V ANN 310 HSS 40. 6.000 25. 0.006 4. 0.024 4 METAL REMOVAL RATES FOR DRILLING • • • 1001 •	4.000 0.100 0.66 0.26
METAL REMOVAL RATES FOR DRILLING • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	4.000 0.200 0.61 0.48
• • • 1001 •	
• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	* • METAL
MATERIAL • CONDITION • BHN • GRADE • FPM • IN. • RPM • IPR 6al4v ann 310 HSS 30. 0.250 458. 0.00	*PENETRATION* REMOVAL * RATE * RATE
6AL4V ANN 310 HSS 30. 0.250 458. 0.00	* IN./AIN. + CU.IN./MIN.
	15 2.29 0.11
GAL4V ANN 310 HSS 30, 0.500 229, 0.00	1.37 0.27
6AL4V ANN 310 HSS 30 1.000 114. 0.00	18 0.91 0.72

COST STUDY ANALYSIS OF IBM 1130 COMPUTER

The following statistics are based on

1. Fifteen time studies performed on fifteen inquiries comparing IBM 1130 Computer Processing versus IBM Series 50 Configuration Processing.

Þ

2. 500 calculations for production rates and machining costs.

Inquiry Processing

Average number of inquiries processed per month=	75
Percentage of Inquiries requiring searches =	57%
Inquiries per month for which searches are	
performed are 57% x 75 =	43
Average cost for processing inquiries with the	
IBM Series 50 Configuration =	\$70.09
Average cost for processing inquiries with the	
IBM 1130 Computing System=	\$48.92
Average savings for processing an inquiry using	
the IBM 1130 Computer=	\$21.17
Inquiry processing savings per month = 43 x \$21.17=	\$910,31
Savings per month in sorting and handling of Index	
files = 50 hrs. x \$8.16 per hr.=	\$408.00
Savings per month in sorting and handling of Inquiry	
files = 5 hrs. x 8.16 per hr.=	\$40,80
Total savings per month=	\$1,359.11
Additional cost per month for IBM 1130 Computer=	\$306.00
Savings per month =	\$1,053.11
Savings per year, 12 x \$1,053.11=	\$12,637.32

Calculations For Production Rates and Machining Costs

In preparing a data product pertaining to Calculations for Production Rates and Machining Costs, 500 calculations were required: Time per calculation using desk calculator= Time per calculation using IBM 1130 Computer= Savings per calculation= Time Savings = 500 x 14.7 x 7350 min.= Cost Savings = 122.5 x \$8.16= \$999.60

\$12,637.32
\$999.60
\$13,636.92

SEE APPENDIX, PAGE A-11

.....

INQUIRY PROCESSING FLOW CHART

E an e an an a



20

FLOURE 18

5. F. .

35

.

SEE APPENDIX, PAGE A-11

•

÷

٢

35M04234 6W 1	<section-header><text><text><text><text><text></text></text></text></text></text></section-header>	Reference and	
TYPICAL INCULAT INPL			

SEE APPENDIX, PAGE A-11

.

190

a service and a state of a service of the service state of the service of the ser

21

•

FIGURE 17

(<u>.</u>

ANALYSIS OF INQUIRIES BY STATE

October 1, 1964 - September 30, 1968

10 STATES LEADING IN INQUIRIES						
STATES	COMPANIES	INDIVIDUALS	NO. OF INQUIRIES			
CALIFORNIA	121	227	348			
LONNECTICUT	40	62	104			
ILLINUIS Îndiana	84	112	176			
MASSACHURETTE	50	82	118			
MICHIGAN	49	13	104			
NEW JERSEY	45	93	172			
NEW YORK	93	146	244			
0+10	240	448	876			
PENNSYLVANIA	90	148	203			
TGTAL	893	1511	2561			
	OTHER STATES SUBMIT	ITING INQUIRIES				
ALABAMA	8	ß	11			
ARIZONA	9	15	31			
ARKANSAS	1 1	1 1	1			
COLORADO	8	18	31			
DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA	9	1 11	14			
ULLAWARE FLORIDA		17	26			
GEORGIA			00			
IOWA			14			
KANSAS		1 10	12			
KENTUCKY	12	20	39			
LOUISIANA	3	7	12			
MAINE	6	7	10			
MARYLAND	20	26	43			
MINNESOTA	10	1 14	17			
MISSISSIPPI Missouri	2	2	2			
NEBRASKA	10	30				
NEW HAMPSHIRE	6	1 1	7			
NEW MEXICO	Ž	1 11 1	18			
NORTH CAROLINA	5	.4	14			
URLANONA CALCON	3	12	27			
URESON Bunne telene			9			
	2		10			
TENNESSEE	6	20	1			
TEXAS	16	28	59			
UTAH	5	6	10			
VERMONT	5	1 •	10			
VIRGINIA	16	20	33			
WEST VINGINIA	7	-7	13			
WASHINGTON		23	30			
	19	29	43			
TOTAL	245	417	754			
TOTAL FOR ALL STATES	1138	1828	3315			

FIGURE 18

22 ·

SEE APPENDIX, PAGE A-12

	SUMMARY OF SPECIFIC INQUIRIES BY TYPE OF INQUIRY	10/1/84 to 1/31/86	2/1/66 to 1/31/67	2/1/67 to 1/31/68	2/1/68 to 9/30/68
	October 1, 1964 — September 30, 1968		NO. OF I	QUIRIES	
1.	RECOMMENDATIONS FOR A SPECIFIC MACHINING SITUATION. Typical Example: Requested recommendations for turning Waspaloy in the solution treated and aged condition.	73	116	180	144
2.	STARTING RECOMMENDATIONS FOR AN EXTENSIVE GROUP OF MACHINING SITU/TIONS. Typical Example: Requested machinability data on AM-350, S-818, HS-25, HS-31, Inconel X-750, Unitemp M-252 and Mastelloy R-235.	118	264	330	345
3.	INFORMATION PERTAINING TO NEW MACHINING PROCESSES, EQUIPMENT AND TOOLS. Typical Example: Requested information on the manufacturor of equipment called "Liquid Lathe."	45	27	78	104
4.	COORDINATION AND POTENTIAL USE OF AFMDC. Typical Example: Requested detailed information on services available from AFMDC.	11	29	40	48
5.	VISITS TO THE CENTER. Typical Example: Visited to coordinate with AFMDC to determine services available and to review System details.	60	78	56	8
6.	*REQUESTS FOR SPECIFIC DOCUMENTS, REPORTS, BOOKS, PAPERS, ETC. Typical Example: Requested a list of reports available for machining of titanium. Also wanted cost of each report.	70*	71*	11 6*	84*
7.	GENERAL INFORMATION SUCH AS SAFETY PRACTICES, NAMES OF FIRMS NAVING CERTAIN MACHINING CAPABILITIES, TOOL MATERIAL PROPERTIES, ETC. Typical Example: Requested the names of people to contact in the fields of metal removal such as EDM, ECM, ECG, EDG, USM, CHM, EDM, LDM, Abrasive Machining and Not Machining.	48	30	18	22
8.	REQUESTS FOR DIDLIOGRAPHIES AND ADSTRACTS. Typical Example: Request for bibliographies with abstracts covering use of coramic tools and abrasives in machining various materials.	12	4	11	13
9.	STATE-OF-THE-ART INFORMATION AND REPORTS. Typical Example: Suggestions for important manufacturing programs for the next five years in the field of material removal. Supply problem, approach and approximate funds.	14	8	20	1
10.	SPECIAL INJUIRIES AND REPORTS FOR U.S. AIR FORCE, MANUFACTURING TECHNOLOGY DIVISION. Typical Example: Requested a report on the progress during the last five years in machining of titaniim and hard to machine materials - state of the art.	12	4	2	۱
11,	EVALUATION, TRANSLATION AND REVIEW OF REPORTS, BOOKS, PAPERS, Typical Example: Requested an evaluation of a report published in Electro- Technology, October 1964, concerning adaptive control pessibilities.	14	12	8	4
12.	REQUEST FOR INFORMATION ON DERVILIUM. Typical Example: Request for information on mochinability data for beryllium using ECH, EDM, and other mothods.	11	15	14	18
13.	COMPARISON OF ONE PROCESS OR WATERIAL WITH ANOTHER. Typical Example: Requested a comparison of the machining of inconel W with Inconel X in both solution treated and solution treated and aged conditions, primarily in turning but also drilling and milling if possible.	15	13	14	ו
14.	INFORMATION PERTAINING TO CUTTING FLUIDS. Typical Example: Requested cutting fluid recommendations for titanium and a wide variaty of high temperature alloys and stainless steels.	15	22	16	22
15.	INFORMATION ON MACHINABILITY DESEARCH. Typical Example: Requested mochining information on the effect of work diameter on tool life, mathematical correlations of the various machining processes and the means of producting the surface quality in milling.	11	37	וו	187
18.	INFORMATION PERTAINING TO ESTIMATING COST, SETTING TIME STANDARDS, AND PRODUCTION RATES IN MACHINING. Typical Example: Requested information including formulas that could be used to product production rates and costs.			21	58
		585	736	1982	982
	-inis internet not include requests for published data products such as APNDC reports.				

GENERAL ANALYSIS OF INQUIRIES

FEBRUARY 1. 1966 - SEPTEMBER 30, 1968

		NO. OF INQUIRIES	
ITTE OF INQUIRT	2/1/66-1/31/67	2/1/67-1/31/68	2/1/68-9/30/68
ONE OPERATION ON ONE MATERIAL GROUP	90	160	110
ONE OPERATION ON A VARIETY OF MATERIAL GROUPS	50	63	112
SEVERAL OPERATIONS ON ONE MATERIAL GROUP	215	242	195
SEVERAL OPERATIONS ON SEVERAL MATERIAL GROUPS	124	170	151
UNITERM LINKED WITH AN OPERATION AND/OR GROUP	126	111	178
GENERAL MACHINING CONCEPTS (UNITERM)	131	256	236
TOTAL	736	1,002	982

ANALYSIS OF INQUIRIES BY MATERIAL GROUP

		NO. OF INQUIRIES	
MAILKIAL GRUUP	2/1/66-1/31/67	2/1/67-1/31/68	2/1/68-9/30/68
PLAIN CARBON & LOW ALLOY STEELS	177	262	293
ULTRA HIGH STRENGTH & TOOL STEELS	171	204	229
CAST IRON	33	36	124
STAINLESS STEELS	173	278	234
NICKEL ALLOYS	29	19	119
MARAGING STEELS	66	77	146
HIGH TEMPERATURE ALLOYS	254	327	309
TITANIUM ALLOYS	234	222	249
REFRACTORY ALLOYS	130	155	184
BERYLLIUM ALLOYS	46	60	88
ZIRCONIUM ALLOYS	7	22	70
ALUMINUM, MAGNESIUM, ZINC, LEAD & COPPER ALLOYS	80	86	149
PRECIOUS & RARE METALS	3	12	7
POWDER METALS	2	2	5
NONMETALLICS INCLUDING CERAMICS,			
PLASTICS, GRAPHITE & COMPOSITES	57	131	120
TOTAL	1,462	1,893	2,328

FEBRUARY 1, 1966 - SEPTEMBER 30, 1968

FIGURE 20

Star in Providence

(

ANALYSIS OF INQUIRIES BY TYPE OF MACHINING OPERATION

Sta. 19 75

FEBRUARY 1, 1966 - September 30, 1968

		NO. OF INQUIRIES	
UPERATIUN	2/1/66-1/31/67	2/1/67-1/31/68	2/1/68-9/30/68
CONVENTIONAL CHIP REMOVAL			
TURNING	367	499	403
BORING	48	52	83
MILLING (GENERAL)	10	30	129
	290	375	346
PERIPHERAL END MILLING	285	3/1	270
SLAB MILLING	6	20	20
THREAD MILLING	7	23	16
ALL OTHER TYPES OF MILLING	15	20	24
DRILLING	332	464	379
GUN DRILLING	7	24	30
REAMING	203	311	203
GEAR CUTTING	204	357	8
BROACHING	28	77	50
ROUTING	4	17	9
BANDSAWING	10	64	41
HACKSAWING	15	21	18
TOTAL	2,029	2,921	2,503
CONVENTIONAL GRINDING			
GENERAL GRINDING	27	33	50
SURFACE GRINDING	171	317	243
CYLINDRICAL GRINDING	89	193	89
INTERNAL GRINDING	15	38	23
CENTERLESS GRINDING	6	19	14
THREAD GRINDING	8	16	4
ABRASIVE MACHINING	4	17	3
ABRASIVE BELT GRINDING	7	17	3
ABRASIVE CUTOFF	12	21	4
HONING	1	15	t
TOTAL	342	701	444
ALTERNATE MACHINING METHODS			
ELECTRICAL DISCHARGE MACHINING	50	50	62
ELECTROCHEMICAL MACHINING	43	44	68
ELECTRUCHEMICAL GRINDING	26	2/	30
PHOTOCHEMICAL MACHINING	20	2	35 4
ULTRASONIC MACHINING	4	15	11
ELECTRON BEAM MACHINING	5	10	13
LASER MACHINING	3	20	14
ION BEAM MACHINING	1	1	5
ABRASIVE JET MACHINING FLECTRO-STREAM	0	3 4	3 5
TOTAL	144	235	250
MISCELLANEOUS			
BURNISHING	1	8	6
CONTROLLED ENERGY MACHINING	, o	1	5
SUB-ZERO MACHINING	3	7	6
HOT MACHINING	1 1	1	4
POLISHING	2	6	3
IMREAD ROLLING FLAME CUTTING	1	3 2	2 2
TOTAL	8	28	28
TOTAL	2,523	3,885	3,225

SEE APPENDIX, PAGE A-13

.

25

FIGURE 21

(

1, 1 ANALYSIS OF UNITERM TYPE INQUIRIES

FEBRUARY 1, 1986 - SEPTEMBER 30, 1968

		NO. OF REQUEST	
UN ITERN*	2/1/66-1/31/67	2/1/67-1/31/68	2/1/68-9/30/68
SURFACE INTEGRITY	27	92	64
NUMERICAL CONTROL	57	89	46
CUTTING FLUID	69	61	53
SURFACE FINISH	33	28	42
DISTORTION	27	34	23
CUTTING TOOLS - GENERAL	ç	22	17
TOLERANCE	2	16	13
6. RATIO	11	15	13
CERAMIC TOOLS	ę	14	12
SUPER HARD HIGH SPEED STEEL	£	=	7
ADAPTIVE CONTROL	-	10	æ
RESIDUAL STRESS	8	10	14
TITANIUM CARBIDE	2	æ	5
PRECISION MACHINING	-	g	7
TOOL SURFACE TREATMENT	-	ß	9
METAL REMOVAL RATES	-		13
TIME STANDARDS	2	ლ	13
TOTAL	256	435	362

SEE APPENDIX, PAGE A-14

AIR FORCE MACHINABILITY DATA CENTER

SUMMARY OF SPECIFIC INQUIRIES BY SIC* NUMBER

February 1, 1968 - September 30, 1968

			<u>NUI</u>	ABER OF INQUIRIES	
SIC MAJOR GROUP NO.	SIC Industry No.		BY SIC Industry No.	BY SIC Najor Group No.	× OF Total
91		FEDERAL GOVERNMENT		56	5.7
	9100	U.S. DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE	1		
	9100	USAF - WRIGHT FIELD	13		
	9100	USAF - APO, NEW YORK.	1		
	9100	USAF - TINKER AIR FORCE BASE	12		
	9100	U.S. ARMY	0		
	9100	NATIONAL AFRONAUTICS & SPACE ADMINISTRATION	Э Д		
	9190	BSDA DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE	1		
	9190	SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION	6		
	9190	U.S. PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE	t		
92		STATE GOVERNMENTS		28	2.9
	9200	STATE OF ILLINOIS	1		
	9200	STATE OF INDIANA	2		
	9200	STATE OF MICHIGAN	20		
	9200	STATE OF TENNESSEE	5		
19	<u> </u>	ORDNANCE AND ACCESSORIES		3	.3
	1929	AMMUNITION EXCEPT FOR SMALL ARMS	1		
	1931	TANKS & TANK COMPONENTS	1		
	1951	SMALL ARMS	1		
22		TEXTILE WILL PRODUCTS		1	.1
	2262	FINISHERS OF BROAD WOVEN FABRICS OF MAN- Made and Silk	1		
		DADED AND ALLIED BRADUCTE			
26	2654	SANITARY FOOD CONTAINERS	1	·	• •
27	······································	PRINTING, PUBLISHING, AND ALLIED INDUSTRIES		13	1.3
	2721	PERIODICALS: PUBLISHING, PUBLISHING, AND			
		PRINTING	13		
28		CHEMICALS AND ALLIED PRODUCTS		15	1.5
	2813	INDUSTRIAL GASES	2		
	2819	INDUSTRIAL INORGANIC LHEMICALS	I		
	6621	NONVOLCANIZABLE ELASTOMERS	2		
	2824	SYNTHETIC ORGANIC FIBERS, EXCEPT CELLULOSIC	ī		
	2833	MEDICINAL CHEMICALS AND BOTANICAL PRODUCTS	9		
29		FETROLEUM REFINING AND RELATED INDUSTRIES	_	7	.7
	2911	PETROLEUM REFINING	7		
32	99 94	STONE, CLAY, BLASS, AND CONCRETE PRODUCTS Pressed and Blown Glass and Glassware	3	9	.9
	3291	ABRASIVE PRODUCTS	6		

* Standard Industrial Classification Manual (SIC), Executive Office of the President, Bureau of the Budget, 1967.

SEE APPENDIX, PAGE A-14

,4

S. Congress

27

FIGURE 23
NUMBER OF INQUIRIES

٢

			-		
SIC I AJOR B ROUP NO.	SIC INDUSTRY 	_	BY SIC Industry No.	BY SIC Major group No.	% OF Total
33		PRIMARY METAL INDUSTRIES		49	5.0
	3312	BLAST FURNACE (UNCLUDING COKE OVENS),			
		STEELS WORKS, & ROLLING MILLS	1		
	3313	ELECTROMETALLURGICAL PRODUCTS	1		
	3321	GRAY INON FOUNDRIES Stern Foundries	11		
	3323	DEL FOUNDRIES PRIMARY SMELTING AND REFINING OF 1 FAD	4		
	3334	PRIMARY PRODUCTION OF ALUMINUM	5		
	3339	PRIMARY SMELTING & REFINING OF NONFERROUS	-		
		METALS	13		
	3341	SECONDARY SMELTING & REFINING OF NONFERROUS	-		
		METALS	5		
	3351	ROLLING, DRAWING, AND EXTRUDING OF COPPER	1		
	3309	NONFERROUS CASTINGS	5		
		THUR AND STEEL FURGINGS	·	······································	
34		FABRICATED METAL PRODUCTS. EXCEPT			
•••		ORDNANCE, MACHINERY, AND TRANSPORTATION			
		EQUIPMENT		65	6.6
	3411	METAL CANS	1		
	3423	HAND AND TOOLS, EXCEPT MACHINE TOOLS AND			
		HAND SAWS	1		
	3429	HARDWARE	4		
	3443	FABRICATED PLATE WORK (BOILER SHOPS)	35		
	3444	SHEET METAL WORK Schrw Machine Phonicte	2		
	3452	BOLTS, NUTS, SCREWS, RIVETS AND WASHERS	2		
	3461	METAL STAMPINGS	ī		
	3471	ELECTROPLATING, PLATING, POLISHING,			
		ANODIZING AND COLORING	2		
	3491	METAL SHIPPING BARRELS, DRUMS, KEGS, AND			
		PAILS	3		
	3494	VALVES & PIPE FITTINGS, EXCEPT PLUMBERS'	•		
	2.444	BRASS GOODS	3		
	3499	FABRICATED METAL PRODUCTS	Ż		
30	3611	MAGNINERI, SAGEFI ELEGIRIGAE Stram Engines, Stram, Gar, and Hydrahijic		210	21.4
	3311	THRAINES, AND STEAM, GAS, AND HYDRAHLIC			
		TURBINE GENERATOR SET UNITS	13		
	3519	INTERNAL COMBUSTION ENGINES	5		
	3522	FARM MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT	2		
	3533	OIL FIELD MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT	2		
	3 5 3 4	ELEVATORS AND MOVING STAIRWAYS	2		
	3536	HOISTS, INDUSTRIAL CRANES, AND MONORIAL SYSTEM	s 1		
	3541	MACHINE TOOLS, METAL CUTTING TYPES	56		
	3542	MACHINE TOOLS, METAL FORMING LYPES	3		
	3544	SPECIAL DIES AND TOOLS, DIE SEIS , JIGS AND Findinge			
	1845	MACHINE TOOL ACCESSORIES AND MEASURING DEVICES	27		
	3548	METALWORKING MACHINERY, EXCEPT MACHINE TOOLS:	•••		
		AND POWER DRIVEN HAND TOOLS	3		
	3551	FOOD PRODUCTS MACHINERY	8		
	3559	SPECIAL INDUSTRY MACHINERY	5		
	3561	PUMPS, AIR GAS COMPRESSORS, AND PUMPING	_		
		EQUIPMENT	9		
	3562	HALL AND ROLLER BEARINGS	3		
	3564	BLOWERS AND EXHAUST VENTILATION FANS	i		
	3200	MECHARICAL FUELF IRANAMISSION EQUIPMENT, Everet Rali and Relieb Afadines	,		
		EAVETT DELL MAN AVELLA BEARINGS	-		
	1647	INDUSTRIAL PROCESS FURNACES AND OVENS			
	3567	INDUSTRIAL PROCESS FURNACES AND OVENS General Industrial Machinery and Fouipment	2		
	3567 3569 3572	INDUSTRIAL PROCESS FURNACES AND OVENS General Industrial Machinery and Equipment Typewriters	2		
	3567 3569 3572 3574	INDUSTRIAL PROCESS FURNACES AND OVENS General Industrial Machinery and Equipment Typewriters Calculating and Accounting Machines, Except	2		

FIGURE 23 (cont.)

28

.•

•

NUMBER OF INQUIRIES

(.....

SIC AJOR Broup No.	SIC Industry No.		BY SIC Industry No.	BY SIC Major group No.	% OF Total
35		WACHINERY, EXCEPT ELECTRICAL (cont.)			
	3579	OFFICE MACHINES	3		
	3582	COMMERCIAL LAUNDRY, DRY CLEANING,			
		AND PRESSING MACHINES	1		
	3585	AIR CONDITIONING EQUIPMENT AND			
		COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL REFRIGERATION	•		
	2501	MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT	3		
	3291	ELECTRICAL	39		
36		FIECTOICAI MACHINEDY EAUIDMENT		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
50		AND SUPPLIES		80	8.1
	3611	ELECTRIC MEASURING INSTRUMENTS AND		÷-	•••
		TEST EQUIPMENT	8		
	3613	SWITCHGEAR AND SWITCHBOARD APPARATUS	1		
	3621	MOTORS AND GENERATORS	2		
	3622	INDUSTRIAL CONTROLS	4		
	3624	CARBON AND GRAPHITE PRODUCTS	T		
	3629	ELECTRICAL INDUSTRIAL APPARATUS	3		
	3641	ELECTRIC LAMPS	!		
	3643	CURRENT - CARRYING WIRING DEVICES	I		
	3651	RADIO AND IELEVISION RECEIVING SETS, EXCEPT	•		
	3663	COMMUNICATION TYPES	2		
	3002	AND DETECTION FOULEMENT AND APPADATUS	43		
	3673	TRANSMITTING, INDUSTRIAL, AND SPECIAL	45		
	3073	PURPOSE FLECTRON TURES	1		
	3679	ELECTRONIC COMPONENTS AND ACCESSORIES	9		
	3694	ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT FOR INTERNAL			
		COMBUSTION ENGINES	4		
37		TRANSPORTATION EQUIPMENT		313	33.9
-	3711	MOTOR VEHICLES	12		
	3712	PASSENGER CAR BODIES	1		
	3714	MOTOR VEHICLE PARTS AND ACCESSORIES	5		
	3721	AIRCRAFT AND MISSILES	197		
	3722	AIRCRAFT ENGINES & ENGINE PARTS -			
		MISSILE ENGINES	70		
	3729	AIRCRAFT PARTS & AUXILIARY EQUIPMENT -			
		MISSILE PARTS	45		
	3731	SHIP BUILDING AND REPAIRING	1		
	3/32	BOAT BUILDING AND REPAIRING			
	3741	LUCOMOTIVES AND PARTS	·		
38		PROFESSIONAL, SCIENTIFIC, AND Controlling instruments; photographic and optical godds: watches and clocks		11	1.1
	3811	ENGINEERING, LABORATORY, AND SCIENTIFIC		• *	
		AND RESEARCH INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED			
		EQUIPMENT	6		
	3822	AUTOMATIC TEMPERATURE CONTROLS	1		
	3831	OPTICAL INSTRUMENTS AND LENSES	1		
	3842	ORTHOPEDIC, PROSTHETIC, AND SURGICAL			
		APPLIANCES AND SUPPLIES	2		
	3861	PHOTOGRAPHIC EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES	1		
50		WHOLESALE TRADE		2	. 2
	5 082	CONSTRUCTION AND MINING MACHINERY AND			
		EQUIPMENT	1		
	5091	METALS AND MINERALS	1		
60	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	BANKING		1	.1
	6025	NATIONAL BANKS, MEMBERS OF THE FEDERAL		•	•••
	••••	RESERVE SYSTEM	1		

ij

4

FIGURE 23 (cont.)

.

NUMBER OF INQUIRIES

NAJOR Broup No.	SIC Industry <u>No.</u>		BY SIC Industry No.	BY SIC Major Group No.	% OF Total
73		MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS SERVICES		34	3.5
	7311	ADVERTISING AGENCIES	1		
	7 3 9 1	COMMERCIAL RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT			
		LABORATORIES	29		
	7392	BUSINESS, MANAGEMENT, ADMINISTRATIVE AND CONSULTING SERVICES	4		
82		FDUCATIONAL SERVICES		A2	4.3
•-	8211	FLEMENTARY AND SECONDARY SCHOOLS	8	76	4.3
	8221	COLLEGES. UNIVERSITIES. AND PROFESSIONAL	0		
		SCHOOLS	5		
	8231	LIBRARY AND INFORMATION CENTERS	29		
86	<u></u>	NONPROFIT WEMBERSHIP ORGANIZATIONS		5	
	8611	BUSINESS ASSOCIATIONS	1	Ŭ	••
	8621	PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIP ORGANIZATIONS	4		
89	<u></u>	WISCELLANEOUS SERVICES		17	1.8
	8911	ENGINEERING AND ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES	12	.,	
	8921	NONPROFIT EDUCATIONAL AND SCIENTIFIC	• =		
		RESEARCH AGENCIES	5		
			TOTALS	982	100.0%

FIGURE 23 (cont.)

Same 18

30

.

AIR FORCE MACHINABILITY DATA CENTER

GOVERNMENT AGENCIES AND SERVICES SUPPORTED DIRECTLY AND INDIRECTLY BY AFMDC INQUIRIES

February 1, 1968 - September 30, 1968

CATEGORY

Α.	TOTAL INQUIRIES FOR THE PERIOD FEBRUARY 1, 1968 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 1968	982
	INQUIRIES BY ACADEMIC AND COMMERCIAL SOURCES NOT IDENTIFIABLE WITH GOVERNMENT PURPOSES	47
	INGUIRIES IDENTIFIED AS SUPPORTING GOVERNMENT PURPOSES	935
.	DIRECT IN DUINIES BY GOVERNMENT AGENCIES (USAF, NASA, etc.)	70
ui	INGUIRIES BY CONTRACTORS IDENTIFIED DIRECTLY WITH SPECIFIC GOVERNMENT SERVICES OR AGENCIES (USAF, NASA, etc.)	390
	INQUIRIES BY COMPANIES IDENTIFIED INDIRECTLY WITH SPECIFIC GOVERNMENT SERVICES OR AGENCIES (USAF, NASA, etc.)	475

		AIR FORCE	U.S. NAVY	U.S. ARMY	AEC	NASA	TOTAL	
	DIRECT INQUIRIES BY GOVERNMENT AGENCIES	28	8	œ	20	G	R	
ш́	INQUIRIES BY CONTRACTORS IDENTIFIED DIRECTLY With Specific Government Services or Agencies (USAF, Masa, etc.)	320	15	12	=	32	390	
u.	INQUIRIES BY COMPANIES IDENTIFIED INDIRECTLY With Specific Government Services or Agencies (USAF, NASM, etc.) Total of 475; distribution by ratio or pro- portion of inquiries counted in E above.	380	80 	د ۲	13	86	475	
చ	TOTAL TECHNICAL INQUIRIES ASSISTING Government Purposes	736	42	86	4	"	935	

31

SEE APPENDIX, PAGE A-14

.

•

.

. (C.4

and a second sec

COMPANIES & AGENCIES SUBMITTING INQUIRIES TO AFMDC

October 1, 1964 - January 31, 1968

ABEX CORPORATION, MAHWAH, N.J. ABORN, DR. ROBERT H., MILLINGTON, N.J. ACF INDUSTRIES, INC., ALBUQUERQUE, N.M. ACCURATE BUSHING COMPANY, GARWOOD, N.J. ACRALOC CORPORATION, OAK RIDGE, TENN. ADAMAS CARBIDE CORP., KENILWORTH, N.J. ADKINS & HUMINIK, ALEXANDRIA, VA. AEROJET-GENERAL CORPORATION, AZUSA, CALIF. AEROJET-GENERAL CORPORATION, CLAREMONT, CALIF. AEROJET-GENERAL CORPORATION, DOWNEY, CALIF. AEROJET-GENERAL CORPORATION, SACRAMENTO, CALIF. AEROJET-GENERAL CORPORATION, DAYTON, OHIO AERONCA INC., MIDDLETOWN, OHIO AEROPROJECTS INC., WEST CHESTER, PA. AEROQUIP CORPORATION, JACKSON, MICH. AEROQUIP CORPORATION, VAN WERT, OHIO AEROSPACE CORPORATION, SAN BERNARDING, CALIF. AEROSPACE RESEARCH APPLICATIONS CENTER, BLOOMINGTON, IND. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF MINING METALLURGICAL & PETROLEUM ENGINEERS, NEW YORK, N.Y. AIR FORCE HEADQUARTER, WASHINGTON, D.C. AIR FORCE REPRESENTATIVE, THE MARTIN Co., DENVER, COLO. AIRESEARCH MANUFACTURING COMPANY, PHOENIX, ARIZ. AIRESEARCH MANUFACTURING COMPANY, LOS ANGELES, CALIF. ALLEGHENY-LUDLUM STEEL CORP., DUNKIRK, N.Y. ALLEGHENY-LUDIUM STEEL CORP., PITTSBURGH, PA. Alliance Tool Company Inc., St. Louis, Mo. ALLIED CHEMICAL CORP., MORRISTOWN, N.J. ALLIS-CHALMERS MANUFACTURING COMPANY, MILWAUKEE, WISC. ALLIS-CHALMERS MANUFACTURING COMPANY, NORWOOD, OHIO ALTAMIL CORPORATION, CHAMBERS AIRCRAFT DIV .. SHELBYVILLE, IND. ALUMINUM COMPANY OF AMERICA, LAFAYETTE, IND. Aluminum Company of America, Pittsburgh, Pa. ALUMINUM SMELTERS RESEARCH INSTITUTE, CHICAGO, ILL. AMERICAN AIRLINES INC., TULSA, OKLA. AMERICAN BOSCH ARMA CORPORATION, SPRINGFIELD, MASS. AMERICAN BRAKE SHOE COMPANY, ELVRIA, OHIO AMERICAN CYANAMID COMPANY, SANFORD, ME. American Heller Corporation, Detroit, Mich. AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF AERONAUTICS, LOS ANGELES, CALIF. AMERICAN LAUNDRY MACHINERY INDUSTRIES, CINCINNATI, OHIO AMERICAN MACHINE & FOUNDRY CO., YORK, PA. AMERICAN MACHINIST, CLEVELAND, OHIO AMERICAN SAW & MANUFACTURING COMPANY, EAST LONGMEADOW, MASS. AMERICAN SOCIETY FOR METALS, METALS PARK, OHIO AMERICAN SOCIETY OF TOOL & MANUFACTURING ENGINEERS, DEARBORN, MICH. AMERICAN TOOL WORKS, CINCINNATI, OHIO AMERICAN WELDING & MANUFACTURING CO., WARREN, OHIO AMES LABORATORY, AMES, IOWA AMETEK INC., SELLERSVILLE, PA. AMMUNITION PROCUREMENT & SUPPLY AGENCY, JOLIET, ILL. AMPCO METAL INC., MILWAUKEE, WISC. AMPHENOL CORPORATION, CHICAGO, ILL. ANDERSON BROTHERS MANUFACTURING CO., ROCKFORD, ILL. ANDREWS AIR FORCE BASE, WASHINGTON, D.C. ANOCUT ENGINEERING COMPANY, ELK GROVE VILLAGE, ILL. APEX CORPORATION, INDIANAPOLIS, IND. API CORPORATION, MIAMI, FLA. ARSONNE NATIONAL LABORATORY, ARGONNE, ILL. ARIZONA, UNIVERSITY OF, TUCSON, ARIZ. ARKWIN INDUSTRIES INC., WESTBURY, N.Y. ARMCO STEEL CORPORATION, BALTIMORE, MD. ARMCO STEEL CORPORATION, CINCINNATI, OHIO ARMCO STEEL CORPORATION, MIDDLETOWN, OHIO ARMCO STEEL CORPORATION, TORRANCE, CALIF. ARMSTRONG BLUM MFG. COMPANY, CINCINNATI, OHIO ARMY PROCUREMENT DISTRICT, CHICAGO, ILL.

ARO, INC., ARNOLD AIR FORCE STATION, TENN. ARROW GEAR COMPANY, DOWNERS GROVE, ILL. Arrowsmith Tool & Mfg. Corp., Los Angeles, Calif. ASTROSYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL INC., ROCKAWAY, N.J. Atlantic Research Corporation, Gainsville, Va. ATLANTIC RICHFIELD COMPANY, PHILADELPHIA, PA. ATLAS ALLOYS, CLEVELAND, OHIO AUTOMATION ACCESSORIES INC., CINCINNATI, OHIO AUTOMATION ACCESORIES INC., DAYTON, OHIO AUTOMATION INDUSTRIES INC., ABILENE, TEX. AUTOMOTIVE SERVICENTER INC., BALTIMORE, MD. AVCO CORPORATION, STRATFORD, CONN. AVCO CORPORATION, RICHMOND, IND. AVCO CORPORATION, WILMINGTON, MASS. AVCO CORPORATION, COLDWATER, OHIO AVCO CORPORATION, NASHVILLE, TENN. AVEY MACHINE TOOL COMPANY, COVINGTON, KY. AVILDSEN TOOL & MACHINES INC., NEW YORK, N.Y. BACHAN MANUFACTURING CO., POMPANO BEACH, FLA. BACKER TOOL & DIE, CINCINNATI, OHIO BADGER, F. SIDNEY, WOODLAND HILLS, CALIF. BADGERT & SMITH ASSOCIATES INC., CINCINNATI, OHIO BAKER OIL TOOLS INC., LOS ANGELES, CALIF. BALDWIN-LIMA-HAMILTON, BURNHAM, PA. BATTELLE MEMORIAL INSTITUTE, COLUMBUS, OHIO BATTELLE MEMORIAL INSTITUTE, RICHLAND, WASH. BATTELLE MEMORIAL INSTITUTE, LOS ANGELES, CALIF. BAUSCH & LOMB INCORPORATED, ROCHESTER, N.Y. BDSA DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, WASHINGTON, D.C. Beech Aircraft Co., Wichita, Kan. Bell Helicopter Company, Ft. Worth, Tex. BELL & HOWELL RESEARCH CENTER, PASADENA, CALIF. BELLOWS-VALVAIR CORPORATION, CINCINNATI, OHIO BELOIT CORPORATION, BELOIT, WISC. BELOIT EASTERN CORPORATION, DOWNINGTON, PA. BENDIX CORPORATION (THE), DETROIT, MICH. BENDIX CORPORATION (THE), SOUTHFIELD, MICH. BENDIX CORPORATION (THE), KANSAS CITY, MO. BENDIX CORPORATION (THE), TETERBORO, N.J. BENDIX CORPORATION (THE), SIDNEY, N.Y. BENDIX CORPORATION (THE), YORK, PA. BENDIX CORPORATION (THE), SOUTH BEND, IND. BENEDICT-MILLER INC., LYNDHURST, N.J. BENNET TECHNICAL SERVICES INC., CINCINNATI, OHIO BENRUS WATCH COMPANY, WATERBURY, CONN. BERCO MANUFACTURING COMPANY, WATERBURY, CONN. BERYLLIUM CORPORATION OF AMERICA (THE), READING. PA. BERYLLIUM CORPORATION OF AMERICA (THE). HAZELTON, PA. BESLY-WELLES CORPORATION, SOUTH BELOIT, ILL. BESLY-WELLES CORPORATION, CINCINNATI, OHIO BETHLEHEM STEEL CORPORATION, BETHLEHEN, PA. BIGGER COMPANY, C. M., READING, OHIO BLACK & DECKER MFG. Co., TOWSON, MD. BLISS COMPANY, E. W., SOUTH PORTLAND, ME. BOEING COMPANY (THE), WICHITA, KAN. BOEING COMPANY (THE), NEW ORLEANS, LA. BOEING COMPANY (THE), RENTON, WASH. BOEING COMPANY (THE), SEATTLE, WASH. BOEING COMPANY (THE), PHILADELPHIA, PA. BOEING COMPANY (THE), AUBURN, WASH. BOMAR COMPANY, CINCINNATI, OHIO BOOZ ALLEN APPLIED RESEARCH INC., NEW YORK, N.Y. BORG-WARNER CORPORATION, FREMONT, ONIO Borg-Warner Corporation, Chicago, Ill. BORGWANNEN CORPORATION, MILWAUKEE, WISC. Brad Foote Gear Works Inc., Cieero, Ill. Brands Machining Company, Portlanu, Pa. Brass & Bronze Institute, Chicago, Ill.

FISURE 25 .

32

SEE APPENDIX, PAGE A-14

(J.

BRIDGEPORT, UNIVERSITY OF, BRIDGEPORT, CONN. BRIGGS & STRATTON CORPORATION, MILWAUKEE, WISC. Brigham Young University, Provo, Utah BROOKS & PERKINS INC., DETROIT, MICH. BROWN & ROOT INC., HOUSTON, TEX. BROWN & SHARPE MANUFACTURING CO., DAYTON, OHIO BRUBAKER TOOL CORPORATION, MILLERSBURG, PA. BRUNSWICK CORPORATION, MUSKEGON, MICH. BRUSH BERYLLIUM COMPANY (THE), HAYWARD, CALIF. Brush Beryllium Company (The), Cleveland, Ohio Brush Beryllium Company (The), Elmore, Ohio BUCKEYE FOUNDRY COMPANY, CINCINNATI, OHIO BUDD COMPANY, NEWARK, DELA. BUERK TOOL & MACHINE CORPORATION, BUFFALO, N.Y. BUHR MACHINE TOOL COMPANY, DETROIT, MICH. BULLARD COMPANY, (THE), BRIDGEPORT, CONN. BUNKER-RAMO CORPORATION, CLEVELAND, OHIO BURGESS-NORTON MANUFACTURING CO., GENEVA, ILL. BURGMASTER CORPORATION, CINCINNATI, OHIO BURNDY CORPORATION, NORWALK, CONN. BURSON MARSTELLER ASSOCIATES, NEW YORK, N.Y.

CADILLAC GAGE COMPANY, ROSEVILLE, MICH. CALIFORNIA STATE PRISON, SAN QUENTIN, CALIF. California General Inc., Chula Vista, Calif. CAMCAR SCREW & MANUFACTURING CO., ROCKFORD, ILL. CAMERON IRON WORKS, HOUSTON, TEX. Carborundum Company (The), Niagara Falls, N.Y. CARLISLE CHEMICAL WORKS INC., READING, OHIO CARNEGIE INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY, PITTSBURGH, PA. CARPENTER STEEL COMPANY (THE), READING, PA. CARR TOOL COMPANY, NORWOOD, OHIO CARRIER AIR CONDITIONING CO., SYRACUSE, N.Y. CATERPILLAR TRACTOR COMPANY, DECATUR, ILL. CATERPILLAR TRACTOR COMPANY, PEORIA, ILL. CAVITRON ULTRASONICS, INC., LONG ISLAND, N.Y. CDS Engineering Inc., Santa Clara, Calif. Ceemco, Cincinnati, Ohio CELANESE FIBERS COMPANY, NARROWS, VA. CENTRAL MACHINE WORKS, INDIANAPOLIS, IND. CENTRO CORPORATION, DAYTON, OHIO CENTRAL FABRICATORS INC., CINCINNATI, OHIO CHAMBERLAIN MANUFACTURING CORPORATION, WATERLOO, IOWA WATERLOO, IOWA CHANDLER EVANS INC., WEST HARTFORD, CONN. CHASE BRASS & COPPER CO., SOLON, OHIO CHASE MANHATTAN BANK, NEW YORK, N.Y. CHICAGO CUTTING DIE COMPANY, CHICAGO, ILL. CHICAGO PROCUREMENT DETACHMENT, CHICAGO, ILL. CHRYSLER CORPORATION, NEW ORLEANS, LA. CHRYSLER CORPORATION, DEARBORN, MICH. CHUCKING MACHINE PRODUCTS INC., FRANKLIN PARK, ILL. CINCINNATE LATHE & TOOL COMPANY, CINCINNATE, OHIO CINCINNATI MILLING MACHINE COMPANY (THE). CINCINNATI, OHIO CINCINNATI MINE MACHINERY CO., CINCINNATI, OHIO CINCINNATI SHAPER COMPANY, WHITEWATER, OHIO CINCINNATI SUB-ZERO PRODUCTS INC., CINCINNATI, OHIO CINCINNATI, UNIVERSITY OF, CINCINNATI, ONIO CITRUS COLLEGE, AZUSA, CALIF. CLEARINGHOUSE FOR FEDERAL SCIENTIFIC & TECHNICAL INFORMATION, SPRINGFIELD, VA. CLEVELAND AUTOMATIC MACHINE TOOL CO., CINCINNATI, OHIO CLEVELAND PNEUMATIC TOOL CO., (THE), CLEVELAND, OHIO CLEVELAND TWIST DRILL COMPANY, CLEVELAND, OHIO CLEVITE CORPORATION, CLEVELAND, OHIO CLIMCO PRODUCTS INC., CINCINNATI, OHIO COBALT INFORMATION CENTER, COLUMBUS, OHIO COLLINS RADIO COMPANY, CEDAR RAPIDS, IOWA COLLINS RADIO COMPANY, DALLAS, TEX. COLT INDUSTRIES INC., BELOIT, WISC. COMSTOCK & WESCOTT INC., CAMBRIDGE, MASS. Concord-Renn Company, Cincinnati, Ohio Continental Aviation & Engineering Corp., DETROST, MICH. CONTINENTAL AVIATION & ENGINEERING CORP.,

TOLEDO, ONIO CONTINENTAL COPPER & STEEL CO., BRAEBURN, PA.

CONTINENTAL-EMSCO COMPANY, GARLAND, TEX. CONTINENTAL MOTORS CORPORATION, MUSKEGON, MICH. CONTINENTAL TOOL COMPANY, DETROIT, MICH. CONTROLS COMPANY OF AMERICA, JACKSONVILLE, ARK. CONVER STEEL & WIRE CO. INC., NEW YORK, N.Y. COORS CO., INC., H. F., INGLEWOOD, CALIF. COORS PORCELAIN COMPANY, GOLDEN, COLO. CORHART REFRACTORISS COMPANY, BUCHANNON, W. VA. CORNELL AERONAUTICAL LABORATORY INC., BUFFALO, N.Y. CORNING GLASS WORKS, CORNING, N.Y. CORPLAN ASSOCIATES, CHICAGO, ILI. CRAFTNEEDS INC., CIMCINNATI, OHIO CRANE CO., NEW CASTLE, PA. CRUCIBLE STEEL COMPANY OF AMERICA, CINCINNATI, OHIO CRUCIBLE STEEL COMPANY OF AMERICA, PITTSBURGH, PA. CUMMINS ENGINE COMPANY INC., COLUMBUS, IND. CURTISS-WRIGHT CORP., CALDWELL, N.J. CURTISS-WRIGHT CORP., WOOD-RIDGE, N.J. CURTISS-WRIGHT CORP., BUFFALO, N.Y. CUSTOM TOOLING CO., CINCINNATI, OHIO CYCLOPS CORPORATION (UNIVERSAL CYCLOPS), BRIDGEVILLE, PA. DALMO VICTOR COMPANY, BELMONT, CALIF. DATA INFORMATION GATHERING SERVICE, PALO ALTO, CALIF. DAVEWOOD SUPPLY COMPANY, ROCKFORD, ILL. DAYTON MALLEABLE INON CO., DAYTON, OHIO Dayton Research Institute, University of, Dayton, OHIO DEERE & COMPANY, MOLINE, ILL. DEFENSE CERAMIC INFORMATION CENTER, COLUMBUS, GHIO DEL MACHINE & WELDING WORKS INC., HOUSTON, TEX. DEPUY MANUFACTURING COMPANY, WARSAW, IND. DETROIT BROACH & MACHINE CO., ROCHESTER, MICH. Deutsch Company, Los Angeles, Calif. DIAMOND ALKALI COMPANY, PAYNESVILLE, ONIO Diamond, Tools & Abrasives Inc., Jupiter, Fla. DIAMONITE PRODUCTS MANUFACTURING CO., SHREVE, OHIO D-K PRODUCTS (DIV. SYMINGTON WAYNE CORP.) . CHICAGO, ILL. D-M-E CORPORATION, DETROIT, MICH. DO-ALL COMPANY, DES PLAINES, ILL. DOVER CORPORATION, LOUISVILLE, KY. Dover Corporation, Cincinnati, Ohio DOW CHEMICAL COMPANY (THE), DENVER, COLO. DOW CHEMICAL COMPANY (THE), DENIER, COLD. Dow Chemical Company (The), Golden, Colo. Dow Chemical Compony, (The), Midland, Mich. Drew Chemical Corporation, Boonton, N.J. DREXEL INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY, PHILADELPHIA, PA. DUNORE COMPANY, RACINE, WISC. DUNCAN MANUFACTURING CO., CINCINNATI, ONIO DUPONT DENEMOURS & CO. INC., E. I., WILMINGTON, DEL DUPONT DENEMOURS & CO. INC., E. I., MARTINSVILLE, V DYNA-TECH INC., DECATUR, ALA. EASTERN KENTUCKY UNIVERSITY, RICHMOND, KY. EASTMAN KODAK COMPANY, ROCHESTER, N.Y. EATON YALE & TOWN INC., SOUTH EUCLID, ONIO EATON YALE & TOWN INC., SAGINAW, MICH. ECIVRES INC., NORWOOD, OHIO EDMUNES MANUFACTURING CO., FARMINGTON, CONN. EIS Automotive Corporation (The), Middletown, Conn. EITEL-MCCULLOUGH INC., SAN CARLOS, CALIF. ELAND CORPORATION, XENIA, ONIO ELASTIC STOP-NUT CORP. OF AMERICA, UNION, N.J. ELECTRIC STORAGE BATTERY COMPANY (THE), PHILADELPHIA, PA. ELECTRICAL MACHINING INC., CINCINNATI, OHIO ELECTRO-JET TOOL COMPANY, CINCINNATI, OHIO ELECTRONIC SPECIALTY COMPANY, PORTLAND, ORE. ELLIOTT COMPANY, JEANNETTE, PA.

ELON CORP. OF MICHIGAN, TROV, MICH. EMERSON ELECTRIC COMPANY, LOS ANGELES, CALIF. EMERSON ELECTRIC COMPANY, ST. LOUIS, MO. EMI, CINCINNATI, ONIO EMBINEERING SOCIETIES LIBRARY, NEW YORK, N.Y. ENTWISTLE MANUFACTURING CO., PROVIDENCE, R. 1.

33

FIGURE 25 (cont.)

ERIE INDUSTRIES INC. FERNDALE, MICH. ERNST, HANS, CLEARWATER, FLA. ESARGE MANUFACTURING CO. INC., FT. LAUDERDALE, FLA. ESCO CORPORATION, LOS ANGELES, CALIF. ESSO RESEARCH & ENGINEERING CO., LINDEN, N.J. EUCLID MACHINE Co., INC., INDIANAPOLIS, IND. EX-CELL-O CORPORATION, LIMA, OHIO FAFNIR BEARING COMPANY (THE), NEW BRITAIN, CONN. FAIRCHILD HILLER CORPORATION, ROCKVILLE, MD. FAIRCHILD HILLER CORPORATION, FARMINGDALE, L.I., N.Y. FAIRCHILD PRECISION METALS PRODUCTS, EL CAJON, CALIF. FANSTEEL METALLURGICAL CORP., NO. CHICAGO, ILL. FELLOWS GEAR SHAPER COMPANY (THE), SPRINGFIELD, VT. FERGUSON MACHINE COMPANY, TOLEDO, OHIO FERRIS STATE COLLEGE, BIG RAPIDS, MICH. FERROTHERM CO., CLEVELAND, ONIO FIBERITE CORPORATION, WINONA, WISC. FIRESTONE TIRE & RUBBER CO. (THE), AKRON, OHIO FIREWEL COMPANY INC. (THE), BUFFALO, N.Y. FISCHER GOVERNOR COMPANY, MARSHALLTOWN, IOWA FLICK-REEDY CORPORATION, BENSENVILLE, IND. FMC CORPORATION, SAN JOSE, CALIF. FORD MOTOR COMPANY, DEARBORN, MICH. FORD MOTOR COMPANY, METAL STAMPING, DEARBORN, MICH. FORD MOTOR COMPANY, LIVONIA, MICH. FORD MOTOR COMPANY, FAIRFAX PLANT, CINCINNATI, OHIO FORD MOTOR COMPANY, SHARONVILLE PLANT, CINCINNATE, 0110 FRANKFORD ARSENAL, PHILADELPHIA, PA. FRANKLIN BALMAR CORPORATION, BALTIMORE, MD. FRANKLIN ELECTRIC CO., INC., BLUFFTON, IND. FRANKLIN OIL CORPORATION, BEDFORD, ONIO FULLER MERRIAM COMPANY, WEST HAVEN, CONN. FYR-FYTER COMPANY (THE), NEWARK, N.J. G & O TOOL & DIE COMPANY, BEECHGROVE, IND. GALM COMPANY, KENNETH J., INDIANAPOLIS, IND. GARDNER MACHINE COMPANY, SOUTH BELOIT, ILL. GAR-KENVON INSTRUMENTS INC., BREWSTER, N.Y. GEBEL INDUSTRIES, CINCINNATI, OHIO GENERAL DYNAMICS CORP., SAN DIEGO, CALIF. GENERAL DYNAMICS CORP., GROTON, CONN. GENERAL DYNAMICS CORP., NEW YORK, N.Y. GENERAL DYNAMICS CORP., FT. WORTH, TEX. GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, PHOENIX, ARIZ. GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, PLEASANTOWN, CALIF. GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, SAN JOSE, CALIF. GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, DAYTONA BEACH, FLA. GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, BLOOMINGTON, ILL. GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, FT. WAYNE, IND. GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, LOUISVILLE, KY. GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, EVERETT, MASS. GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, LYNN, MASS. GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, DETROIT, MICH. GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, WARREN, MICH. GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, KAPL, SCHENECTADY, N.Y. GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, SCHENECTADY, N.Y. GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, SYRACUSE, N.Y. GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, UTICA, N.Y. GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, WATERFORD, N.Y. GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, CINCINNATI, ONIO GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, CLEVELAND, ONIO GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, DAVION, DAVIO GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, ERLE, PA. GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, KINS OF PRUSSIA, PA. GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, PHILADELPHIA, PA. GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, VALLEY FORSE SPACE TECHNOLOGY CENTER, PHILADELPHIA, PA. GENERAL ELECTRIC CONSINY, BURLINGTON, VT. GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, RUTLAND, VT. GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, WAYNESBORD, VA. GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, SOMERSUGATH, N.H. GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, SUNNYVALE, CALIF.

GENERAL ELECTRO-MECH CORP., BUFFALO, N.Y. GENERAL MOTORS CORPORATION DEFENSE RESEARCH LAB... SANTA BARBARA, CALIF. GENERAL MOTORS CORPORATION, DELCO REMY DIVISION, ANDERSON, IND. GENERAL MOTORS CORPORATION GUIDE LAMP DIVISION, ANDERSON, IND. GENERAL MOTORS CORPORATION, INDIANAPOLIS, INC. GENERAL MOTORS CORPORATION, MUNICE, IND. GENERAL MOTORS INSTITUTE, FLINT, MICH. GENERAL MOTORS CORPORATION, WARREN, MICH. GENERAL MOTORS CORPORATION, HARRISON, N.J. GENERAL MOTORS CORPORATION, FRIGIDAIRE DIVISION, DAYTON, OHIO GENERAL MOTORS CORPORATION, INLAND MANUFACTURING DAYTON, OHIO GENERAL MOTORS CORPORATION, MILWAUKEE, WISC. GENERAL PRECISION AEROSPACE TECHNICAL INFORMATION CENTER, LITTLE FALLS, N.J. GENERAL PRECISION INCORPORATED, BINGHAMTON, N.Y. GENERAL PRECISION INCORPORATED, PLEASANTVILLE, N.Y. GENERAL TRANSDUCER COMPANY, SANTA CLARA, CALIF. GEOMETRIC TOOL COMPANY, NEW HAVEN, CONN. GEORGE'S SCREW PRODUCTS, FRANKLIN PARK, ILL. GISHOLT CORPORATION, MADISON, WISC. GLIDDEN COMPANY (THE), BALTIMORE, MD. GODDARD SPACE FLIGHT CPI ER, GREENBELT, MD. GOLDMAN & COMPANY, HARY DEARBORN, MICH. GOODRICH COMPANY, B. F., AKRON, DHIO GOODYEAR AEROSPACE CORPORATION, AKRON, ONIO GOULDS PUMPS INC., SEVECA FALLS, N.Y. GRANAM RESEARCH LABORATORY, PITTSBURGH, PA. GRAY, COMPANY, G. A., CINCINNATI, OHIO GREAT LAKES RESEARCH CORPORATION, ELIZABETHTON, TENN. GREAT LAKES STEEL CORPORATION, DETROIT, MICH. GREENFIELD TAP & DIE, GREENFIELD, MASS. GREENLEAF CORPORATION, HAGERLTOWN, PA. GRIFFIN WHEEL COMPANY, CHICAGO, ILL. GRIKO CHEMICAL PRODUCTS INC., NEWARK, N.J. GRISWOLD-ESHLEMAN COMPANY (THE), CLEVELAND, OHIO GRUMMAN AIRCRAFT ENGINEERING CORP., BETHPAGE, L.I. N.Y. GULF COAST TECHNICAL INSTITUTE, GULFPORT, MISS. H & C SUPPLY CORPORATION, ROCHESTER, N.Y. HALL PLANETARY CO. OF PHILADELPHIA, PHILADELPHIA, PA. MAMILTON STANDARD, WINDSOR LOCKS, CONN. MAMILTON TOOL & MACHINE CO., KENILWORTH N.J. HANNISCHFEGER COMPANY, ESCANADA, MICH. HARRIS-INTERTYPE CORPORATION, CLEVELAND, SHID HARVARD BUSINESS SCHOOL, CAMBRIDGE, MASS. HARVEY ALUMINUM SALES INC., EAST ORANGE, N.J. HASTINGS MANUFACTURING CO., HASTINGS, MICH. HATER INDUSTRIES, CINCINNATI, ONIO HEALD MACHINE COMPANY, WORCESTER, MASS. HENDRIKSEN, ERIE, DOWNEY, CALIF. MERCULES INC., ALLEGANY BALLISTICS LAB., CUMBERLAND, MARYLAND HERKERT PRODUCTS COMPANY, CHICAGO, ILL. HESSTON CORPORATION, HESSTON, KAN. HILL, GEORGE M., OXFORD, OHIO MINELE BROTHERS INC., CLARESBURG, W. VA. HIRSCHMANN CORPORATION, ROSLYN HEIGHTS, N.Y. HOBART MANUFACTURING COMPANY, TROY, OHIO HOFFMAN BROTHERS JEWELRY CO., TUNESUTABLEY, PA. HORE INC., CRESSRILL, N.J. HOLLEY CARBURETOR COMPANY, WARREN, MICH. HOLLEY CARBURETOR COMPANY, CLARE, MICH. HOLVORE MACHINE COMPANY, HOLVORE, MASS. HONEVEELL INC., ST. PETERSBURG, FLA. HONEVWELL INC., NEW BAIENTON, MINN.

۱

FIGURE 25 (cont.)

HONEYWELL INC., MINNEAPOLIS, MINN. HOUGHTON COMPANY, E. F., CINCINNATI, OHIO HOUGHTON COMPANY, E. F., CLEVELAND, OHIO HOUSTON, UNIVERSITY OF, HOUSTON, TEX. HUCKTROL INC., KINGSTON, N.Y. HUGHES AIRCRAFT COMPANY, CULVER CITY, CALIF. HUGHES AIRCRAFT COMPANY, EL SEGUNDO, CALIF. HUGHES AIRCRAFT COMPANY, LOS ANGELES, CALIF. HUGHES AIRCRAFT COMPANY, TUCSON, ARIZ. HUGHES TOOL COMPANY, CULVER CITY, CALIF. HUMBLE OIL & REFINING CO., HOUSTON, TEX. HYDRAULIC RESEARCH & MANUFACTURING CO... BURBANK, CALLE. HYDRODYNE ENGINEERING COMPANY, SANTA ANA, CALIF. HYSTER COMPANY, PORTLAND, ORE. HYSTER COMPANY, DANVILLE. ILL. IT RESEARCH INSTITUTE, CHICAGO, ILL. ITT CANNON ELECTRIC INC., LOS ANGELES, CALIF. ILLINOIS INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY, CHICAGO, ILL. ILLINOIS, STATE OF, SPRINGFIELD, ILL. ILLINOIS, UNIVERSITY OF, URBANA, ILL. INDUSTRIAL NUCLEONICS CORP., COLUMBUS, OHIO INGERSOLL MILLING MACHINE CO. (THE), ROCKFORD, ILL. INGERSOLL RAND COMPANY, PHILIPSBURG, N.J. INGERSOLL RAND COMPANY, PRINCETON, N.J. INGERSOLL RAND COMPANY, PAINTED POST, N.Y. INSTITUTE OF GAS TECHNOLOGY, CHICAGO, ILL. INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS MACHINES CORP., LEXINGTON, KY. INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS MACHINES CORP., ROCKVILLE, MD. INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS MACHINES CORP., ENDICOTT, N.Y. INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS MACHINES CORP., KINGSTON, N.Y. INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS MACHINES CORP., OWEGO, N.Y. INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS MACHINES CORP., POUGHKEEPSIE, N.Y. INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS MACHINES CORP., YORKTOWN HEIGHTS, N.Y. INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS MACHINES CORP., DAYTON, OHIO INTERNATIONAL GLASS COMPANY, NEW YORK, N.Y. INTERNATIONAL HARVESTER COMPANY, CHICAGO, ILL. INTERNATIONAL LEAD ZINC RESEARCH ORGANIZATION INC., NEW YORK, N.Y. INTERNATIONAL NICKEL CO., INC. (THE), NEW YORK, N.Y. INTERNATIONAL NICKEL CO., INC. (THE), SUFFERN, N.Y. INTERNATIONAL NICKEL CO., INC. (THE), DAVTON, OHIO INTERNATIONAL NICKEL CO., INC. (THE), HUNTINGTON, W. VA. ION PHYSICS CORPORATION, BURLINGTON, MASS. IOWA STATE UNIVERSITY OF SCIENCE & TECHNOLOGY. AMES, TOWA IOWA, UNIVERSITY OF. JONA CITY, IOWA IRON ABE, PHILADELPHIA, PA. JANSSEN MANUFACTURING COMPANY, WAYNESVILLE, OHIO JARVIS CORPORATION, PORTLAND, CONN.

JARVIS CORPORATION, GREENWOOD, S.C. JEROEN MANUTACTURING COMPANN, INDIANAPOLIS, IND. JET PRODUCTS CORPORATION, SAN DIEGO, CALIF. JONES & LAMSON, SPRINGFIELD, VT. JENES & LAUGHLIN STEEL CORP., INDIANAPOLIS, IND. JORDON VALVE, CINCINNATI, ONIO

KDI COMPANY, CINCINNATI, ONIO KAISER AEROSPACE & ELECTRONICS, SAN LEANDRO, CALIF. KANSAS STATE COLLERE OF PITTSBURGH, PITTSBURGH, KAN. KARL & SONS, WILLIAM, MIDDLE VILLARE, N.Y. KEANNEY & CO., INC., A.T., CHICAGO, ILL. KEANNEY & TRECKER, MILHAUSEE, WISC. KEMETRIC COMPANY, SUMNYALE, CALIF. KENNAMETAL INC., CINCINNATI, OMIO RENNAMETAL INC., ENCINNATI, OMIO KENNAMETAL INC., LATRORE, PA. KEMMAMETAL INC., LATRORE, PA.

.

KING FIFTH WHEEL COMPANY, MOUNTAINTOP, PA. KINSEY, COMPANY, E. A., CINCINNATI, OHIO KLIK INDUSTRIES, HARTFORD, CONN. KLINE MANUFACTURING CO., WESTERVILLE, OHIO KOBE INC., HUNTINGTON PARK, CALIF. KOEMRING CO., HPM DIVISION, MT. GILEAD, OHIO KOPPERS COMPANY INC., BALTIMORE, MD. KREISLER INDUSTRIAL CORP., EAST PATTERSON, N.J. KRESS CORPORATION, CLEVELAND, OHIO KRONENBERG, DR. MAX, CINCINNATI, OHIO KUNTZ COMPANY, J. R., DAYTON, OHIO LADISH COMPANY, CUDAHY, WISC. LANCASTER METAL PRODUCTS, LANCASTER, OHIO LASALLE STEEL COMPANY, HAMMOND, IND. LATROBE STEEL COMPANY, LATROBE, PA. LAVALLEE & IDE INC., CHICOMEE, MASS. LAVIN & SONS, INC., R. CHIGAGO, ILL. LAWRENCE AVIATION INDUSTRIES, INC., NEW YORK, N.Y. LAWRENCE RADIATION LABORATORY, LIVERMORE, CALIF. LEAR SIEGLER COMPANY, GRAND RAPIDS, MICH. LEBANON STEEL FOUNDRY, LEBANON, PA. LEBLOND MACHINE TOOL COMPANY, R. K., CINCINNATI, OHIO LENIGH UNIVERSITY, BETHLEHEN, PA. LELAND-GIFFORD COMPANY, WORCESTER, MASS. LENNOR ENGINEERING COMPANY, CHICAGO, ILL. LESSELLS AND ASSOCIATES, WALTHAM, MASS. LINAIR ENGINEERING, DANIA, FLA. LING-TEMCO-VOUGHT, INC., DALLAS, TEX. Ling-Temco-Vought (LTV Aerospace) Warben, Mich. LING-TENCO-VOUGHT (LTV ELECTROSYSTEMS), GREENVILLE, TEX. LINK BELT COMPANY, INDIANAPOLIS, IND. LINK BELT COMPANY, PHILADELPHIA, PA. LIQUID DYNAMICS, CHICABO, ILL. LITTLE CO., INC., ARTHUR D., CAMBRIDGE, MASS. LLOYD PRODUCTS COMPANY, CINCINNATI, ONIO LOCKHEED AIRCRAFT CORPORATION, BURBANK, CALIF. LOCKHEED AIRCRAFT CORPORATION, PALO ALTO, CALIF. LOCKHEED AIRCRAFT CORPORATION, REDLANDS, CALIF. LOCKHEED AIRCRAFT CORPORATION, SUNNYVALE, CALIF. LOCKHEED-GEORGIA COMPANY MARIETTA, GA. LODGE & SHIPLEY COMPANY (THE), CINCINNATI, UNIO LONGYEAR COMPANY, E. J., MINNEAPOLIS, MINN. LORD MANUFACTURING COMPANY, ERIE, PA. LOUD COMPANY, H. W., POMONA, CALIF. LUBRE PRODUCTS INC., NORTH ATTLEBORD, MASS. LUNKENHEIMER COMPANY, CINCINNATI, ONIO MS&R INC., IRWIN, PA. MACHINE DESIGN, CLEVELAND, ONIO MACHINECRAFT, INC., BALTINGRE, MD. MACHINERY, DIBMINGHAM, MICH. MACHINING TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION, SO, WINDSOR, CONN. MACKLIN COMPANY, JACKSON, MICH. MADISON INDUSTRIES, PROVIDENCE, R.I. MAFFITT TOOL & MACHINE COMPANY, ST. LOUIS, MO. MASHA MACHINE COMPANY, CINCINNATI, ONIO MALLEADLE FOUNDERS SOCIETY, CLEVELAND, ONIO MANMATTAN RAVAESTOS COMPANY, CORINTH, KV. MANSFIELD PHOTO ENGRAVING, MANSFIELD, ONIO MAREMONT COMPANY. SACO, ME. MARLIN-ROCENELL COMPANY, PLAINVILLE, COMM. Manguardt Corporation (The), Van Nuvs, Calif. Maneyanny Conversion (Twe), Ospen, Uran MANQUETTE METAL POODUCTS CO., CLEVELAND, ONIO MARSHALL SPACE FLIGHT CENTER, HUNTSVILLE, ALA. MARTIN COMPANY, DENVER, COLO.

FIGURE 25 (cont.)

MARTIN COMPANY, ORLANDO, FLA. MARTIN COMPANY, BALTINDRE, MD.

35

MARTIN COMPANY, WHEELING, ILL. MACSACHUSETTS INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY, CAMBRIDGE, MASS. MASSEY-FERGUSON INC., DETROIT, MICH. MASTER CHEMICAL CORPORATION, PERRYSBURG, OHIO MASTER MANUFACTURING CO. INC., HUTCHINSON, KAN. MATERIALS DEVELOPMENT INC., PROSPECT, KY. MATERIALS IN DESIGN ENGINEERING, NEW YORK, N.Y. MATERIALS TESTING LABORATORY, LOS ANGELES, CALIF. MAYNARD & COMPANY, INC., H.B., PITTSBURGH, PA. MCCULLOCH CORPORATION, LOS ANGELES, CALIF. MCDONNELL DOUGLAS CORP., LONG BEACH, CALIF. MCDONNELL DOUGLAS CORP., SANTA MONICA, CALIF. MCDONNELL DOUGLAS CORP., ST. LOUIS, MO. MCDONNELL DOUGLAS CORP., HUNTIN TON BEACH, CALIF. MCGRAW-EDISON COMPANY, PITTSBURGH, PA. MCGRAW-EDISON COMPANY, COLUMBUS, OHIO MCGRAW-EDISON COMPANY, So. MILWAUKEE, WISC. MCGREGOR MANUFACTURING CORP., TROY, MICH. MCKINNEY INC., HARRIS D., PHILADELPHIA, PA. MCMELLON BROTHERS, INC., STRATFORD, CONN. MEAD CORPORATION, CINCINNATI, OHIO MEASUREGRAPH COMPANY, ST. LOUIS, MO. MECHANICAL SUPPLIES COMPANY, CINCINNATI, OHIO MELPAR INC., FALLS CHURCH, VA. MEMCOR INC., HUNTINGTON, IND. MENASCO MANUFACTURING COMPANY, BURBANK, CALIF. MENASCO MANUFACTURING COMPANY, FT. WORTH, TEX. MERCER ALLOYS CORPORATION, GREENVILLE, PA. MERCER MACHINE COMPANY, INDIANAPOLIS, IND. METAL FINISHING SERVICE, CHICAGO, ILL. METAL LUBRICANTS COMPANY, CHICAGO, ILL. METAL-MATION INC., SOUTH BEND, IND. METALORE, EL SEGUNDO, CALIF. METAL POWDER INDUSTRIES FEDERATION, NEW YORK, N.Y. METALWORKING MAGAZINE, BOSTON, MASS. METALWORKING NEWS, CINCINNATI, OHIO METCUT RESEARCH ASSOCIATES INC., CINCINNATI, OHIO METEM CORPORATION, HANOVER, N.J. MICHIGAN TECHNOLOGY UNIVERSITY, HOUGHTON, MICH. MICHIGAN TOOL COMPANY, DETROIT, MICH. MICHIGAN, UNIVERSITY OF, ANN ARBOR, MICH. MIDDLE COUNTRY CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 11, CENTEREACH, N.Y. MIDWEST RESEARCH INSTITUTE, KANSAS CITY, Mo. MIDWEST TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC., CINCINNATI, OHIO MINIATURE PRECISION BEARINGS, INC., KEENE, N.H. MINNESOTA MINING & MANUFACTURING CO., ST. PAUL, MINN. MODERN MACHINE SHOP, CINCINNATI, OHIO MOHAWK TOOLS, INC., MONTPELIER, OHIO MONSANTO RESEARCH CORPORATION, DAYTON, OHIO MONSANTU RESEARCH CORPORATION, MIAMISBURG, OHIO MONSANTO RESEARCH CORPORATION, HARTFORD, CONN. MONTGOMERY CO., H. A., DETROIT, MICH. MOOG, INC., EAST AURORA, N.Y. MOREHEAD STATE UNIVERSITY, MOREHEAD, KY. MONFORM TOOL COMPANY, CINCINNATI, OHIO MORGEN DESIGN, INC., CINCINNATI, OHIO MORRIS & COMPANY, E. K., CINCINNATI, OHIO MORRIS MACHINE CO. INC., INDIANAPOLIS, IND. MORSE TWIST DRILL & MACHINE CO., CHICAGO, ILL. MORWEAR TOOLS INC., CINCINNATI, OHIO MOSLER LOCK COMPANY, MILFORD, OHIO MOTOROLA ING., SCOTTSDALE, ARIZ. MUSKEGON TOOL INDUSTRIES INC., MUSKEGON, MICH. NASA, SCIENTIFIC & TECHNOLOGY INFORMATION FACILITY,

NATIONAL SCHEW MACHINE PRODUCTS ASSOCIATION, CLEVELAND, OHIO NATIONAL WATER LIFT COMPANY, KALAMAZOO, MICH. NAVAL AIR ENGINEERING CENTER, PHILADELPHIA, PA. NAVAL AIR REWORK FACILITIES, SAN DIEGO, CALIF. NELCO CUTTER COMPANY, MANCHESTER, CONN. NEUMAN & COMPANY, H., SKOKIE, ILL. NEVILL, C. R., INDIANAPOLIS, IND. NEW BRITAIN MACHINE CO. (THE), NEW BRITAIN, CONN. NEW ENGLAND METALLURGICAL CORPORATION. S. BOSTON, MASS. NEW ENGLAND RESEARCH APPLICATION CENTER, STOORRS, CONN. NEW YORK STATE UNIVERSITY OF BINGHAMTON, BINGHAMTON, N.Y. NOBLE INC., NORMAN, CLEVELAND, OHIO NORDEN COMPANY, NORWALK, CONN. NORTH AMERICAN ROCKWELL CORP., ANAHEIM, CALIF. NORTH AMERICAN ROCKWELL CORP., CANOGA PARK, CALIF. NORTH AMERICAN ROCKWELL CORP., EL SEGUNDO, CALIF. NORTH AMERICAN ROCKWELL CORP., INGLEWOOD, CALIF. NORTH AMERICAN ROCKWELL CORP., LOS ANGELES, CALIF. NORTH AMERICAN ROCKWELL CORP., NEOSHO, MO. NORTH AMERICAN ROCKWELL CORP., COLUMBUS, OHIO NORTH AMERICAN ROCKWELL CORP., TULSA, OKLA. NORTH CAROLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, RALEIGH, N.C. NORTH HARTFORD HIGH SCHOOL, PYLESVILLE, MD. NORTHEASTERN UNIVERSITY, BOSTON, MASS. NORTHROP NORAIR, HAWTHORNE, CALIF. NORTHROP VENTURA, NEWBURY PARK, CALIF. NORTON COMPANY, WORCESTER, MASS. NRC EQUIPMENT CORPORATION, NEWTON, MASS. NUCLEAR METALS, INC., WEST CONCORD, MASS. NUMERICAL CONTROL & COMPUTER SERVICES, CLEVELAND OHIO NU TEC ENGINEERING CORPORATION, WARREN, MICH. NU-TOOL SAW SERVICE, INC., DETROIT, MICH. OK TOOL COMPANY, MILFORD, N.H. OAKES CORPORATION, E. T., LUNG ISLAND, N.Y. OBERG MANUFACTURING COMPANY, INC., FREEPORT, PA. OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY (THE), COLUMBUS, OHIO OKLAHOMA STATE UNIVERSITY, STILLWATER, OKLA. OLIN DIXSON CORPORATION, COFFEEVILLE, KAN. OLIVER MACHINERY COMPANY, GRAND RAPIDS, MICH. ONTARIO CORPORATION, MUNCIE, IND. OREGON TECHNICAL INSTITUTE, KLAMATH FALLS, ORE. OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY, YONKERS, N.Y. OWENS-ILLINOIS, INC., COLUMBUS, OHIO PACIFIC SCIENTIFIC COMPANY, ANAHEIM, CALIF. PACKER CONSULTING ASSOCIATES, NAPERVILLE, ILL. PANDA PRODUCTS, CINCINNATI, OHIO PEABODY INDUSTRIES, PEABODY, MASS. PECK, PAUL H., BROCKTON, MASS. PENN NUCLEAR CORPORATION, PENN, PA. PENNSYLVANIA STATE UNIVERSITY, UNIVERSITY PARK, PA. PENTA TECHNICAL COLLEGE, PERRYSBURG, OHIO PESCO PRODUCTS, BEDFORD, OHIO PHELPS-DODGE-COPPER PRODUCTS CORP., ELIZABETH, N. J. PHILADELPHIA NAVAL SHIPYARD, PHILADELPHIA, PA. PHILCO CORPORATION, LAWNDALE, CALIF. PHILCO CORPORATION, NEWPORT BEACH, CALIF.

PICATINNY ARSENAL, DOVER, N.J. PIPE MACHINERY COMPANY, CLEVELAND, OHIO

PITTSBURGH PLATE GLASS CO., PITTSBURGH, PA.

NATIONAL CASH REGISTER COMPANY, DAYTON, OHIO NATIONAL FORGE COMPANY, IRVINE, WARREN COUNTY, PA.

NATIONAL LEAD COMPANY OF OHIO, CINCINNATI, OHIO National Lead Company of Chio, Fernald, Ohio

BETHESDA, MD. NASA, LANGELY RESEARCH CENTER, HAMPTON, VA. NASA, LEWIS RESEARCH CENTER, CLEVELAND, OHIO NATIONAL BERYLLIA CORPORATION, HASKELL. N.J. NATIONAL BUREAU OF STANDARDS, BOULDER, COLO.

FIGURE 25 (cont.)

PLANET PRODUCTS CORPORATION, CINCINNATI, OHIO POINT PARK COLLEGE, PITTSBURGH, PA. POLYMET CORPORATION, CINCINNATI, OHIO PRATT & WHITNEY AIRCRAFT, EAST HARTFORD, CONN. PRATT & WHITNEY AIRCRAFT, NORTH HAVEN, CONN. PRATT & WHITNEY AIRCRAFT, WEST PALM BEACH, FLA. PRATT & WHITNEY CORPORATION, W. HARTFORD, CONN. PRATT & WHITNEY CORPORATION, CUDAHY, CALIF. PRECISION CASTPARTS CORP., PORTLAND, ORE. PRECISION MACHINE & TOOL, INC., VANDALIA, OHIO PRESTOLITE COMPANY (THE), DECATUR, ALA. PRISOCK ASSOCIATES, JOHN, CINCINNATI, OHIO PROCTER & GAMBLE COMPANY, CINCINNATI, OHIO PRUYNE COMPANY, SAN DIEGO, CALIF. PURDUE UNIVERSITY, WEST LAFAYETTE, IND.

RGF CORPORATION, ELWOOD, IND. RADIO CORPORATION OF AMERICA, CAMDEN, N.J. Radio Corporation of America, Princeton, N.J. Radio Corporation of America, Lancaster, Pa. RADIO ENGINEERING LABORATORIES, LONG ISLAND, N.Y. RAYTHEON COMPANY, WALTHAM, MASS. RAYTHEON COMPANY, WAYLAND, MASS. Raytheon Company, Bristol, Tenn. REACTIVE METALS, INC., NILES, CHIO REDSTONE ARSENAL, U.S. ARMY MISSILE COMMAND, REDSTONE ARSENAL, ALA. REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF GEORGIA. ATLANTA, GA. RELIANCE ELECTRIC COMPANY, ASHTABULA, OHIG REMINGTON ARMS COMPANY, INC., BRIDGEPORT, CONN. REPUBLIC STEEL CORPORATION, CLEVELAND, OHIO RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, EAST LANSING, Місн. REX CHAINBELT, INC., DOWNERS GROVE, ILL. REYNOLDS METALS COMPANY, RICHMOND, VA. RIDINGS, JAMES A., PITTSBURG, KAN. ROCK ISLAND ARSENAL, ROCK ISLAND, ILL. ROHR CORPORATION, CHULA VISTA, CALIF. ROLLWAY BEARING COMPANY, SYRACUSE, N.Y. ROMA CORPORATION, INDIANAPOLIS, IND. ROOTS-CONNERSVILLE, BLOWER DIV., CONNERSVILLE, IND. RUST-LICK INC., BOSTON, MASS. Ryerson & Son, Inc., Joseph T., Chicago, Ill.

SKF INDUSTRIES, TIMONIUM, MD. S&S MACHINERY COMPANY, BROCKLYN, N.Y. SAE STEELS, INC., HUDSON, OH:O SAN JOSE STATE COLLEGE, SAN JOSE, CALIF. SANDERS ASSOCIATES, NASHUA, N.H. SANDIA CORPORATION, ALBUQUERQUE, N.M. SATEC CORPORATION, GROVE CITY, PA. SAUNDERS & CO. INC., ALEXANDER, COLD SPRING, N.Y. SCHELLENS TRUE CORPORATION, IVORYTON, CONN. SEATTLE UNIVERSITY, SEATTLE, WASH. SEIFREAT-ELSTAD MACHINERY CO., CINCINNATI, OHIO SETCO INDUSTRIES INC., CINCINNATI, OHIO SEYBOLD COMPANY, CINCINNATI, OHIO SHEAFFER PEN COMPANY, W. A., FT. MADISON, IOWA SHEFFER CORPORATION (THE), CINCINNATI, OHIO SHEFFIELD CORPORATION (THE), DAYTON, OHIO SHWAYDER CHEMICAL METALLURGY CORP., DETROIT, MICH. SIKORSKY AIRCRAFT, STRATFORD, CONN. SILTRONICS INC., OAKMONT, PA. SINCLAIR REFINING COMPANY, CHICAGO, ILL. SINCLAIR REFINING COMPANY, COLUMBUS, OHIO SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION, CHICAGO, ILL. SNAP-ON-TOOLS COMPANY, KENOSHA, WISC. SONNET TOOL & MFG. CO., HAWTHORNE, CALIF. SOUTH CHESTER CORPORATION, LESTER, PA. SOUTH SHORE TOOL & DEVELOPMENT INC., MENTOR, OHIO SOUTHERN AUTOMATICS INC., CINCINNATI, OHIO

SPECIAL MACHINE COMPANY, ROCKFORD, ILL. SPERRY RAND CORPORATION, CLEARWATER, FLA. SPERRY RAND CORPORATION, DETROIT, MICH. SPERRY RAND CORPORATION, JACKSON, MISS. SPERRY RAND CORPORATION, TROY, MICH. SPERRY RAND CORPORATION, BRISTOL, TENN. SPERRY RAND CORPORATION, SALT LAKE CITY, UTAH SPINDLETOP RESEARCH, LEXINGTON, KY. SPRINGFIELD ARMORY, SPRINGFIELD, MASS ST. JOSEPH LEAD COMPANY, MONACA, PA. STANDARD OIL COMPANY-OHIO (THE), CLEVELAND, OHIO STANDARD PRESSED STEEL CO., JENKINTOWN, PA. STARK INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY COMPANY, CANTON, OHIO STATHAM INSTRUMENTS, OXNARD CALIF. STEEL MAGAZINE, CLEVELAND, OHIO STERLING FAUCET COMPANY, MORGANTOWN, W. VA. STERLING GRINDING WHEEL CO., TIFFIN, OHIO STERLING INSTRUMENT, MINEOLA, N.Y. Stevens Institute of Technology, Hoboken, N.J. STRASMANN MACHINERY CORPORATION, LONG BEACH, CALIF. STUART OIL CO., LTD., D. A., CHICAGO, ILL. STUDEBAKER CORPORATION, DUNBAR, W. VA. STYRE/PAK. NEWTON, LOWA SUN OIL COMPANY, CINCINNATI, OHIO SUN OIL COMPANY, MARCUS HOOK, PA. SUN SHIPBUILDING & DRY DOCK CO., CHESTER, PA. SUNDSTRAND CORPORATION, SUNDSTRAND AVIATION, ROCKFORD, ILL. SUNDSTRAND CORPORATION, SUNDSTRAND MACHINE TOOL Co.. BELVIDERE, ILL. SYLVANIA ELECTRIC PRODUCTS, INC., SALEM, MASS. SYLVESTRE SCREW COMPANY, PROVIDENCE, R. I. Systems Research Labs., Dayton, Ohio TRW INC., CLEVELAND, OHIO TRW INC., DANVILLE, PA. TRW INC., LEBANON, TENN. TAFT ENGINEERING CENTER, CINCINNATI, OHIO TAYLOR FORGE INC., CHICAGO, ILL. TECHNICAL CONSULTANTS INC., HUNTINGTON, W. VA. TECHNICAL EQUIPMENT SALES CO., CINCINNATI, OHIO TECHNICAL & TRADE TRAINING CENTER, WESTBURY, N.Y. TECUMSEN PRODUCTS COMPANY, ANN ARBOR, MICH. TELEDYNE INC, WAH CHANG, GLEN COVE, N.Y. TELEDYNE INC., ALLVAC METALS, MONROE, N.C. TELEDYNE INC., FIRTH STERLING, PITTSBURGH, PA. TELEDYNE INC., VASCO, LATROBE, PA. TELEDYNE INC., AUTOMATED SPECIALTIES, CHARLOTTESVILLE, VA. TELEFLEX INC., NORTH WALES, PA. TELETYPE CORPORATION, SKOKIE, ILL. TENNESSEE, UNIVERSITY OF, KNOXVILLE, TENN. TEXACO INC., BEACON, N.Y. TEXACO INC., CINCINNATI, OHIO TEXAS INSTRUMENTS INC., DALLAS, TEX. TEXAS, UNIVERSITY OF, AUSTIN, TEX. THERM INC., ITHACA, N.Y. THIOKOL CHEMICAL CORP., DENVILLE, N.J. THOMPSON COMPANY, JOHN 1., WASHINGTON, D.C. TIMKEN ROLLER BEARING COMPANY, CANTON, OHIO TINKER AIR FORCE BASE, OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLA. TIPP MACHINE & TOOL INC., TIPP CITY, OHIO TIPPETT INCORPORATED, CHICOPEE FALLS, MASS. TITANIUM METALS CORPORATION OF AMERICA, NEW YORK, N.Y. TITANIUM METALS CORPORATION OF AMERICA. TORONTO, OHIO TOOL SALES & SERVICE, CINCINNATI, OHIO

Southern Illingis University, Carbondale, Ill. Southwest Research Institute, San Antonio, Tex.

TOOL STEEL GEAR & PINION CO. (THE), CINCINNATI, Ohio

FIGURE 25 (cont.)

TOULON HIGH SCHOOL, TOULON, ILL. TOWNSEND COMPANY, SANTA ANA, CALIF. TRAUB STROHM CORPORATION, PLAINVIEW, N.Y. TRI INDUSTRIES INC., TERRE HAUTE, IND. TRI-D CORPORATION, PLAINVILLE, CONN. TRU-CUT MACHINE CORPORATION, CINCINNATI, OHIO TYCO LABORATORIES, WALTHAM, MASS. TYLER CORPORATION, BENSON, MINN. UTD CORPORATION, ATHOL, MASS. U.S. ARMY, PRODUCTION ENGINEERING DIVISION, FT. BELVOIR, VA. U.S. ARMY, EDGEWOOD ARSENAL, EDGEWOOD ARSENAL, MD. U.S. ARMY, PRODUCTION EQUIPMENT AGENCY, ROCK ISLAND, ILL. U.S. ARMY, WEAPONS COMMAND, ROCK ISLAND, ILL. U.S. ATOMIC ENERGY COMMISSION, WASHINGTON, D.C. U.S. BAIRD CORPORATION, STRATFORD, CONN. U.S. DEFENSE SUPPLY AGENCY, CINCINNATI, OHIO U.S. DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE, N. ARLINGTON, VA. U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, ROLLA, MO. U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, WASHINGTON, D.C. U.S. MARINE CORPS., CHERRY POINT, N.C. U.S. NAVAL AVIONICS FACILITY, DEPARTMENT OF NAVY, INDIANAPOLIS, IND. U.S. MISSILE CENTER, MUGU, CALIF. U.S. NAVAL ORDNANCE LAB., WHITE OAK, MD. U.S. NAVAL ORDNANCE TEST STATION, CHINA LAKE, CALIE. U.S. NAVAL POST GRADUATE SCHOOL, MONTEREY, CALIF. U.S. NAVAL UNDERWATER ORDNANCE STATION, NEWPORT, R.1. U.S. STEEL CORPORATION, MONROEVILLE, PA. UNION CARBIDE CORPORATION, INDIANAPOLIS, IND. UNION CARBIDE CORPORATION, KOKOMO, IND. UNION CARBIDE CORPORATION, PADUCAH, KY. UNION CARBIDE CURPORATION, OAK RIDGE NATIONAL LAB, OAK RIDGE, TENN. UNION CARBIDE CORPORATION, Y12 PLANT, OAK RIDGE, TENN. UNITED AIRCRAFT CORPORATE SYSTEMS CENTER. FARMINGTON, CONN. UNITED AIR LINES, SAN FRANCISCO, CALIF. UNITED STATES BORAX & CHEMICAL CORP., NEW YORK, N.Y. UNITED STATES LIAISON OFFICE, APO, N.Y. UNITED STATES TIME CORPORATION, WATERBURY, CONN. UNITED TECHNOLOGY CENTER, SUNNYVALE, CALIF. UNIVAC, ROSEVILLE, MINN. UNIVERSAL-CYCLOPS SPECIALTY STEEL, BRIDGEVILLE, PA. UNIVERSAL TECHNOLOGY CORP., DAYTON, "OHIO UNIVERSAL VALVE COMPANY, INC., ELIZABETH, N.J. UTAH, UNIVERSITY OF, SALT LAKE CITY, UTAH UTAH STATE UNIVERSITY, LOGAN, UTAH V.I. JEWELRY MANUFACTURING CORP., NEW YORK, N.Y. VALERON CORPORATION (THE), LOS ANGELES, CALIF. VALERON CORPORATION (THE), INDIANAPOLIS, IND. VALERON CORPORATION (THE), DAYTON, OHIO VILLE PROGRAM FOR INDUSTRY, SCHENECTADY, N.Y. VAN STRAATEN CHEMICAL COMPANY, CHICAGO, ILL. VARO INC., SANTA BARBARA, CALIF. VEEDER-ROOT INC., ALTOONA, PA.

VITRO CORPORATION OF AMERICA, WEST ORANGE, N.J. VOGT MACHINE CO. INC., HENRY, LOUISVILLE, KY. VR/WESSON COMPANY, CINCINNATI, OHIO WALKER COMPANY, O.S., WORCESTER, MASS. WALKER GRINDING COMPANY, SANTA BARBARA, CALIF. WALMET CORPORATION (THE), PLEASANT RIDGE, MICH. WALMET CORPORATION (THE), SUMMITT, N.J. WALTCO ENGINEERING COMPANY, GARDENA, CALIF. WARNER-SWASEY COMPANY (THE), CLEVELAND, OHIO WARNER-SWASEY COMPANY (THE), LAHR DIVISION, CLEVELAND, OHIO WARREN PUMPS, INC., WARREN, MASS. WATERTOWN ARSENAL, WATERTOWN, MASS. WATERVLIET ARSENAL, WATERVLIET, N.Y. WAYNE STATE UNIVERSITY, DETROIT, MICH. WEATHERHEAD COMPANY (THE), DAYTON, OHIO WEBCO MACHINE PRODUCTS, INC., CLEVELAND, OHIO WEINMAN PUMP MANUFACTURING CO. (THE), COLUMBUS, OHIO WEST MILTON PRECISION TOOL CO., VANDALIA, OHIO WEST VIRGINIA, STATE OF, DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, CHARLESTON, W. VA. WESTERN ELECTRIC COMPANY, INC., OMAHA, NEB. WESTERN ELECTRIC COMPANY, INC., GREENSBORD, N.C. WESTERN ELECTRIC COMPANY, INC., PRINCETON, N.J. WESTERN ELECTRIC COMPANY, INC., NEW YORK, N.Y. WESTERN GEAR CORPORATION, EVERETT, WASH. WESTERN RESERVE UNIVERSITY, CLEVELAND, OHIO WESTINGHOUSE AIR BRAKE COMPANY, PEORIA, ILL. WESTINGHOUSE ELECTRIC CORP., SUNNYVALE, CALIF WESTINGHOUSE ELECTRIC CORP., BUFFALO, N.Y. WESTINGHOUSE ELECTRIC CORP., BLAIRSVILLE, PA. WESTINGHOUSE ELECTRIC CORP., HOMEWOOD, PA. WESTINGHOUSE ELECTRIC CORP., PHILADELPHIA, PA. WESTINGHOUSE ELECTRIC CORP., PITTSBURGH, PA. WHEELABRATOR CORPORATION, MISHAWAKA, INC. WHITE COUNTY MACHINE SHOP, MONTICELLO, INC. WHITIN MACHINE WORKS, WHITINSVILLE, MASS. WHITTAKER CORPORATION, LA MESA, CALIF. WHITTAKER CORPORATION, WEST CONCORD, MASS. WILLIAMS RESEARCH & ENGINEERING CO., WALLED LAKE, Місн. WISCONSIN, UNIVERSITY, MADISON, WISC. WISCONSIN STATE UNIVERSITY, PLATTEVILLE, WISC. WITHROW COMPANY, ARTHUR C., LOS ANGELES, CALIF. WOLVERINE BRASS WORKS, GRAND RAPIDS, MICH. WORLD TOOL & ENGINEERING CO., MINNEAPOLIS, MINN. WRIGHT-PATTERSON AIR FORCE BASE, MANUFACTURING TECHNOLOGY DIVISION, WRIGHT-PATTERSON AFB, 0110 WRIGHT-PATTERSON AIR FORCE BASE FOREIGN DISCLOSURE OFFICE, WRIGHT-PATTERSON AFB, OHIO WRIGHT-PATTERSON AIR FORCE BASE FOREIGN TECHNOLOGY OFFICE, WRIGHT-PATTERSON AFB, OHIO

VINCO CORPORATION, DETROIT, MICH.

VIRGINIA POLYTECHNIC INSTITUTE, BLACKSBURG, VA.

OFFICE, WRIGHT-PATTERSON AFB, OHIO Wyman-Gordon Company, North Grafton, Mass. Wyman-Gordon Company, Worcester, Mass.

XEROX CORPORATION, ROCHESTER, N.Y.

ZENITH MANUFACTURING COMPANY, OAK PARK, MICH. Zimney Corporation, Monrovia', Calif.

ι

VERMONT AMERICAN CORPORATION, LOUISVILLF, KY.

VIKING FORGE & STEEL COMPANY, ALBANY, CALIF.

NEW COMPANIES & AGENCIES SUBMITTING INQUIRIES TO AFMDC

FEBRUARY 1, 1968 - SEPTEMBER 30, 1988

EAM INC., SKIPPAK, PA.

ATI INDUSTRIES, ESCONDIDO, CALIF. ACCURATE DIAMOND TOOL CORP., HACKENSACK, N.J. ADAPTO, GOODYEAR, ARIZ. ALCO PRODUCTS, INC., SCHENECTADY, N.Y. Alexander & Associates, Cincinnati, Ohio Amacoil Tool Division, Chicago, Ill. Amberg & Usler, Inc., East Orange, N.J. American Bosch Arma Corp., Garden City, N.Y. AMERICAN BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT, LOS ANGELES, CALIF. AMERICAN CAN COMPANY, SAN FRANCISCO, CALIF. AMERICAN CAN COMPANY, GENEVA, N.Y. AMERICAN IRON AND STEEL INST., NEW YORK, N.Y. AMERICAN OIL COMPANY, CHICAGO, ILL. AMERICAN OIL COMPANY, WHITING, IND. AMERICAN TOOL COMPANY, KALAZAMOO, MICH. AMTEL, INC., PEABODY, MASS. ANZON COMPANY, INC., EL MONTE, CALIF. APPLIED OCEANICS, LOS ANGELES, CALIF. ARIZONA STATE UNIVERSITY, TEMPE, ARIZ. ARNO ADHESIVE TAPE, INC., MICHIGAN CITY, IND. ASTRO MET ASSOCIATES, INC., CINCINNATI, OHIO ASTRO TECH, INC., MINNEAPOLIS, MINN. ATLAS PORTABLE EQUIPMENT CO., OAK PARK, MICH. AUTOMATION INDUSTRIES, INC., STERLING, VA. AVCO CORPORATION, WESTBORO, MASS. AVIATION WEEK & SPACE TECHNOLOGY, NEW YORK, N.Y.

BALL BROS. RESEARCH CORP., BOULDER, COLO. BARBER-COLMAN COMPANY, ROCKFORD, ILL. BARRY-WEHMILLER COMPANY, ST. LOUIS, MO. BATH IRON WORKS, BATH, ME. BAY SWISS MFG. CO., INC., EL SEGUNDO, CALIF. BENDIX CORP., GREENFIELD, MASS. BOOZ ALLEN APPLIED RESEARCH, INC., INDEPENDENCE, OHIO BORG-WARNER CORPORATION, DES PLAINES, ILL. BRIDGEPORT BRASS COMPANY, INDIANAPOLIS, IND.

CADILLAC GAGE COMPANY, COSTA MESA, CALIF. CALIFORNIA, UNIVERSITY OF, LIVERMORE, CALIF. CARLTON MACHINE TOOL COMPANY, CINCINNATI, OHIO CHEMCUT CORPORATION, STATE COLLEGE, PA. CHICAGO PNEUMATIC TOOL CO., UTICA, N.Y. CHROMALLOY AMERICAN CORP., WEST NYACK, N.Y. CINCINNATI MILLING MACHINE COMPANY (THE), WILMINGTON, OHIO

CLECO PNEUMATIC, CINCINNATI, OHIO CLIMAX MOLYBDENUM CO., NEW YORK, N.Y. COMMERCIAL SCREW PRODUCTS, INC., CLEVELAND, OHIO CONAX CORPORATION, BUFFALO, N.Y. CONTROL MECHANISMS INC., PHILADELPHIA, PA. COPAT CORPORATION, BEECH GROVE, IND. CORDELL ASSOCIATES, LOS ANGELES, CALIF. COX MANUFACTURING CO., INC., SAN ANTONIO, TEX. CYCLOPS CORPORATION, PITTSBURGH, PA. CRANE COMPANY, CHICAGO, ILL.

DEA PRODUCTS, TEMPE, ARIZ. DANA CORPORATION, RICHMOND, IND. DANA CORPORATION, TOLEDO, OHIO DANVILLE METAL STAMPING, DANVILLE, ILL. DE LAVAL TURBINE, INC., TRENTON, N.J. DENVER, UNIVERSITY OF, DENVER, COLO. DEUTSCH COMPANY, BANNING, CALIF. DO ALL CLEVELAND COMPANY, CINCINNATI, OHIO DUPONT DENEMOURS & CO., E.I., POMPTON LAKE, N.J. DURIRON COMPANY, INC., DAYTON, OHIO DYNA-EMPIRE, INC., LONG ISLAND, N.Y. DYNAMICS CORP. OF AMERICA, GARDEN CITY, N.Y. EAGLE TOOL & MACHINE COMPANY, SPRINGFIELD, OHIO ELECTRO-METHODS, INC., SOUTH WINDSOR, CONN.
ELECTROFILM, INC., NORTH HOLLYWOOD, CALIF.
EMBOSOGRAPH DISPLAY MEG., CO., CHICAGO, ILL.
ENGIS EQUIPMENT CO., MORTON GROVE, ILL.
FMC CORPORATION, SANTA CLARA, CALIF.
FEDERAL MOGUL CORP., DETROIT, MICH.
FIBEREX COMPANY, CLEVELAND, OHIO
FORTNER ENGINEERING & MEG., INC., GLENDALE, CALIF.
FRECON ENGINEERING, CINCINNATI, OHIO
GEARCRAFT, INC., HAZEL PARK, MICH.
GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, CHICAGO, ILL.
GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, W. BURLINGTON, IOWA
GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, W. BURLINGTON, IOWA
GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY, MILWAUKEE, WISC.
GENERAL MANUFACTURING CORP., LODI, N.J.
GENERAL MOTORS CORPORATION, LANSING, MICH.
GRAND VALLEY STATE COLLEGE, ALLENDALE, MICH.
GRUMMAN AIRCRAFT ENGRG., GLENARN, MD.
GULF GENERAL ATOMIC INC., SAN DIEGO, CALIF.

HARRISON MANUFACTURING CO., TEMPE, ARIZ. HAYES-ALBION CORPORATION, HILLSDALE, MICH. HAYES, MAX S. VOCATIONAL HIGH SCHOOL, CLEVELAND, OHIO HEWLETT-PACKARD CO., PALO ALTO, CALIF. HITTMAN ASSOCIATES, INC., COLUMBIA, MD. HONEYWELL, INC., HOPKINS, MINN. HUYCK METALS COMPANY, MILFORD, CONN.

ITT-GILFILLAN, VAN NUYS, CALIF. ILLINOIS TOOL WORKS, INC., ELGIN, ILL. INDUSTRIAL PRESS, INC., NEW YORK, N.Y. INDUSTRIAL TOOL & MACHINE CO., GEORGIAVILLE, R.I. INDUSTRIAL TECTONICS, INC., COMPTON, CALIF. INTERNATIONAL HARVESTER COMPANY, SAN DIEGO, CALIF. ITEK CORPORATION, LEXINGTON, MASS.

JACKUP BOAT BUILDERS, INC., BRAITHWAITE, LA. JANITROL AERO, COLUMBUS, OHIO JOHNSON, BILL SUPPLY CO., PHOENIX, ARIZ. JOINT VOCATIONAL SCHOOL, SPRINGFIELD, OHIO JOMICO METAL FABRICATION, ST. LOUIS, MO.

KAMINGA MANUFACTURING CO., GRAND RAPIDS, MICH. Kemper Insurance Co., New York, N.Y. Knolls Atomic Power Lab., Niskayuna, N.Y.

LDR TOOL COMPANY, PROVIDENCE, R.I. La Salle Steel Company, Chicago, Ill. Litwin Company, Cincinnati, Ohio

MACHINERY, WHEATON, ILL. MACHINERY, WHEATON, ILL. MACHINERY SALES COMPANY, LOS ÁNGELES, CALIF. MCCLELLAN AIR FORCE BASE, SACRAMENTO, CALIF. MECHANICAL SPECIALTIES, INC., LOS ANGELES, CALIF. MEDICO INDUSTRIES, INC., WILKES BARRE, PA. MICHIGAN ABRASIVE COMPANY, DETROIT, MICH. MICHIGAN TECHNOLOGY UNIVERSITY, HOUGHTON, MICH. MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY, EAST LANSING, MICH. MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY, CENTRAL, MT. PLEASANT, MICH. MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY, CENTRAL, MT. PLEASANT, MICH. MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY, NORTHERN, MARQUETE, MICH. MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY, NORTHERN, MARQUETE, MICH.

FIGURE 25 (cont.)

MILLER, L.C. COMPANY, MONTEREY PARK, CALIF. MILLERS FALLS COMPANY, CINCINNATI, OHIO MILWAUKEE GEAR COMPANY, MILWAUKEE, WISC. MONITOR BOXART CORP., FARMINGDALE, L.I., N.Y. MONTGOMERY ELEVATOR COMPANY, MOLINE, ILL. MOTION INDICATING DEVICES, INC., BUFFALO, N.Y.

NASA, HUNTSVILLE, ALA. NASA, MOFFETT FIELD, CALIF. NAVAL RESEARCH OFFICE OF, WASHINGTON, D.C. New Hampshire Ball Bearings, Inc., Peterborough, N.H. Nolte Screw Machine, Cincinnati, Ohio Northeast Cutter Service Corp., Farmingdale, N.Y. Northmont School, Clayton, Ohio

OHIO COLLEGE OF APPLIED SCIENCE, CINCINNATI, OHIO OHIO SCREW PRODUCTS, INC., ELYRIA, OHIO ONSRUD MACHINE WORKS, NILES, ILL. OWENS-ILLINOIS, TOLEDO, OHIO

P.E. DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, CINCINNATI, OHIO PAYER, E.L. COMPANY, WENONAH, N.J. PERKIN-ELMER CORP., DANBURY, CONN. PIFER INDUSTRIES, INC., DURHAM, N.C. PIONEER ASTRO INDUSTRIES, INC., HARWOOD HEIGHTS, ILL. PIONEER BROACH COMPANY, LOS ANGELES, CALIF. PLASTIC MOLDINGS CORP., CINCINNATI, OHIO PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE, BETHESDA, MD. PUREX CORPORATION LTD., ANAHEIM, CALIF.

QUAKER CHEMICAL CORPORATION, CONSHOHOCKEN, PA.

RADIO CORPORATION OF AMERICA, INDIANA POLIS, IND. REEDER & KLINE MACHINE CO., INC., CARMEL, IND. REX CHAINBELT, INC., MILWAUKEE, WISC. RHODE ISLAND, UNIVERSITY OF, KINGSTON, R.I. ROYAL OAK TOOL COMPANY, ROYAL OAK, MICH. RYAN ÁERONAUTICAL COMPANY, SAN DIEGO, CALIF. RYERSON & SON, JOSEPH T., CINCINNATI, OHIO

SCM CORPORATION, ORANGEBURG, S. C. S & R TOOL CORPORATION, DAYTON, OHIO SAGINAW VALLEY COLLEGE, UNIV. CENTER, MICH. SANDERS NUCLEAR CORP., NASHUA, N.H. SAN FRANCISCO CITY COLLEGE, SAN FRANCISCO, CALIF. SCHUTTE AND KOERTING COMPANY, BUCKS'COUNTY, PA. SENCO PRODUCTS, NEWTOWN, OHIO SHAPE COMPONENTS, INC., PATTERSON, N.J. SIGMA MACHINERY, ROSEMONT, ILL. SIMOND SAW & STEEL, FITCHBURG, MASS. SMALL BUSINESS ADMIN., DENVER, COLO. SMALL BUSINESS ADMIN., MINNEAPOLIS, MINN. SMALL BUSINESS ADMIN., CLEVELAND, OHIO SMALL BUSINESS ADMIN., BALA CYNWYD, PA. SMALL BUSINESS ADMIN., SEATTLE, WASH. SMITH, C.W. ENGINEERING CO., INC., MADISON HEIGHTS, MICH. SOUTHERN RESEARCH INSTITUTE, BIRMINGHAM, ALA. SOUTHWORTH MACHINE COMPANY, PORTLAND, ME. SOUTHWESTERN CITY SCHOOL, GROVE CITY, OHIO SPERRY RAND CORPORATION, PHOENIX, ARIZ. SPERRY RAND CORPORATION, GREAT NECK, N.Y. SPERRY RAND CORPORATION, LONG ISLAND CITY, N.Y. STANDARD OIL CO., CHICAGO, ILL. STANDARD OIL CO., - OHIO (THE), CINCINNATI, OHIO STATE OF MICHIGAN, EAST LANSING, MICH. SUNDSTRAND CORPORATION, SYRACUSE, N.Y. SYLVANIA ELECTRIC PRODUCTS, WALTHAM, MASS. SYLVANIA HIGH SCHOOL, SWANTON, OHIO

TECHNOLOGY REPORTS, CHESTERLAND, OHIO TECHNICAL PROGRAMMING ASSOC., INC., SMYRA, GA. TELEDYNE COMPANY, BROWN ENGRG. CO., HUNTSVILLE, ALA. TELEDYNE COMPANY, CINCINNATI, OHIO TIBBETTS INDUSTRIES, INC., CAMDEN, ME. TRITON COLLEGE, PHILADELPHIA, PA. TROYAN-KENNEDY COMPANY, CINCINNATI, OHIO TRU-CUT INC., ATLANTA, GA. TRW, INC., PORT CLINTON, OHIO TRW, INC., HARRISBURG, PA. TWIN CITY, ARSENAL, NEW BRIGHTON, MINN.

U.S. AIR FORCE, APO, N.Y. U.S. DEPT. OF COMMERCE, WASHINGTON, D.C. U.S. NAVAL APPLIED SCIENCE LAB., BROOKLYN, N.Y. U.S. NAVY, WASHINGTON, D.C. UTD CORPORATION, DERBY LINE, VT. UNIMET CARBIDES, DIV. OF UNITED GREENFIELD, CHICAGO, ILL. UNION CARBIDE CORP., TARRYTOWN, N.Y. UNITED AIRCRAFT PRODUCTS, INC., FOREST, OHIO UNITED AIRCRAFT PRODUCTS, INC., FOREST, OHIO UNITED NUCLEAR CORP., NEW HAVEN, CONN. UNITED SHOE MFG., CORP., (THE), BEVERLY, MASS. UNIVAC, SALT LAKE CITY, UTAH VAN INDUSTRIES, CINCINNATI, OHIO VARIAN ASSOCIATES, PALO ALTO, CALIF. VITRO LABORATORIES, SILVER SPRINGS, MD.

WAUKESHA CUTTING TOOL, WAUKESHA, WISC. WESTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY, KALAMAZOO, MICH. WESTINGHOUSE ELECTRIC CORP., CHARLOTTE, N.C. WESTINGHOUSE ELECTRIC CORP., MADISON, PA. WINDSOR MANUFACTURING, WINDSOR, CONN. WORLD AEROSPACE CORP., MINNEAPOLIS, MINN. WRIGHT-PATTERSON AIR FORCE BASE, FABRICATION MODIFICATION SHOP, WRIGHT-PATTERSON AFB, OHIO

٢

FIGURE 25 (cont.)

SUMMARY OF SPECIFIC INQUIRIES BY COMPANIES MAKING 5 OR MORE REQUESTS

October 1, 1984 - September 30, 1988

ABEX CORPORATION	6
AEROJET-GENERAL CORPORATION (6)*	27
AERONCA INC.	6
AEROSPACE RESEARCH APPLICATION CENTER	12
AIRESEARCH MANUFACTURING CO. (3)*	13
ALLIS-CHALMERS MANUFACTURING COMPANY (2)*	19
ALTAMIL CORP.	
AMERICAN SUCIETY FOR METALS	10
MANIFACTIPING ENGINEERE	7
ARGONNE NATIONAL LABORATORY	7
ARMCO STEEL CORPORATION (4)*	ż
AVCO CORPORATION (5)*	21
AMERICAN TOOL WORKS	7
BARRY-WEHMILLER	8
BATTELLE MEMORIAL INSTITUTE (3)*	30
BENDIX CORPORATION (THE) (B)*	63
BOEING COMPANY (THE) (6)*	51
BOMAR COMPANY Booz Allen Applier Brackbon ing (2)6	5
BRISH REPVILIUM CO (THE) (3)*	10
BURNDY CORPORATION	5
CALIFORNIA GENERAL INC.	5
CARBORUNDUM COMPANY	- 1Ť
CATERPILLAR TRACTOR COMPANY (2)*	5
CHRYSLER CORPORATION (2)*	5
CINCINNATI LATHE AND TOOL COMPANY	10
CINCINNATI MILLING MACHINE	
CUMPANY (THE) (2)*	
CINCINNALI SHAPER COMPANY CINCINNALI UNIVERSITY OF	O R
CLEVELAND AUTOMATIC MACHINE	0
TOOL COMPANY	5
CONTINENTAL AVIATION & ENGINEERING	
CORP. (2)*	10
CORNELL AERONAUTICAL LABORATORY INC.	5
CORNING GLASS WORKS	9
CHUMING ENGLISE COMPANY OF AMERICA (2)*	9
CUMMINS ENGINE COMPANY, INC.	20
DELAVAL TURRING INC	50
Do ALL COMPANY (2)*	5
DOW CHEMICAL COMPANY (3)*	12
DUPONT DENEMOURS & CO., E.I. (3)*	32
DYNAMICS CORPORATION OF AMERICA	10
ELECTRICAL MACHINING INC.	5
ELECTRONICS SPECIALTY COMPANY	6
ELLIOT COMPANY Sederal Mongue Corroration	8
FORD MOTOR COMPANY (5)*	15
GENERAL DYNAMICS CORP. (5)*	56
GENERAL ELECTRIC CO. (31)*	228
GENERAL MOTORS CORP. (13)*	35
GENERAL PRECISION INC. (3)*	5
GLIDDEN COMPANY (THE)	
GUUDYEAR AEROSPACE CORPORATION	14
GRUMMAN ALBORAFT ENGINEEDING CORP. (2)*	10
HAMILTON STANDARD	11
HOLLEY CARBURETOR COMPANY (2)*	13
HONEYWELL, INC. (4)*	9
HUGHES AIRCRAFT COMPANY (4)*	12
IT RESEARCH INSTITUTE	6
ILLINGIS, UNIVERSITY OF	
INTERNATIONAL RUSINESS MACHINE CODE (R)+	16
THE REAL POSIDESS MACHINE CORP. (0)	

N 1	rer í	N.	AT	10	DN 1	A	L,	٩,		С	KI	EL		С	0	• •		ł	N	с.					
JER	، ۲	N	M	,	, 10	F /	, • (. T		R				c.	•	MP		N	v						
JON	IES	Ϊ8	k i	ÊA	M	s	01		Č	~	• •	• •		-			^	14	'						
KEN	INA	ME	ΞŦ	A L	-	11	NC	•		(:	3)	*													
KRO	NE	NE	3 E	RG	ι,	1	DF	۲.	ļ	M	A)	(
LAD	15	H	, C	0. MA						т,				~ .							D	v			
LEG	16-	T	, . ГМ	с с	5-	ν.	1 F 0 I	10	ы	Ť	50	ï		c' c		" "	â	ì	•	,	n .	• •	•		
Loc	КН	EE	ED	Ă	λī.	R		λ.	F	÷.	'α	:0	R	e P I	o I	۰ ۹ ۸	Ť	'n	01	ł	(5	5)	٠		
Lop	GE	8	k	SF	11	PI	LI	ΞY		ċ	0 0	A P	A	N '	Y	,	(Т	H	È)					
MAC	HI	N E	2 1	D٤	S	t (GΝ	4																	
MAR	QU	AF	10	T	ç	01	R	. .		(Tŀ	18)		(;	2)	:								
MAR	100	AF	10	T	N 4 D	1E	Τ	A L	٠,	P A	R (ספ	U	C	T	s	С	0	Mł	^ A	N	٢.			
MAG	((A)	п С 1	-с 40	SE	я е : Т	7 ·	NII C	r t	۱ N	4. c	יי דו	т	п	т	5	0			т		ы	• •			
MAS	SSE	Ÿ.	F	ER	۰. G	U:	s () N		ĭ	NC	:.	U		-	Ŭ				- ~	•••	•••			•
MEN	AS	ċ	ວ່	M	A N	IV	F	A C	: 1	U	R	1.0	1 G	. (C	ON	P	A	N١	٢	(2	2)	*		
Мет	AL	WO) R	κı	i N	G	٨	14	G	A ;	ΖI	N	E												
MET	Cυ	т.	R	E S	δE	A	R(ЗH		A	SS	50	С	Ŀ	A '	ŤΕ	S		U	٩C	٠				
MET	EM		0	RF	0' ח	R	A 1	r 1	•	N	,	~~		_		,		`							
MICL	10N	G	1 L. 4 N	5	ы	N	11	シレ	R	S	13	, U F Y	ĸ	r n	F	•	4	'	•						
Mon	ISA	N	TO	°F	₹Ĕ	SI	Ē/	A R	ĉ	н	Ċ	Ξò	R	P	0 I	R A	Т	ī	01	¢	(3	3)	•		
Mod	G	11	NC	•																					
MOR	R E H	E/	A D	5	ЗT	A	τI	Ε	U	N	D	/E	R	s	Ľ	TΥ	,								
NA1	110	N	AL	ŀ	١E	R	01	NA	U	T	10	: ș		ŝ		SF	•	С	£						
NI 4 7	A			NI	15	T	R/	۲ ۸ ۲	1	0	N		4	2											
New		NI /	4 L. 5 I.		- E	2	D,		С) Р - Ш		8	H D	1 U 6 I	۰.	~			••		c		
NOR	, с тн		эс Ам	EF	21	c.		- 3 N	R	0	с і	. 11 (W	F	n'	- 1 1	6	5	Ř	ρ	. 1	ŭ	,)	*		ER
NOF	тн	Ċ	CA	RC	οĹ	ĩ	N	Å	ŝ	Ť	Α.	ΓE		ū	N	1 1	έ	R	s	I т	Ŷ	.,			
NOR	TH	R	οP	N	10	R	A	I R						-					-						
NOF	8 T O	N	Ċ	0	A P	A	N '	۲		_															
OWE	ENS	•	I L	L	I N	0	1	5~-	(2	י (-	•					_		_						
PEN		Υ 0	ĽV	A 1	N D D	A		5 T	1	T	E	U I	2	ł	*	EF	15	1	T	Y					
Pil		T	P	R	с г 0 п	ň	с [.]	τς		č	n A I	\ 0 P	5	'											
PRA	NT T	ંત	÷	W	HI	T	ŇI	ΕŸ		Ă	11	٩C	R		F	т	(3	، (•					
RAD	010	• (Co	RI	PO	R	A '	ΓI	0	N	() F		A	м	E R	εi	с	Â	(4	• (
RE/	IC T	1	۷E	N	ļΕ	T	A I	LS		I	N	с.													
REY	YN O	Ļ	DS	N	ΛE	T	A I	L.	С	0	MI	PA	N	۷											
ROC	2 K 1 D		5 L 0 B		٩D		AI	RS	E	N	A 1	L													
SAN	ית יחו	Ă	ĉ	0.6	, P P																				
SM/	NL L	Ĩ	Βŭ	SI	I N	Ē	s	s	A	DI	M	I N	ł	s	тι	R A	T	ī	01	N	(5)	٠		
Sou	JTH	E	RN	1	۱L	L	u	N 0	I	\$	ł	JN	ļ	۷	E	RS	1	T	Y		-				
SPE	ERR	Y	R	A	N D	1	C	DR	Ρ	٠	, :	(9)	•											
511		~	RD		21	L.		-0	٠		()	ГH	Ε	,		(3	"	•							
SUN	1 D S	ті	VIA RA	N	52	ċ	N I 0 I	e P			\$	5.0	N	n	5	TA		N	n	A	v		тι		
SYL	VA	N	1.4	Ē	έι	Ē	c ·	T R	i	ċ	ì	R	Ö	Ď	Ū	Ċī	s		č	0M	P	AN	Ŷ		•
TRV	۷,	11	NC	•	(5) (۰,	_																
TEL	ED.	YI	NE		N	C.	•	. (5	<u>}</u>	•					_	,	•	۰.						
THE	NNE.	5	5 E I	E,	2	U	N	I V	E	R	S	I T	Y		0		(4	, ,						
Тні		0	Ľ'	Ĉŀ	I E	м	10		L	4	C	R	P												
TIM	NKE	R	Ā	1	1	F	01	RC	Ē	Ì	Đ,	۱s	Ē	•											
Tod	י אנ	S	AL	E S	3	å		Se	R	۷	ŧ	E													
0.5	5.	N	A V	AL	•	A	P	٩L	I	٤I	D	S	c	1	E١	NC	E	,	Ľ	18	•				
UNI		()	UA.	R B		D	E	¢	0	R	P (R		T	1	0 N	1	(5	•					
VAL	LER Nuo	10	N T	4	3) 40	ő	. ,	• •			~	۱ е													
WAY	(M U Y N F		Śτ	A1	- E. F F	~ 1	Ů,	. A 1	v	Ē	R	5 H	Ť	÷											
WES	STE	RÍ	Ň	EL	LΕ	c	TI	1 9	ċ	٦,	c	5.		ſ	L	NC	:.		(4	4)					
WES	S T Î	N	GH	OL	JŚ	E	1	ΞL	E	C	T I	11	ċ	ł	C	OR	P	•		(1	0	• (
WR	I G H	T	- P	A 1	ſΤ	E	R :	5 O	N	4	A	I R		F	0	R C	E		B	A S	E	(4)*	
WYN	AAN	-(30	RC	0	N	(:0	M	P	A !	٩Y		C	2) •									
XEF	8 O X	(00	Rf	٠.																				

£

()* No. OF DIVISIONS

SEE APPENDIX, PAGE A-14

41

FIGURE 28





SEE APPENDIX, PAGE A-15

43

FIGURE 28

								TURI	9 N I N G										ł	1
		┢	┢					Ĭ	SECUENT.									1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		
ACTERIAL	CONTITION L			× ×	ALL SAME	*	ä	.1338	-1308	ELLE"	an a			j.				5	ŧ]	
uita TartaAtvet Manual - (cont.) Manual 218	ALLOYS - RICACL 1 2018/1100 TREATE 2 ADED			1.	115 1155	•	=	=	2		.032	32	990.	-89	ŝ	- 2		-+-+	╾┼╌╉	
119 III	ANSTENITIC 20197100 TREAT 2. AUED ANSTENITIC			3	2.0	•	-	=	=	- 2	269.	= :: 8	<u><u></u></u>	·····		= <u>E</u>	==8	==}	+	
		3	5	{		PER	PHE	RAL	END M	1111	9									
		\mathbf{F}		ł	$\left \right $	L		F					5			-	ž		E/OUT	E.
MTBIAL	COMPITION 6				TTER DIA TTER DIA										*8 =					Į Į Į
MIGH TEMPERATORE DASE DEPENDENT (cont.)	ALLOTS - NICKEL SALUTON TREATED & ABED AUSTENTIC			37 N3	. 1 1 1 1 1			8	8	2	-080 -080		= =	<u>.</u>	. 736	ē.	- <u> </u>	<u> </u>		~ K
~~~~~		R	S	Ś	2	Ş	ζ	} š					•							1
		F		IIM		Ĺ		31.25			GENET	2				MILL				
MITTAL	Committien 6 Seicestimetime		Ĭ			in a	LENGTI in.	FLUTI LENGTI in.	E	딸을					je je		Ia			
NIGN TENERATUR BASE NOOVENT (cont.)	ALLOYS - NICKEL SAUTION TREATED	245		122 122	15181	- 25	2.5	1.37	5 CRAN	3			8	TARU TARU	.002	£10.	23 21		╶┼╌┨	ť
	AMETEMITIC		-			-				_				ł	ĺ	k		Ş	Ş	Z

FIGURE 29

44

SEE APPENDIX, PAGE A-15

DESCRIPTION & DISTRIBUTION OF AFMDC DATA PRODUCTS

الله المحمد ا محمد المحمد ال

And a second second

.

August, 1965 - September 30, 1968

	DISTR	IBUT I ON	
DESCRIPTION & CONTENT	USER FILE L DIRECT INQUIRIES	NO. SOLD	TOTAL
AFINGC 65-1, HACHINING DATA FOR TITANIUM ALLOYS, AUGUST 1965 Turning, Face Milling, End Mill Slotting, Peripheral End Milling, Drilling, Reaming, Tapping, Broaching and Surface Grinding for Commercially Pure Titanium, Alpha & Alpha-Beta, and Beta Alloys.	4.116	1,567	5,683
AFUNC 68-1, MACMINING DATA FOR NUMERICA! CONTROL, DECEMBER 1966 Contains all the cata originally printed in the 7 individual reports, AFNDC 66-1.1 Through 66-1.7 Listed below. (See Notes).	158	811	769
AFUNC 88-1.1, MACNINIME DATA FOR NUMERICAL CONTROL-TURNING, JUNE 1966 Free Machining Plain Carbon Steels, Plain Carbon Steels, Free Machining Alloy Steels, Alloy Steels, ULTRA-Mign Strength Steels, Tool Steels-Hot Work, Stainless Steels, Titanium Alloys, High Temperature Alloys, Refractory Alloys, and Nonmetallics.	1,081	08	1,171
AFTOC GG-1.2, MACMIMIME DATA FOR NUMERICAL CONTROL-FACE MILLING, AUGUST 1986 Alloy Steels, Ultra-Migh Strength Steels, Tool Steels-Hot Work, Stainless Steels, Titanium Alloys, Migh Temperature Alloys, Refractory Alloys, and Nonmetallics.	1,081	28	107
AFINC 00-1.3, NACHINING DATA FOR NUMERICAL CONTROL-DRILLING, AUGUST 1908 Alloy Steels, Ultra-Migh Strength Steels, Tool Steels-Hot Work, Stainless Steels, Titanium Alloys, Migh Temperature Alloys, Refractory Alloys, and Nonnetallics	1,080	13	1.083
AFUNC 56-1.4. MACHIMING DATA FOR MUMERICAL CONTROL-PERIPHERAL END MILLING, SEPTEMBER 1868 Alloy Steels, Ultra-Migh Strength Steels, Titanium Alloys, High Temperature Alloys, and Refractory Alloys.	1,080	2	1,082
AFING 06-1.5. MACMINING BATA FOR NUMERICAL CONTROL-END MILL SLOTTING, SEPTEMBER 1986 Alloy Steels, Ultra-High Strength Steels, Tool Steels-Hot Work, Stainless Steels, Titanium Alloys, Migh Tempenatume Alloys, and Refractory Alloys	1,063	2	1,085
AFUNC 86-1.6. MACHINING BATA FOR NUMERICAL CONTROL-TAPPING, NOVENSER 1988 Alloy Stecls, Ultra-Migh Strength Steels, Tool Steels-Hot Work, Stainless Steels, Titanium Alloys, Migh Temperature Alloys, Refractory Alloys, and Nonmetallics.	1,060	•	1,060
AFUDE 60-1.7. MACHINIMS DATA FOR NUMERICAL CONTROL-REAMING, NOVEMBER 1986 Ultra-Mich Strength Steels. Titanium Allovs, Migh Temperature Allovs, and Refractory Allovs,	1.080	•	1,080
AFING 00-2, CRIMPING RATIOS FOR AEROSPACE ALLOYS, JUNE 1906 Surface Grinding of Alloy Steels, Ultra-Migh Strength Steels, Tool Steels, Stainless Steels, Titanium Alloys, Migh Temperature Alloys, Refractory Alloys and Nonmetallics.	898	174	872
AFMDC 86-3, MACHINING BATA FOR DERYLLIUM METAL, JUNE 1966 This Booklet covers problems involved in Machining Beryllium, in Addition to specific data for 10 Conventional operations and 4 alternate Machining Methods.	727	358	1,085
AFUNC 60-1. DETENDINATION AND ANALYSIS OF MACHINING COST AND PRODUCTION RATES USING CONPUTER Techniques, Anoust 1969 This data product describes a practical approach to the problem of obtaining aachining costs and production rates. It includes equations, numerous computer calculations and computer source prodame Listimes.	•	•	•
APINGE 88-2, 1008 SUPPLENENT TO MACHINING DATA FOR NUMERICAL CONTROL, AUGUST 1968 This supplement is a companion volume to machining data for numerical control (APMEC 66-1). Machining data are presented for the nemer acrospace materials.	•	•	•
101ALS	13.214	2.833	16.047

· No statistics available since this data product was only recently announced.

SEE APPENDIX, PAGE A-15

**4**5

ELOUR 30

### DATA ACQUISITION PLANT VISIT PROGRAM

### LIST OF COMPANIES THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 1968

Aerejet-General Corporation Sacremento, California

Aerospace Research Applications Center Biomington, Indiana

AiResearch Manufacturing Company Pheenix, Arizona

American Besch Arma Corporation Sarden City, New York

American Welding & Manufacturing Company Warren, Chie

Argenne National Laboratory Argenne, Illinois

Avce Corporation Nashville, Tennessee

Seech Aircraft Corporation Wichita, Kansas

Bell Helicopter Company Ft. Worth, Texas

Bondix Corporation Totorboro, New Jersey

Beeing Company (The) Wichita, Kansas

Booing Company (The) (2)* Seattle, Washington

Concret Dynamics Corporation San Diego, California

Conoral Dynamics Corporation Ft. Worth, Texas

Seneral Electric Company Phoenix, Arizona

Ciddings & Lowis Inc. Fond Du Loc, Witconsin

Brinding Wheel Institute Pitteburgh, Pennsylvania

Nughos Airereft Company Tueson, Arizona

Nughes Aircraft Company Culver City, California

Laiser Aerospace & Electronics San Lunxdre, Colifornia

Ling-Tonco-Vought, inc. Dallas, Toxas

Lookhood Aircroft Corporation (2)* Burbank, Colifornia

Lockhood-Georgia Company Nariotta, Georgia

( )" more than one visit

Lockhood Aircraft Corporation Sunnyvale, California

Los Angeles Pierce College Woodland Hills, California

Martin Company Orlande, Florida

Menasco Manufacturing Company Burbank, California

NcDennell Douglas Corporation Santa Menica, California

NcDonnoll Bouglas Corporation St. Louis, Missouri

North American Rockwell Corporation Ansheim, California

North American Rockwell Corporation Downey, California

North American Reckwell Corporation (2)* Camega Park, Colifornia

North American Rochwoll Corporation (3)* Los Angolos, California

Northrop Norair Nawthorno, California

Northrop Ventura Newbury Park, California

Prott & Whitney Aircraft West Palm Boach, Florida

RCA Canden, New Jersey

Sandia Corporation Albuquerque, New Mexico

Solar/Div. of International Narvester Son Diego, California

Sperry Syretcope Company Breat Neck, New York

Sporry Rand Corporation Sporry Flight Systems Division Phoenix, Arizona

Tinkor Air Force Base Skishons City, Skishons

ĩ

Union Curbide Corporation Bak Ridgo, Tonnessoo

Western Electric Company, Inc. Okishema City, Okishema

Westinghouse Electric Corporation Sunnyvale, California

46

SEE APPENDIX, PAGE A-10

# CODE SHEET FOR PROJECT TIME CARD

(USED BY EMPLOYFES FOR RECORDING HOURS ON DAILY TIME CARDS)

<u>PIRECT LABOR</u>	1000
INQUIRIES	1100
ENGINEERING SUPERVISION*	1110
INGUIRY STRAGETY AND INQUIRY APPROVAL	1111
MACHINING DATA ANALYSIS	1120
Answering Inquiries	1121
DATA PROCESSING	1130
KEYPUNCHING	1131
VERIFICATION	1132
SONTING	1133
	1134
COMPUTER PROCESSING	1136
DATA CONTROL	1140
FORMS AND DOCUMENT HANDLING	1141
DATA ACQUISITION*	1150
SPECIAL ACQUISITION FOR INQUIRIES	1151
REPRODUCTION*	1160
XEROX	1161
DITTO	1163
	1165
STSTEMS ANALTSIS	1170
TECHNICAL REVIEW Cost Evaluation	1171
VISITS TO AFNDC - TECHNICAL*	1180
MANUFACTURING TECHNOLOGY DIVISION	1161
OTHERS	1182
GRIGINAL BATA ENTRY	1200
ENGINEERING SUPERVISION	1210
TECHNICAL PLANNING	1211
MACHINING DATA ANALYSIS	1220
PRESIMINARY SCREENING	1221
PRELIMINARY TECHNICAL EVALUATION	1222
FINAL TECHNICAL EVALUATION (put Document	
Control No. on Daily Time Slip)	1553
DATA PROCESSING	1530
KEY PUNCHENG	1531
SORTING	1232
Coore	1234
DECODING	1532
COMPUTER PROCESSING	1536
DATA CONTROL	1240
FORMS AND DOCUMENT MANDLING	1241
REPRODUCTION	1250
ACHON Dhaving of Data Sweets, etc.	1251
SYSTEMS ANALYSIS	1240
TECHNICAL REVIEW	1241
COST EVALUATION	1262
DATA ACQUISITION EVALUATION	1263

DATA ACOULSITION - LITERATURE	1270
REPORTS AND CASE MISTORIES	1271
DOMESTIC PERIODICAL L'ITERATURE	1272
FOREIGN PERIODICAL LITERATURE	1273
INDUSTRIAL TRADE LITERATURE	1274
TECHNICAL INSTITUTIONS, PROFESSIONAL	
SOCIETIES, AND ASSOCIATIONS	1275
PUBLISHERS OF HANDBOOKS, MANUALS, BOOKS	1276
INFORMATION CENTERS	1277
GOVERNMENT AGENCIES	1278
MACHINABILITY LABORATORIES	1279
DATA ACQUISITION - BY TECHNICAL PERSONNEL	1280
PLANT VISITS	1281
TELEPHONE, TWX, TELEGRAM	1282
LETTERS	1283
TECHNICAL MEETINGS (MACHINABILITY)	1284
TECHNICAL MEETINGS (INFORMATION SCIENCE)	1200
Foreign Technicas Mertings	1287
INDUSTRY SPECIAL	1288
DATA STORACE	1200
Decompany Files	1201
SUPPORT INFORMATION (BOOKS, ETC.)	1292
GENERAL DISSEMINATION OF MACHINADILITY	
BATA AND CENTER INFORMATION	1300
PUBLICATION IN TECHNICAL LITERATURE	1310
PRESENTATION AT TECHNICAL MEETINGS	1311
PRESENTATION AT PLANTS	1312
AFNOC EXHIBITS	1320
NEWSPAPERS (METALWORKING, ETC.) & MAGAZINES	1330
USER LIST (TECHNICAL ASPECTS)	1340
USER LIST PRODUCTS	1350
AFNOC PAMPHLETS, ANNOUNCEMENTS, ETC.	1360
SPECIAL MEPONTS (STATE-OF-THE-ANT, ETC.)	1370
UIULIGERAPRI <u>II</u>	1380
APHIC STATES REPORTS AND DEETINGS	1400
MonTH, Y (MTD)	1410
QUARTERLY (MTD)	1420
QUARTERLY (MTD) Annual (MTD)	1420
GUARTERLY (MTD) Annual (MTD) Operations Manual	1420 1430 1440
GUARTERLY (MTD) Annual (MTD) Operations Manual Detailes Code Book	1420 1430 1440 1450
GUARTERLY (MTD) Annual (MTD) Operations Manual Detailes Code Bon AFMDC Meetings	1420 1430 1440 1450 1460
GUARTERLY (MTD) Annual (MTD) OPERATIONS MANUAL DETAILES COOE BOON AFMDC MEETINGS MANUFACTURING TTENNOLOGY DIVISION AND INFORMATION DOWNS MATTING	1420 1430 1440 1450 1460
GUARTERLY (MTD) Annual (MTD) OPERATIONS MANUAL DETAILES COOE BOON AFMDC MEETINGS MANUFACTURING TTENDELOGY DIVISION AND INFORMATION BRANCH MEETINGS, REPORTS, AND CONFERENCES	1420 1430 1440 1450 1460
GUARTERLY (MTD) Annual (MTD) OPERATIONS MANUAL DETAILED CODE BOON AFMDC MEETINGS MANUFACTURING TTEMPLOBY DIVISION AND INFORMATION BRANCH MEETINGS, REPORTS, AND CONFERENCES SPECIAL REPORTS FOR MANUFACTURING TERMIN	1420 1430 1440 1450 1460
GUARTERLY (MTD) Annual (MTD) OPERATIONS MANUAL DETAILES COOE BOON AFMDC MEETINGS MANUFACTURING TTENDELOGY DIVISION AND INFORMATION BRANCH MEETINGS, REPORTS, AND CONFERENCES SPECIAL REPORTS FOR MANUFACTURING TECHNOLOGY DIVISION, DOD, ETC.	1420 1430 1440 1450 1460
GUARTERLY (MTD) Annual (MTD) OPERATIONS MANUAL DETAILES COOE BOON AFMDC MEETINGS MANUFACTURING TTENDLOGY DIVISION AND INFORMATION BRANCH MEETINGS, REPORTS, AND CONFERENCES SPECIAL REPORTS FOR MANUFACTURING TECHNOLOGY DIVISION, DOD, ETC.	1420 1430 1440 1450 1450 1450 1450
GUARTERLY (MTD) Annual (MTD) OFERATIONS MANUAL DETAILES CORE BOON AFMDC MEETINGS MANUFACTURING TTEMPLOBY DIVISION AND INFORMATION BRANCH MEETINGS, REPORTS, AND CONFERENCES SPECIAL REPORTS FOR MANUFACTURING TECHNOLOGY DIVISION, DOD, ETC.	1420 1430 1440 1450 1450 1450 1450
GUARTERLY (MTD) ANNUAL (MTD) OPERATIONS MANUAL DETAILES COOF BOOM AFMDC MEETINGS MANUFACTURING TTENNELOGY DIVISION AND INFOMATION BRANCH MEETINGS, REPORTS, AND CONFERENCES SPECIAL REPORTS FOR MANUFACTURING TECHNOLOGY DIVISION, DOD, ETC.	1420 1430 1440 1450 1460 1460 1460 1460
GUARTERLY (MTD) ANNUAL (MTD) OPERATIONS MANUAL DETAILES CODE BOON AFMDC MEETINGS MANUFACTURING TTENNELOGY DIVISION AND INFOMATION BRANCH MEETINGS, REPORTS, AND CONFERENCES SPECIAL REPORTS FOR MANUFACTURING TECHNOLOGY DIVISION, DOD, ETC. MACHINING BATA VERIFICATION - EXPERIMENTAL (PROVISIONAL - PRESENTLY INACTIVE)	1420 1433 1440 1450 1460 1470 1460 1460
GUARTERLY (MTD) ANNUAL (MTD) OPERATIONS MANUAL DETAILES COOE BOON AFMDC MEETINGS MANUFACTURING TTENNELOGY DIVISION AND INFOMATION BRANCH MEETINGS, REPORTS, AND CONFERENCES SPECIAL REPORTS FOR MANUFACTURING TECHNOLOGY DIVISION, DOD, ETC. MACHINING BATA VERIFICATION - EXPERIMENTAL (PROVISIONAL - PRESENTLY INACTIVE) PLANNING	1420 1433 1440 1450 1450 1460 1470 1460 1500
GUARTERLY (MTD) ANNUAL (MTD) OPERATIONS MANUAL DETAILES COOP BOON APHDC MEETINGS MANUFACTURING TTENDLOGY DIVISION AND INFORMATION BRANCH MEETINGS, REPORTS, AND CONFERENCES SPECIAL REPORTS FOR MANUFACTURING TECHNOLOGY DIVISION, DOD, ETC. MACHINING BATA VERIFICATION - EXPERIMENTAL (PROVISIONAL - PRESENTLY INACTIVE) PLANNING TESTING	1420 1430 1440 1450 1460 1460 1460 1460 1460 1500

(

ľ

.....

"Put Inquirer and Sequence numbers in Operation space on Time Card The Inquirer No. and Sequence No. are those blacked out at the top of IF-1 as shown here:

SEE APPENDIX, PAGE A-16

47

FIGURE 31

# CODE SHEET FOR PROJECT TIME CARD (continued)

0000

SYSTEMS ANALYSIS - JEHERAL	1600
1130 COMPUTING SYSTEM (SYSTEMS ASPECTS) Statistical Program for Analysis of	1610
CENTER EFFECTIVENESS (SPACE)	1620
1130 COMPUTING SYSTEM (TECHNICAL ASPECTS)	1630

# INDIRECT LABOR

GENERAL REPAIR, CLEANING, PAINTING	0101
TRAINING	0102
SICKNESS OR EXCUSED ABSENCE	0103
VACATION	0104
ACQUISITION OF MAJOR FACILITIES AND	
EQUIPMENT	0105
ACQUISITION OF MINOR EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES	0106
PROPOSALS AND SETTING UP PROGRAMS	0116
TECHNICAL MEETINGS AND PAPERS (NOT DIRECTLY	
RELATED TO AFMDC)	0127
GENERAL AFMDC CLERICAL AND OFFICE WORK	0128
GENERAL AFMDC ADMINISTRATION	0150
TYPING AND CLERICAL ON INDUIRIES	0151
Typing and Clerical on Original Data Entries	0152
HANDLING OF MAIL	0153
PERSONNEL (HIRING, ETC.)	0154
USER FILE (TYPING AND CLERICAL)	0155
VISITORS (TRANSPORTATION, SYSTEM	
DEMONSTRATION. GENERAL AFMDC INFORMATION)	0156
DATA PROCESSING (TIME CARDS. ETC.)	0157
TYPING AND CLERICAL ON USER PRODUCTS	0158
MISCELLANEOUS AFMDC NONCHARGEABLE SERVICES	0159
I PRARY-SUPPORT INFORMATION	0160

# <u>PURCHASES</u>

For Purc	HASES PRECEDE CODE BY:	800
Examples		
800-1230	IBM CARDS FOR DATA PROCESSING, ETC.	
800-0000	) INDIRECT CHARGES SUCH AS GENERAL SU	PPLIES
AAA 1474		

### AFMDC DAILY TIME SLIP



49

. .

SEE APPENDIX, PAGE A-18

FIGURE 32

PROJECT CLASS 5 1231 5 1241	LABOR 1 1	COMPU EMPLOYEE NUMBER F1 5 459 5 459 5 459	TTER PRINTOUT OF INFORMATION RST-NAME-LAST V HEITKEMPE V HEITKEMPE	AFMDC PR0 ELAPSED Hours 1.50 2.50	UECT TIME C/ DATE NI 9 16 68 951	IROJECT PROJECT D999 68 D999 68	LIST PAYROLL
5 1136 5 1232 5 1430 5 1430 4 1350 4 1350		5 384 5 384 5 384 5 384 4 240 4 240 4 240	C CROCKETT C CROCKETT C CROCKETT C CROCKETT A F ACKENHAUS A F ACKENHAUS	4.00       1.00       2.50       7.50       0.50       1.50       2.50	9     17     68     95       9     18     68     95       9     19     68     95       9     19     68     95       9     19     68     95       9     19     68     95       9     19     68     95	0999 68 0999 68 0999 68 0003 68 0003 68	
4 1223 4 1223 4 1223		4 210 4 235 4 235 4 235 4 235	C MEHL C MEHL C MEHL	4.50 2.00 5.00 6.50 13.50	9 13 68 95 9 14 68 95 9 18 68 95	89 6660 89 6660 89 6660	
+ 1121 + 1121 + 1121 + 1121		+ 220 + 220 + 220 + 220	R SNIDER R SNIDER R SNIDER R SNIDER	1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00	9 23 68 9 24 68 9 25 68 9 26 68	0846 11029 0154 11055 0024 11063 0028 11058	
2 1111 2 1430		+ 220 2 101 2 101 2 101	J MARANCHIK J MARANCHIK	4.00 2.00 2.00 4.00	9 23 68 95 9 24 68 95	89 6660	

# AFMDC OPERATING COSTS

# FEBRUARY 1, 1960 - SEPTEMBER 30, 1968

INPUT COSTS		
TECHNICAL EVALUATION	\$	28,483.81
DATA PROCESSING		18,778.63
I DOCUMENT ACQUISITION & REPRODUCTION		11,467.96
CONTEMENT CHOOLIES & CEDUICES		58,731.40
I EUVIEMENI, SUFFLIES & SERVILES		0,203.83
		84,935,33
OUTPUT COSTS		
INQUIRIES:	_	
TECHNICAL EVALUATION	\$	37,027.81
DATA PROCESSING & RETRICTAL DATA ACOULSITION & REPRODUCTION		9.030.71 A 847 14
ANN MATALILAN M UPLUARANIAN		51,333.48
DATA PRODUCTS:	•	10 954 4-
UATA FRODUCTS CUMPLETED & IN PROCESS (INCLUDING PRINTING CUSIS) Reprinting of USAF Machinariiity reports	\$	10,352.07 1 200 nn
unining at and muninumpert uptairs		22.841 07
EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES & SERVICES		5.297.00
		27.938.07
		• • • • • • •
TOTAL OUTPUT	\$	79,271.53
GENERAL DISSEMINATION		
GENERAL DISSEMINATION OF MACHINABILITY DATA & CENTER INFORMATION	\$	2,917.41
EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES & SERVICES		282.00
τηται		3,199,41
REPORTS		
AFMDC SYSTEMS REPORTS	\$	1,790.77
I ININU ANNUAL REPORT - PREPARATION & PRINTING Fourth Annual Report - preparation & printing		5,353.43
AFMDC, MTD AND INFORMATION BRANCH MEETINGS AND SPECIAL MTD REPORTS		4,014.00 5,258 N7
		15 018 32
EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES & SERVICES		3,424.00
TOTAL		18,440.32
SYSTEMS ANALYSIS MODIFICATION & CONTON	·	
TECHNICAL EVALUATION		0 000 01
DATA PROCESSING - IBN 1130 COMPUTING SYSTEM:	>	2,099.84
TECHNICAL ASPECTS		820.54
SYSTEMS ASPECTS		7,840.63
OPERATIONS MANUAL & CODE BOOK REVISIONS & ADDITIONS		1,497.51
		12,048.52
EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES & SERVICES		1,260.09
TOTAL		13,308.81
TOTAL ACTUAL COSTS NOT INCLUDING FIXED FEE	\$	179,155.20

SEE APPENDIX, PAGE A-16

FIGURE 34

(j:

### AFMDC INPUT & OUTPUT SUMMARY

October 1, 1964 - September 30, 1968

### SYSTEM INPUT

<u>Document and Card Totals</u>		
Documents Entered into the System (including Specific Inquiries)		
Oct. 1, 1964 - Jan. 31, 1967		17,576
Feb. 1. 1967 - Jan. 31. 1968		3,695
Feb. 1. 1968 - Sept. 30, 1968		2,341
	Total	23,612
Evaluated Documents (including Specific Inquiries)		
Oct. 1. 1964 - Jan. 31. 1967		9.367
Feb. 1. 1967 - Jan. 31. 1968		3.734
Feb. 1. 1968 - Sept. 30, 1968		2,840
	Total	15,941
Total Cards Punched		
Oct. 1, 1964 - Jan. 31, 1967		75, 173
Feb. 1. 1967 - Jan. 31. 1968		27,077
Feb. 1. 1968 - Sept. 30, 1968		13.833
	Total	116,083
SYSTEM OUTPUT		
<u>Specific Inquiries</u>		

Inquiries Received October 1, 1964 - January 31, 1966 Individual Companies Represented		595 314
Inquiries Received February 1, 1966 - January 31, 1967 Individual Companies Represented		736 396
U.S. Government Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Represented Inquiries Received February 1, 1967 - January 31, 1968 Individual Companies Represented Individuals Represented U.S. Government Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Represented		90 1,002 485 690 96
Inquiries Received February 1, 1968 - September 30, 1968 Individual Companies Represented Individuals Represented U.S. Government Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Represented		982 439 596 105
Data Products	Copies Distributed	Unit Costs (Preparation & Printing)
AFMDC 65-1, Machining Data for Titanium Alloys AFMDC 66-1, Machining Data for Numerical Control AFMDC 66-1.1, Machining Data for Numerical Control-Turning AFMDC 66-1.2, Machining Data for Numerical Control-Face Milling AFMDC 66-1.3, Machining Data for Numerical Control-Drilling AFMDC 66-1.4, Machining Data for Numerical Control-Peripheral End Milling AFMDC 66-1.5, Machining Data for Numerical Control-Peripheral End Milling AFMDC 66-1.6, Machining Data for Numerical Control-End Mill Slotting AFMDC 66-1.6, Machining Data for Numerical Control-Tapping AFMDC 66-1.7, Machining Data for Numerical Control-Reaming AFMDC 66-2, Grinding Ratio for Aerospace Alloys AFMDC 66-3, Machining Data for Beryllium Metal Total	5,683 769 1,171 1,107 1,093 1,082 1,065 1,060 1,060 572 1,035 16,047	\$ 1.04 \$ 6.34 \$ 4.07 \$ 3.66 \$ 3.65 \$ 1.11 \$ 1.58 \$ 1.24 \$ 0.85 \$ 3.50 \$ 5.98
<u>Unit Costs</u> Per Inguiry (595) - Oct. 1964 - Jan. 1966		\$47.49

Per	TUĞUTLÂ	(393) - OCC. 1964 - Jan. 1966	
Per	Inquiry	(736) - Feb. 1966 - Jan. 1967	
Per	Inquiry	(1002) - Peb. 1967 - Jan. 1968	
Per	Inquiry	(982) Feb. 1968 - Sept. 1968	
Per	Inquiry	(3315) - Oct. 1964 - Sept. 1968	

FIGURE 35

SEE APPENDIX, PAGE A-18

45.02 52.66 58.58 50.94

L

### FUTURE PLANNING

6.,

### MAJOR GOALS

- 1. Increase utilization of AFMDC to meet the needs of industry personnel who have the responsibility for producing hardware and solving machining problems.
- 2. Continue to identify and make personal contacts with personnel in all echelons who can utilize machining information available from the Center. Emphasis will be given to contractors, subcontractors, and sub-subcontractors producing components for advanced aerospace vehicles.
- 3. Set up seminars at AFMDC and in selected areas whereby key personnel involved in manufacture of advanced aerospace vehicles will be invited to attend. One of the prime subjects to be discussed at these seminars will be the machining of titanium alloys which will be in heavy usage in these vehicles.
- 4. Continue the program of plant visitation to make industry aware of the data stored by AFMDC and to obtain cooperation of input to AFMDC.
- 5. Continue coordination with the active State Technical Services Program in California, Connecticut, Georgia, Illinois, Indiana, Iowa, Michigan, Ohio, New York, Tennessee and West Virginia. Contact will be made with other states which have set such programs into operation. Also, close cooperation will continue with the National Referral Center and other centers.
- 6. Participation in the special merit project with the State of Vermont, along with another DoD Information Genter, namely, PLASTEC. The overall objectives are: a) to establish access to appropriate information analysis centers through the University of Vermont Technical Information Center and b) to test the information transfer relationship between individual companies (requesting information), information analysis centers, and the Technical Information Center (acting as a coupler).
- 7. Participation in a Special Merit Project with the State of New York with objectives similar to those cited for the State of Vermont. AFMDC is the only information center to be used in this study.
- 8. Establish closer coordination with the Foreign Technology Division for the purpose of more extensive utilization of the foreign literature in their files and wider dissemination of this information.
- 9. AFMDC will expand its services to vocational schools, whose programs include machining, through the State Technical Services Program and by direct contact.
- 10. Provide users with a list of the materials, operations, and keywords used by the Data Center to index documents.
- 11. Continue the program by which inquirers who submit specific inquiries are kept up-to-date on a periodic basis.
- 12. Prepare at least the following three data products:
  - a) Machine Tool Requirements, Average Unit Power and Surface Finish Data for Aerospace Materials.
  - b) Tool Geometry Nomenclature and Recommendations.
  - c) Applications of New Tool Materials.
  - d) Supplement to Machining Data for Titanium Alloys.

SEE APPENDIX, PAGE A-17

Consideration will be given to the preparation of several other data products.

- 13. Continue the analyses of the considerable hard machining data in AFMDC storage with the assist of the computer. The main objective is to determine what relationships and correlations may exist between the various types of machining operations and work materials.
- 14. Continue to study the potential of a computer data-link by users of the Center.
- 15. AFMDC will develop detailed plans designed to provide income for the output operation of the Center and increased use of the Center. The particular subjects to be considered are data products and inquiries.
- 16. Continue to implement the program Statistical Program for Analysis of the Center Effectiveness (SPACE) with emphasis on identifying key people involved in machining of advanced aerospace components, analysis of inquiries and machining information requirements, analysis of the quality of the documents in the system and their utilization in answering inquiries, and preparation of data products.

### ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT FOR AFMDC OPERATIONS

### (Annual Costs)

Labor and Overhead Costs for Operating Metal Cutting Machine Tools in the Metalworking Industries in the United States

Total number of metal cutting machining industries (June 10, 1963, American	ne to Ma	ools in the metalworking chinist Inventory of
Metalworking Equipment)	=	2, 137, 497
Average labor cost + overhead	=	<b>\$8.00 per hour</b>
Average working day	=	8 hours
Number of working days per year Average number of direct labor	=	250
personnel per machine	=	1
Total Cost of Labor + Overhead:		
2, 137, 497 x \$8.00 x 8 x 250 x 1	=	\$34, 199, 952, 000 or about
\$34,000.	000	. 000

Based on the 1963 Inventory and actual 1964 and 1965 metal cutting machine tool shipments, American Machinist estimates that 2, 500,000 machine tools were in use at the end of 1965. Using this projection, the \$34,000,000,000 would be revised to \$40,000,000,000.

Total Cost of Labor + Overhead: 2,500,000 x \$8.00 x 8 x 250 x 1 = \$40,000,000,000

\$40, 000, 000, 000

Total Shipments Including Exports of Metal Cutting Type Metalworking Machinery

\$1,040,766,000 (1965)

Source: U.S. Department of Commerce

Machine Tool Accessories Industry

\$971,000,000

(including small cutting tools for machine tools and metalworking machinery in the amount of \$598, 000, 000)

Source: 1965 Census of Manufacturers Bureau of Census

Cutting Fluids

### \$35,000,000

Source: "Coolant Control...a plant study plan" by B. F. Wilson, Automatic Machining, June 1965. POTENTIAL FOR APHOC SERVICES TO INDUSTRY

STATIAL LIST FROM BUILS MADE	UNIMARY OF METALEMONTIN Street Netalemonting, (	E ALANTS DIRECTORY 1907-06		AFIDE SUMMAY OF INDUI OCTOBER 1, 1964 - 5	TIES FOR-8 SIC CROWPS Eftender 30, 1960
STANDARD INDUSTRIAL CLASSI- FICATION (SIC) NUMBER G INDUSTRY CLASSIFICATION	INJOR PRODUCT	NAME ACTURED ING. OF INDIVIDUALS	RIMCE FRONCT MANUFACTURED NO. OF CONFANIES	INCONTRERS NO. 07	NTIBIC CONFAMILES
WAJOR GROUP 37 - THANGPOR- TATION EQUIPADIT SIC INDUSTRY NO.					
3721 - Aiacaars & Missics	7	22,197	٢	637	¢3
3722 - Alaceut Encincis 6 Paets	<b>:</b>	165,333	69	YOE	30
3723 - Alaceart Pasect- Lees & Pasectica Paars	:	11,284	12	•	
3729 - A.acaa. Paers & Aun., 1447 Equir- Ment	\$	125,001	380	2	57
MAJOR CROLP 33 - PSILMARY NETAL INDUSTRIES	3,669	1 ,360,594	2,442	212	0
MAJOR GROUP 34 - FAMPICATED METAL PRODUCTS, FSCEFT OND- HANCE, MACHINERY & TRANS- PONTATION EQUIPMENT	10,241	1.2%,147	6,942	60 97	
MAJOR CROLP 35 - MOHINERY, Excert Exterical.	££6.4	1,941,820	7 .345	704	326
MAJOR GROP 36 - ELECTRICAL MOUMERY, EQUIPMENT & SUPPLIES	C67.4	1,003,600,1	2,966	229	ē
	169,421	6,900,557	20,063	2,359	999

56

ï

FIGURE 36

Ľ,

•

SEE APPENDIE, PADE A-18

· 20 or more employees

### COST SAVINGS RESULTING FROM AFMDC'S OPERATION

### OCTOBER 1, 1964 - SEPTENBER 30, 1963

### COST SAVINGS RESULTING FROM AFNDC'S RESPONSE TO SPECIFIC INQUIRIES

Total Number of Specific Inquiries 3,315

Estimated Total Number of Machining Situations Included in the 3,315 Inquiries - 17,163

Estimated Savings per Machining Situation Response - \$800.00

Estimated Total Savings Resulting from Specific Inquiries - <u>17,163</u> Nachining Situations x <u>\$800.00</u> - <u>\$13,730.000.00</u>

### COST SAVINGS RESULTING FROM AFMDC'S 11 DATA PRODUCTS

Total Number of Data Product Copies Distributed - 16,047

- Estimated Number of Machining Situations Utilized per Data Product Copy - 5
- Estimated Total Number of Machining Situations <u>16.047</u> Data Product Copies  $x_5 - 80,235$

Estimated Savings per Machining Situation - 1300.00

Estimated Total Savings Resulting from Data Products - 80,235 Machining Situations x 8300.00 - 824,070,000.00

# Total Estimated Cost Savings Resulting from AFNDC'S Operation

### \$37,800,000.00

SEE APPENDIE, PAGE A-20

57

FIGURE 37

### APPENDIX

### Description of AFMDC (page 1)

This description of AFMDC is distributed by the Center in the form of a pink flyer  $(3-1/2^{\prime\prime} \times 7-1/2^{\prime\prime})$  with the information relating to Scope, Collection, and Information Services on one side of the card and with instructions on how to request machining information from AFMDC on the other side. The pink flyer is convenient in size which makes it possible to include it in all types of mailings and to use it for handouts at meetings and for Center visitors. Various plants have also used AFMDC flyers to acquaint machining personnel with Center services.

By including detailed information on how to request machining information, it is hoped that some loss in time can be avoided and that the search strategy required will be simplified. Information shown on page 1 has also been furnished for the Air Force Materials Information Centers (AFMIC) booklet, February 1968

### AFMDC Organization Chart (Figure 1, page 2)

This Organization Chart is self-explanatory, but certain comments may be helpful toward gaining a fuller understanding of the basic plan. One of the most important aspects of AFMDC's organization relates to use of engineering personnel. These persons are professionally trained, experienced people who have the capability of judging the value of machining information for input purposes and to make technical analyses of output used for answering specific inquiries as well as developing data products.

Systems Analysts are employed on a part-time basis, with emphasis being placed in three areas: 1) Data Processing, 2) Document Processing, and 3) Data Acquisition. Consultants are used to a limited extent.

Up to the present time, almost complete emphasis on document acquisition has been given to domestic considerations. Since the foreign literature and foreign efforts relating to machinability are significant, this area has been covered by using a consultant to report on foreign trends as they may influence need for domestic cognizance.

Since AFMDC is operated by Metcut Research Associates Inc., full advantage is taken of the capabilities of Metcut personnel not associated with AFMDC on a full-time basis. This includes Dr. Michael Field, president of Metcut, Mr. Norman Zlatin, vice-president of Metcut, Dr. John F. Kahles, vice-president of Metcut, and Mr. John Christopher, who is a project engineer in charge of experimental machining data being developed at Metcut.

Since metal removal is a very complex technical discipline, it is obvious that not all of the capability required can be centered in one organization, and therefore use has been made of part-time analysts located at several companies.

Two important areas of AFMDC systems are document acquisition and data processing. Document acquisition is responsible for acquiring input from both domestic and foreign sources covering the entire broad scope of machining information required to meet the output of the Center. Data processing is a key function required for storage and retrieval of the detailed evaluated and coded information extracted by Machining Data Analysts. Mechanical processing of data was accomplished prior to July 1, 1966, by Electrical Accounting Machine (EAM) equipment. Part of this equipment now supports the IBM 1130 computer, which is the medium for storage and retrieval of processed information.

From an information point of view, the Organization Chart also reflects handling aspects of information which do not require full-time activity. Trained competent secretarial personnel handle activities of the files pertaining to inquiries and data products.

Part-time Systems Analysts are used to develop required computer programs and systems evaluation of current operations. Capability of fulltime engineering and data processing personnel has been developed to supplement the effort now being expended by part-time Systems Analysts.

### AFMDC Operational Areas (page 3)

Each of the functional areas of operation of AFMDC has been assigned a code number from 1 through 9 and 0. These time codes are used in connection with the codes shown in Figure 31, pages 47 and 48, Code Sheet for Project Time Card. For example, a Machining Data Analyst in functional area No. 4 who is answering inquiries will use the code 4-1121. If a Machining Data Analyst in area No. 4 is performing in another operational area, such as assisting in technical aspects of document acquisition by obtaining data from industrial plants (see Figure 31, time code 1281), he will use the time code 7-1281. Since the project time card also includes his employee number and the operational area in which he functions, it is possible to determine the extent of time spent by employees in their principal assigned area as compared with time they spend in other functional areas of the Center (see actual Daily Time Slip, Figure 32, page 49). More important, the stored punched card information from the project time card is valuable in providing detailed analyses of the various cost aspects pertaining to the Center's operation.

### AFMDC Operations Chart (Figure 2, page 4)

Basically the Operations Chart divides functions into two principal parts: 1) System Input, and 2) System Output. The other function shown in the heading is System Analysis and is linked to input and output to insure and measure the effectiveness of the two major functions. All sources of information are referenced as ⁴documents⁴ regardless of whether they are journals, books, technical reports, data sheets, microfilm, abstracts, etc.

System Input consists of the steps shown in Figure 2 which are designed to accept any type of document from any source and process it so that each document becomes an entity within the system. The steps are set so that documents may be evaluated as to the nature of the information contained in view of the computer programs and codes which were established and are modified by System Analysis. In the preliminary screening step judgments are made by engineering personnel as to whether documents received at AFMDC have valuable machining information. The selected documents are then sent on to engineering personnel for technical evaluation and the important information is extracted and recorded using established codes and formats.

Due to the large backlog of unprocessed documents on hand at the beginning of operation of AFMDC, a decision was made to process documents through the step called Preliminary Technical Evaluation. This evaluation identified only seven parameters of a machining situation, if available, 1) machining operation, 2) material hardness, 3) material condition, 4) heat treatment, 5) material group, 6) material description, 7) tool material. At this step all documents were assigned uniterms where applicable to describe the text to the system. These uniterms, together with the source control number, are punched into card formats. Examples of computer printouts of searches made on the Preliminary Technical Evaluation and Uniterm Files are shown in Figures 8 and 9, pages 11 and 12. This mode of evaluation allowed for rapid access to documents in AFMDC storage. As of April 1, 1967, the Preliminary Technical Evaluation step was eliminated and all incoming documents selected in Preliminary Screening are routed directly to Final Technical Evaluation. In this phase of the processing all of the significant reported information for each machining situation is extracted, including numerical data and tool geometry. The extracted information is placed on the forms shown in Figure 5, page 8. These forms are given to a keypunch operator who punches cards which will be stored on the computer. A printout of this type of information is shown in Figure 10, page 13.

System output consists of the three basic types of output: 1) specific inquiries, 2) data products, and 3) general dissemination. Specific inquiries may be submitted to AFMDC by anyone qualified as a User of AFMDC. The request may be for specific data for a machining situation or series of machining operations, state-of-the-art studies, etc. A list of the types of inquiries is shown in Figure 19, page 23.

Data products are published by AFNDC on timely subjects which are comprehensive studies and generally take the form of charts of data for one or more alloys. The charts contain all the known data for machining parameters, tool geometry, cutting fluid, tool material and other considerations directly applicable to the machining situation. When data products become available a notice is sent to every individual on the User File. Through this notice the User is made aware of information that may be applicable to his needs. General dissemination takes the form of plant visits for coordination (see page 46), writing technical papers or preparing exhibits for presentation at meetings or presentation in the literature. AFMDC is always open to visitors and technical personnel are available to discuss various problems in detail and to show the User how AFMDC can assist his operation.

### AFMDC User File Map (Figure 3, page 5)

The User File map shows the number of organizations per state and the total number of individual Users in those organizations per state. These figures include Industrial Firms, Government Agencies, Universities, Colleges, other Centers, Publishers and Societies. Four states have no Users and 21 states have 10 or less organizations. As would be expected, the heavy concentration of Users is in heavy industrial sections and the West Coast aerospace industry.

### Distribution of AFMDC User File (page 6)

The basic User File was developed by using the following sources:

World Space Directory, Volume 3, No. 1 - This directory contains a large index of plants associated with the aerospace industry. An important section lists the "Major Missile and Space Manufacturers" . Request forms were sent to key people in all of the company listings in this section, and provision was made in the form allowing for listing additional personnel, personnel from other divisions, and major subcontractors.

Manufacturing Committee of the Aerospace Industries Association Washington D.C. - This is an important aerospace group which has need for machining information in the solution of their common industry problems.

The American Society for Engineering Education (including members of the Engineering College Administrative Council, Engineering College Research Council, Technical Institute Council and Industrial Members) - Letters were sent to the deans of all of the important colleges which have significant interest in machining through departments such as: Aeronautical Engineering; Ceramic Engineering; General Engineering; Industrial Engineering; Mechanical Engineering Metallurgical Engineering; Pre-Engineering; Engineering Extension Groups; Control, Computer and Information Science Departments; Material and Engineering Sciences; and Technical Engineering Institutes and Engineering Research Groups oriented in disciplines of materials and material removal. Products of the Center have been helpful to college students, some of whom are already engaged in time standards work, manufacturing engineering, etc., in cooperative work programs and in summer jobs. Even more important is the fact that the training of engineers and thus their future professional performance will be influenced through AFMDC's activities.

Information Sources - Listings were compiled from "A Directory of Information Resources in the United States", National Referral Center for Science and Technology, Library of Congress, January 1965. The prime function of the Referral Center is to direct people to the proper information sources, including Centers, in the United States. Their directory contains a large listing of Centers, Technical Societies, Government agencies, etc., which in turn disseminate information to their various clientele. This directory was reviewed and selections for the User File were made.

<u>1964</u> "ASM Index for the Review of Metal Literature" - This list includes societies and trade publications in the United States, and from it selections were made of those concerned with material removal.

<u>Manufacturing Technology Division, Wright-Patterson AFB,</u> <u>Ohio, Report Distribution Lists</u> - It should be noted that these distribution lists include other Departments of the Air Force, the Departments of the Army, Navy, Defense, and other Government agencies.

<u>Inquirers</u> - People who request information from AFMDC are termed 'inquirers'. New inquirers not already listed in the User File are added to it. Since there have been 3,315 inquiries during the 4 years operation of AFMDC, it is quite obvious that the file will grow considerably from this source alone.

<u>Materials Advisory Board (MAB) Committee on Manufacturing</u> <u>Requirements for Aerospace Materials and the Ad Hoc Commit-</u> <u>tee on Aerospace Manufacturing Requirements</u> - This group was contacted because of its importance in manufacturing planning at a national level.

In order to keep the User File current, each individual on the User File is periodically contacted to ascertain whether he wishes to continue to be listed and whether there are any changes in position and address. The last such survey was accomplished in November 1967. Names are added to the User File as a result of: 1) inquirers, 2) visitors, 3) additional names submitted by current users, 4) requests resulting from dissemination of data products, and 5) technical articles published in periodicals and announcements pertaining to the Center.

Page 6 indicates that there are a total of 4,026 individual users from a total of 1,526 organizations.

### Computer Input and Output Flow Chart (Figure 4, page 7)

The flow pattern described in this diagram gives a picture of the goals of AFMDC. All documents with detailed data are given to a Machining Data Analyst so that this data may be extracted and placed in "Data Code Forms", see Figure 5, page 8. This information is then punched on cards from which the disk files are generated. The flow chart indicates Preliminary Technical Evaluation, a phase in document processing. While this step has been eliminated for incoming documents, it is shown because there is still a backlog in the files of documents which were processed as far as Preliminary Technical Evaluation prior to April 1, 1967.

# Data Code Forms for Final Technical Evaluation (Figure 5, page 8)

Figure 5 is a photograph showing both the front and back of Data Code Forms used as an intermediate step between the original document and the punched cards used as input to disk storage. The formats are designed to handle alphameric information required for some parameters and decimal numbers for others, as well as integers. These formats and a book with codes enable the Machining Data Analyst to concisely identify the important information regarding a specific machining situation. Required decimals are set in the numerical data fields, thereby further simplifying recording of the data. These forms are then passed to the keypunch operator, who punches the information contained in them into Index, Tool-Cutting Fluid, and Numerical Data Cards.

These, plus the additional cards used by AFMDC are described as follows:

Card

### Description

- O Inquiry The Inquiry Card is punched with the inquiry information desired and is used by matching key indices in exactly the same columns as information which would have been precoded into the System.
- 1 Index The Index Card establishes information available in the System by preassigned data index columns and respective codes to be matched against inquiries. This card describes the machining situation including the machining operation, specific material designation, hardness, condition, heat treatnent, and broad material group. In addition to the above "minimum requirements", the Index Card also includes the part configuration code, tool material, machine tool description, and the control codes. The control codes provide information on the data source, its classification and index controls which allow for retrieval monitoring. The primary method of access into the AFNDC information decks is through the Index Card.
- 2 Tool-Cutting Fluid as the trade name and manufacturer. It also identifies the trade name of the cutting fluid, the manufacturer, and the concentration of the cutting fluid.
- 3 Numerical The Numerical Data Card contains actual values of machining Data variables, such as feeds, speeds, depth of cut, hole size, tool life, etc.

A-6
#### Description

4 Uniterm (key word) This card alphabetically describes special technical significance of a document not covered by categories included on the Index, Numerical Data, and Toology String Fluid Cards.

Card

- 5 Data Link This card provides means for eliminating the recording of data relevant to different topics or sources. Data are encoded and stored under one control code.
- 6 Aperture The Aperture Card is used to store and retrieve microfilms of pertinent curves, drawings or any information best stored in a graphic manner.
- 7 Bibliography The Bibliography Card set is designed to present the Source Document in a formalized, uncoded manner.
- 8 Potential Source of Information This card records into the System information on contracts awarded and other work initiated or in progress which are considered potential information sources. In this manner, the card helps direct an active data acquisition program. It also serves as a card to store certain bibliographic information such as author and organization.
- 8 Visitor This card has the same format as the Potential Source of Information Card and therefore serves not only to develop a Visitor File but can and is used to identify visitors as inquirers and/or potential sources of information.
- 19 Tickler The Tickler Card is generated at the time machining information is committed to the System primarily as a review device for updating, purging, etc., but also for checking on committments for potential sources of information. Dates for tickler review of data committed to the System are based upon the times related and shown in the Classification Code.

### Flow Chart for Fortran Program to Store, Add or Search Inquiry File (Figure 6, page 9)

The flow chart of the inquiry program is an example of the storage and search techniques used by AFMDC on the IBM 1130 computer system. These programs have two basic sections: 1) to create files into which data may be stored, added to and deleted from, and 2) to set up a procedure for searching the data files. Discussion of the inquiry program follows:

1) Create data file and store additional cards to file. Console Data Switch No. 0 controls loading of a new deck of cards to create an original file. This file is created in a file protected disk area called 'User Area'. At the end of each month, inquiries for that month are coded and cards punched. The additional cards are then loaded at the end of the file. Console Data Switch No. 1 is used to control this function of the program. By this procedure, the Inquiry File is only one month behind any inquiry ever submitted to AFMDC. 2) Search Routine - Since the load and add functions of the program are to be bypassed, Data Switch No. 0 and Data Switch No. 1 are turned off. Control of the parameters to be matched in the search are then selected through the use of Data Switches No. 2, No. 3, No. 4 and No. 5. All or any combination may be selected by the operator as specified by the Machining Data Analyst. These Data Switches (D.S.) control matches for: Specific Machining Operation (D.S. 2); Specific Material Group (D.S. 3); Specific Material Description (D.S. 4); and Uniterm (D.S. 5). Through the use of the Pata Switches the computer may be used to narrow the selection of documents if the initial search output yields too many references. This concept is fundamental to all of the search programs operated by AFMDC.

#### Inquiry File Search (Figure 7, page 10)

The Inquiry File which, as of September 30, 1968, contained data pertaining to 3,315 inquiries, is a very important AFMDC file. Search of this file can prevent duplicate effort in answering identical inquiries or provide assistance in answering those having similarity.

Figure 7 shows the use of Data Switches described in Figure 6, page 9, as they were utilized to make broad and then selective searches on the Inquiry File. The first search was made on the uniterm, CUT FLUID, by having Data Switch No. 5 in the "on" position. When the file was interrogated the machine selected and printed all inquiries for which the uniterm, CUT FLUID, was used. To be more selective on the second search, material group 301 (NICKEL BASE HIGH TEMPERATURE ALLOYS) and material description INCOX750 were added to the CUT FLUID uniterm on the search card. In the third search, the machining operation requirement was added so that now the search was concentrated on a specific operation, on a specific material group, one specific material description and a uniterm requirement. From this type of search, the computer finds a precise match and prints that information. The number on the right is a unique number to that inquiry so the information may be reached quite rapidly.

# Output of Preliminary Technical Evaluated Data (Figure 8, page 11)

Figure 8 shows a printout of a specific search on the Preliminary Index File.

The Preliminary Index File contains six possible terms which can be searched in any combination. Preliminary Technical Evaluation is designed to identify, if available, 1) machining operation, 2) material hardness, 3) material condition, 4) heat treatment, 5) material group, 6) material description, and 7) tool material. With the exception of material condition, an engineer may set up a search strategy to interrogate the file on any combination of the other mix parameters. When a match is found, the source control code will be printed and the document pulled from the file. The Preliminary Index search shown in Figure 8 was made on an operation, DRILLING (085) of NICKEL BASE HIGH TEMPERATURE ALLOYS (material group 301).

### Output of Uniterm File Search (Figure 9, page 12)

The uniterm concept was designed so that technical text important to material removal operations could be stored and retrieved. Each document is assigned uniterms (keywords) which describe the nature of the text. These uniterms are punched into cards which are stored on disks.

A second card is generated indicating the machining operations and material groups associated with the given uniterm. Thus, a selective search can be made linking a particular uniterm to a specific machining operation and/or a material group.

A master list of the uniterms is contained in the code book so that search strategies may be set up. A search can be made on a single term or on two terms simultaneously. These terms may be in any position within the card set. The search shown in Figure 9 is for the Uniterm, TOOL GEONETRY (TOOL GEOM) for a given operation, DRILLING (085) of NICKEL BASE HIGH TEMPERATURE ALLOYS (material group 301). On the right hand side of the computer printout are the source control codes for the documents containing the desired information.

### Output of Final Technical Evaluated Data (Figure 10, page 13)

Figure 10 is the computer printout of decoded information which has been extracted from a document which received Final Technical Evaluation. Note that the information extracted by the Machining Data Analyst and coded on the forms in Figure 5, page 8, is now computer decoded and printed out. The first line of data describes the inquiry to the file. The second line is the AFNDC match of the inquiry search terms on the stored Index card. The succeeding lines are the retrieved Tool Geometry, Tool Material, Cutting Fluid, and Numerical Data associated with the particular machining situation described in the Index card. The headings are printed and the retrieved information in the data cell is printed in the proper location. Coded integers are matched against another file on the disk resulting in the alphameric equal being printed on the output sheet. It is anticipated that this type of printout will be used to answer some inquiries directly later this year.

# Cost Por Pioco in Faco Milling and End Mil'ing. (Figure 11, page 14)

Equations have been written and computer programs have been developed and made operational for five major conventional chip removal operations. The particular operations are turning, milling, drilling, reaming and tapping. The equations developed for calculating machining costs in face milling and end milling are shown in Figure 11. Available reprementative hard data were processed using these computer programs in connection with a data product which has been developed on this subject.

### Cost and Production Rate for Willing (Figure 12, page 15)

The use of data shown in Figure 10 leaves something to be desired for the manufacturing engineer. The printout gives a series of values to choose from but does not clearly indicate the economics involved. Since the major reason for having adequate data is to help minimize the cost, the logical question is which set of values will yield the minimum cost. A basic equation has been developed which considers the economics of each significant element of a machining operation and determines the production cost and production rate. The output gives the cost and production rate and the value of elements which make up the total cost. These values give the engineer an opportunity to analyze the elements so that he may decide where the major contributors to the total cost lie and then work on the critical areas.

### Computer Printout for Investigating Relationships between Machining Variables (Figure 13, page 16)

Experience has shown that there are some relationships in machining variables between the various types of machining operations and work materials, and they can be determined if careful analyses are made using substantial and reliable data. Manual analyses of this type are difficult and cumbersome. Determination of existing relationships will be very valuable for evaluation of new data and filling in gaps in accrued data. AFNDC will investigate these relationships. The computer resolves much of the difficulty and time required to make the subject analyses. The computer program has very recently been made operational, and a considerable amount of reliable data is available in punched card form for processing. One of the initial sets of data run through the computer is shown in Figure 13, page 16. This is an extensive and worthwhile program.

### Computer Printout of a Selective Search on Surface Integrity Bibliography File (Figure 14, page 17)

One of the subjects of highest interest to AFNDC inquirers as indicated in Figure 22, page 26, is Surface Integrity. Because of the large number of documents in AFNDC's storage on this broad subject and the wide variety of parameters within this subject, a computer program was developed and made operational to facilitate searching and listing specific bibliographic references from a separate disk file. The documents are coded according to operation, material description and scope of property topics. Searches may be made on up to ten codes within each parameter under any combination of m and m or m or m logic modes at either level. The search shows in Figure 14, page 17, is for the operation GRINDING (1), of material group TITANIUN ALLOYS (F), and property topics SURFACE CON-DITION (A) or SURFACE FINISH (B) or RESIDUAL STRESS (C). A similar file has been set up for another subject of high interest, Numerical Control.

### Computer Printout for Netal Removal Rates (Figure 15, page 18)

Considerable interest is being expressed through inquiries in metal removal rates for a wide variety of work materials. While the formulas used in calculating machining rates are not complex they are tedious and time consuming when performed using a slide rule or desk calculator. With a computer and the high amount of reliable machining data at AFNDC it is possible to make many valuable calculations in short order. These data are very useful in planning and setting up machining operations. A printout of machining data and calculations for turning, face milling and drilling are shown in Figure 15, page 18.

### Cost Study Analysis of IBM 1130 Computer (page 19)

As a result of a request made by the Office of the Director of Defense Research and E.gineering, Department of Defense, a cost study was conducted by AFMDC to determine the increase in effectiveness resulting from the installation of the IBM 1130 computing system. Prior to installation of the IBM 1130 computer the data processing equipment utilized was designated as an IBM Series 50 configuration. This consisted of a keypunch, verifier, sorter, collator and an electrical accounting machine.

A review was made of the various aspects of the AFNDC system and judgments made pertaining to those aspects which were affected, time-wise, by conversion from the IBM Series 50 configuration to the IBM 1130 computing system. It was judged the following aspects were affected: a) inquiry processing and b) calculations for production rates and machining costs.

The statistics shown on page 19 indicate that a savings of over \$13,000 for a one-year period was effected by installation of the IBM 1130 Computer. These important cost savings are the result of time saved by engineering and data processing personnel and are reinvested in the AFNDC operation. This is reflected in the continual and substantial rise in the ratio of output to input costs, thus providing more extensive services for the expended funds.

### Inquiry Processing Flow Chart (Figure 16, page 20) Typical Inquiry Input and Response (Figure 17, page 21)

Responses to inquiries are the most important of the services provided by AFNDC. Strong emphasis is placed on providing specific and detailed answers to technical inquiries which are transmitted by letter, telegram, telephone or by direct visitation to the Center. A high percentage of the inquiries is made via telephone, some because of the urgency of information requirements and other due to the necessity of discussing technical details with the engineering personnel. When required, inquirers are contacted to clarify their specific meeds. As indicated in Figure 16, page 20, engineering personnel impose judgments on the inquiries and establish the search strategies. Data Processing personnel perform the computer search functions and provide the printouts to the engineers. The engineers again impose engineering judgment in the selection and preparation of the information to be transmitted to the inquirer.

An inquiry form and the AFNDC response are shown in Figure 17, page 21. Note the codes within the blocks on the form which are keypunched and then stored on the computer inquiry rile.

#### Analysis of Inquiries by State (Figure 18, page 22)

The analysis of inquiries by state, Figure 18, page 22, provides some interesting and informative statistics. AFMDC has received inquiries from 42 states and the District of Columbia. Over the period October i, 1964, through September 30, 1968, there have been 3,315 inquiries received and processed by AFMDC. These inquiries have originated from 1,138 different organizations and 1,928 individuals within these organizations. It is interesting to note that 80% of the total inquiries and 78% of the company and individual inquiries were from 10 highly industrial states, as would be expected. The specific inquiry statistics for these 10 states are shown in Figure 18, page 22.

#### Summary of Specific Inquiries by Type of Inquiry (Figure 19, page 23)

The statistics shown in Figure 19 point out several important factors. There has been a constant and substantial rate of growth in the number of inquiries received and processed at AFMDC. The average was 37 per month during the first 16-month period of the Centers operation. This average increased to 61 per month for the ensuing year and rose to an average of 84 per month the next 12-month period. During the last 8month period the average increased to 123 per month. This growth has largely been the result of multiple inquiries from prior users, new contacts from companies already on the inquiry file and contacts from companies who have not previously submitted inquiries to AFMDC. Many of the new contacts can be attributed to "word of mouth" communication of AFMDC inquiries with persons who are in the field of machining.

Another factor responsible for this growth has been the AFMDC plant visitation program and participation in technical conferences.

In addition to providing information on the varied services available at AFMDC, Figure 19 indicates trends in the nature of inquiries from October 1964 to the present. In particular, it has been noted that inquiries are becoming more specific and are concerned with more complex and difficult machining situations. The relative increase in inquiry types 1, 2, 3, 15 and 16 bears out this conclusion. The inquirer profile has also been relatively changing. A higher percentage of inquiries are being received at AFMDC from lower echelon personnel such as manufacturing or tool engineers, industrial engineers and time standards personnel, process engineers, tool designers, shop supervisors and foremen, planners, estimators, etc. This indicates that AFMDC is achieving its objective of reaching and setting up a direct line of communication with not only management, but also with an increasing number of persons directly responsible for application of machining data and information available from AFMDC.

### <u>General Analysis of Inquiries and Analysis of Inquiries by</u> <u>Material Group (Figure 20, page 24)</u>

The chart, General Analysis of Inquiries, provides perspective of the relative complexity of inquiries, processed during the past 2-2/3 years. Of the inquiries related to given machining operations and material groups, over 75% were concerned with more than a single machining situation (one operation on one material group) for the past 2-2/3 years period. Over one-third of the inquiries were of the uniterm (keyword) type.

The Analysis of Inquiries by Material Group helps to provide AFMDC with perspective of user needs, input requirements, and establishes priority and extent of detailed technical evaluation of the input. An analysis of the past 2-2/3 years' inquiries was made categorizing the materials involved by 15 material groups. Figure 20, page 24, shows there has been a high level of interest for machining data on high temperature alloys, titanium alloys and refractory alloys. A high total of 1,336 requests was made for plain carbon and low alloy steels and ultra-high strength tool steels covering the 2-2/3 year period. Information for stainless steels was in high demand as evidenced in the 685 requests. The 120 requests, during the last 8-month period, for machining information on nonmetallics represented a significant increase over the 188 requests processed the previous two years.

### Analysis of Inquiries by Type of Machining Operation (Figure 21, page 25)

Added perspective of user needs and in turn AFMDC input requirements is obtained by analyses such as shown in Figure 21. For conventional chip removal types of operations the statistics indicate that emphasis on input and detailed evaluation should be on turning, face milling, end milling, drilling, reaming, and tapping. The most significant relative increase in interest by type of machining operation within the 2-2/3 years has been in broaching and in band sawing. For conventional grinding, the highest interest is shown in surface and cylindrical grinding operations. The 250 requests for information on the alternate machining methods during the past 8-months represents a substantial increase over the 379 for the previous two years. These statistics are indicative of the increasing interests in these machining methods and alert AFMDC to an important area of its users' needs.

#### Analysis of Uniterm Type Inquiries (Figure 22, page 26)

A high percentage of the inquiries received at AFMDC are of the uniterm (keyword) type. This machining information is of the technical text type. The 17 subjects of highest interest for this type of machining information are shown in Figure 22, page 26. Very high interest has been expressed for information on surface integrity, numerical control, cutting fluids, surface finish and distortion. Very significant increased interest has developed during the 2-2/3 year period for information concerning surface integrity and surface finish.

### Summary of Specific Inquiries by SIC Number (Figure 23, pages 27-30)

An analysis of inquiries by type of industry utilizing the services of AFMDC is shown in Figure 23. The chart presents the inquiries by SIC Code, a number which references listings in the Standard Industrial Classification Manual, Executive Office of the President, Bureau of the Budget, 1967. While some SIC descriptions may appear completely commercial, an analysis of specific inquiries will indicate a close relationship to DoD requirements, as shown in Figure 24, page 31.

SIC Major Group No. 37, Transportation Equipment, is the predominant group with respect to utilizing AFMDC services. This group encompasses three significant industry users of AFMDC, namely: Aircraft and Missiles; Aircraft Engines and Engine Parts and Missile Engines; and Aircraft Parts and Auxiliary Equipment and Missile Parts. Other SIC Major Groups who provided relatively high quantities of inquiries to AFMDC during the past year are: 91 - Federal Government; 33 - Primary Metal Industries; 34 - Fabricated Metal Products Except Ordnance, Machinery and Transportation Equipment; 35 - Machinery, Except Electrical; 36 -Electrical Machinery Equipment and Supplies; 73 - Miscellaneous Business Services; 82 - Educational Services.

### Government Agencies and Services Supported Directly and Indirectly by AFMDC Inquiries (Figure 24, page 31)

The data shown in this chart are somewhat difficult to compile but by careful analysis of particular inquiries and by an analysis of the prime objectives of principal contractors at various plant locations it has been possible to show that 935 of the 982 requests made to the Center were stimulated by Air Force, AEC, U.S. Navy, NASA, and U.S. Army projects.

### <u>Companies and Agencies Submitting Inquiries to AFMDC</u> (<u>Figure 25, pages 32-49)</u> <u>Summary of Specific Inquiries by Companies Making</u> Five of More Requests (Figure 26, page 41)

Figure 25 presents a total of 1,138 individual companies and divisions which have been inquirers of AFMDC, an increase of 228 organizations

during the last 8-month period. These are listed on pages 39 and 40 of Figure 25. This is a comprehensive list. Figure 26 includes a summary of the 129 organizations (including the divisions) making five or more requests. This group has provided 2,149 of the 3,315 inquiries processed by AFMDC to date. This list reflects high interest in AFMDC information on the part of aerospace industry, as represented by companies such as Aerojet-General Corporation, the Boeing Company, Curtiss-Wright Corporation, General Dynamics Corporation, General Electric Company, Grumman Aircraft Engineering Corporation, Lockheed Aircraft Corporation, Martin Company, McDonnell Douglas Corporation, TRW Inc., and in fact Wright-Patter son Air Force Base itself.

## Photograph of AFMDC Data Products (Figure 27, page 42) Photograph of AFMDC Titanium Booklet (Figure 28, page 43) Typical Formats for Data Presentations (Figure 29, page 44)

Planned data products have proven to be important output to AFMDC Users. In addition to providing valuable and timely data, these products serve as a direct line of communication with the Users of the Center. Excellent response has been received for the 13 data products prepared and issued to date. Some of these products are shown in the photo in Figure 27, and the formats are displayed in Figures 28 and 29. Careful thought was given to the preparations of the products to present the machining recommendations in complete but concise form in order to make easy and effective use of them.

#### Description and Distribution of AFMDC Data Products (Figure 30, page 45)

There were two primary means used for publicizing the data products. AFMDC prepared three separate data product announcements and sent them to the User File which now consists of 4026 individual names. The policy followed was to provide one free copy to Users who submitted a request and then charge for additional copies. The set limit of making 1000 free copies available proved to be practical inasmuch as all requests from the User File were able to be filled. A second means used for reaching persons who would have an interest in the data products was accomplished by sending copies of these documents to about 60 editors of technical periodicals. Each of these were encouraged to publish announcements of the products and print typical data sheets. This not only stimulat@d interest in the data products, but also in the Center's services in general. Numerous inquiries were submitted to the Center each time a periodical published the information provided by AFMDC.

The fine response for data products is indicated in Figure 30, page 45. A total of 16,047 copies were distributed, most of which were to the User File and some as direct response to inquiries. The 2833 copies sold are further evidence of the high interest and use of the data products.

#### Data Acquisition Plant Visit Program (page 46)

During the previous contract period 46 plants were visited for the purpose of acquiring machining data from them on a regular basis. Emphasis was placed on visiting aerospace firms. Visits to all plants were satisfactory and there was general interest in this project. Nearly all the plants have taken steps to make necessary arrangements for transmitting data. Over 300 reports of high data yield have already been received from these plants. Follow up is being made in the form of correspondence and periodic visits.

During all visits detailed information was provided concerning AFMDC's organization and how it functions. Effort was made to reach directly or through responsible supervisory personnel the lower echelon manufacturing and manufacturing engineering people who need data for immediate application to machining of hardware. The effect of this approach was noted in the significant increase in inquiries received from most of the companies visited.

## <u>Code Sheet for Project Time Cards (Figure 31, pages 47 and 48)</u> <u>AFNDC Daily Time Slip (Figure 32, page 49)</u> <u>Computer Printout of AFNDC Project Time Cards</u> <u>(Figure 33, page 50)</u>

The code sheet provides the basic approach to AFMDC System Costing. Approximately 100 individual time codes are in current use. It has been simple for individuals to maintain time records because relatively few time codes are used by any one person during a given day and the use of the same codes is repeated from day to day. Figure 32, page 49, shows a Daily Time Slip which indicates the manner in which individuals record their time.

The information from these time slips is punched into cards and the information is stored in the IBM 1130 computer. Figure 33, page 50, is a computer printout of AFNDC project time cards.

Figures 34 and 35, shown on pages 51 and 52, reflect the use made of project time card data. These records are available for making even more detailed analyses when required. For example, it would be possible to analyze the cost for a particular project, such as a special report requested by DoD.

### AFMDC OPERATING COSTS (Figure 34, page 51) AFMDC INPUT AND OUTPUT SUMMARY (Figure 35, page 52)

Figure 34, page 51, shows the operating costs for the past eight months broken down into five major groups: 1) Input, 2) Output. 3) General Dissemination, 4) Reports and 5) Systems Analysis, Modification and Control. A summary of these costs follows:

#### SUMMARY OF AFMDC OPERATING COSTS FEBRUARY 1, 1968 - SEPTEMBER 30, 1968 Major Group Cost % of Total Cost Input 64,935.33 36.3 Output 79,271.53 44.3 General Dissemination 3,199.41 1.8 Reports 18.440.32 10.3 Systems Analysis. Modification and Control 13.308.61 7.3

Total Operating Costs \$179,155.20

It is significant to note that the output costs represent 44.3% of the total operating costs. This is considered to be a relatively high figure for an information analysis center.

The chart in Figure 35, page 52, presents various summaries of AFMDC input and output. As of September 30, 1968, there were 15,941 evaluated documents in AFMDC's storage. The important information from these documents has been extracted, coded, and punched into 116,083 cards, and stored on the IBM 1130 Computer. Unit costs for preparation of 11 data products and for processing of inquiries are cited in Figure 35, page 52.

#### Future Planning (pages 53 and 54)

One of the major goals for the next year is to continue the effort to identify and make direct contacts with personnel in all echelons who can utilize machining information available from the Center. The methods used to accomplish this are outlined under Future Planning, pages 53 and 54. Emphasis will be given to contractors, subcontractors and subsub-contractors producing components for advanced aerospace vehicles. The approaches to be taken will undoubtedly stimulate inquiry activity and thereby continue the upward trend in inquiries being received by AFMDC. It is expected that the level of inquiries will reach a monthly average of about 160 per month by October 1969 (the average for the past eight months is 123). The program of plant visitation will be continued with increased emphasis on making the industrial user aware of the information at AFMDC which is available to him.

A considerable number of inquiries have been received from active State Technical Services Programs in California, Connecticut, Georgia, Illinois, Indiana, Iowa, Michigan, Ohio, Tennessee and West Virginia. In addition, AFMDC has directly participated in conferences and meetings conducted by the states of Illinois, Indiana and Michigan. Contacts will be made with other states which have such programs in operation or are in the process of setting up such programs. Fine coordination has been effected with the National Referral Center as well as various information centers. Communication with these centers will be maintained.

AFMDC was chosen to participate in a Special Merit Project with the State of Vermont, along with another DoD Information Analysis Center, namely, PLASTEC. Included also in this cooperative effort is the Vermont Office of Technical Services, and the University of Vermont Technical Information Center, Office of State Technical Services.

The purpose of this proposed program is to evaluate for one year, on an experimental basis, the feasibility of referring Vermont industries and business to selected Federal Information Analysis Centers for answers to their technical questions.

The overall objectives are: 1) to establish access to appropriate information analysis centers through the University of Vermont Technical Information. Center and 2) to test the information transfer relationship between individual companies (requesting information), information analysis centers, and the Technical Information Center (acting as a coupler).

The results of this pilot project will be of interest to states similar to Vermont in size and technical problems. The results will also be of interest to other information analysis centers who might have a potential cooperative role in similar information services.

The office of State Technical Services, Washington, D.C. is setting up a program in the State of New York, similar to the one in Vermont, and AFMDC will be the only information center in that study.

The Foreign Technology Division (FTD), Wright-Patterson Air Force Base, is interested in various information analysis centers make more extensive use of their foreign literature holdings. Also they feel that these centers could materially assist in the dissemination of this information to the centers' users. AFMDC plans to establish closer coordination with FTD and assist them in their objectives.

There has been substantial growth in vocational schools, as well as vocational courses offered by educational institutions. Many of these include training of students in machining who thereby become an important segment of the machining community. AFMDC will expand its services to these schools through the State Technical Services Programs and by direct contact.

Efforts on data products will be directed toward preparation of the four products listed under Future Planning since information seems to be lacking or widely scattered on these subjects.

Additional data products will be prepared as good timely information is accrued by AFNDC.

Experience has shown that there are some relationships in machining variables between the various types of machining operations and work materials, and they can be determined if careful analyses are made using substantial and reliable data. Manual analyses of this type are difficult and cumbersome. Determination of existing relationships would be very valuable for evaluation of new data and filling in gaps in accrued data. AFMDC is investigating these relationships. The computer resolves much of the difficulty and time required to make the subject analyses.

Preliminary discussions have been held with one aerospace firm concerning an experimental program of a computer data-link between the company and AFMDC. In this experimental program it is planned that mechanisms would be developed that would allow a firm to have direct communication with the Center's computer. This communication would make it possible for the user to directly submit and obtain an immediate response. The direct link with the user would facilitate machining information formats which would be compatible between the Center and the major users. A part of the planned program is to work out procedures whereby an organization could store its important machining data at AFNDC for its own rapid retrieval and for utilization by AFNDC for serving industry.

#### Potential for AFMDC Services to Industry (Figure 36, page 56)

The statistics shown in Figure 36 indicate that five major SIC Groups provide a vast potential for utilization of AFNDC services and they have been the primary groups submitting inquiries to AFNDC. The left-hand side of the chart, Figure 36, provides a statistical summary of metalworking plants consisting of a partial SIC list taken from Dun & Bradstreet Metalworking Directory, 1967-68. The right-hand side of the chart summarizes AFMDC inquiries for the same SIC classifications.

As would be expected, the largest number of inquiries have been received from Major Group 37, Transportation Equipment. Four of the SIC Industrial Classifications within this group are: 3721 - Aircraft and Nissiles; 3722 - Aircraft Engines and Parts; 3723 - Aircraft Propellers and Propeller Parts; and 3729 - Aircraft Parts and Auxiliary Equipment. A second significant source of inquiries is Najor Group 35, Machinery Except Electrical. Some of the important industries included in this group are Nachine Tools-Netal Cutting Types, Machine Tool Accessories and Neasuring Devices and Machine Shops - Jobbing and Repairing. The statistics from Dun & Bradstreet's Metalworking Directory display a vast economic environment for AFMDC operations. Metalworking is the prime activity for five major groups alone, comprised of 9,431 companies (20 or more employees), employing 6,900,557 individuals. There are 20,063 other companies (20 or more employees), for which metalworking is a secondary activity. Dun & Bradstreet reports that 21,364 of the 38,383 listings in its Netalworking Directory perform machining operations. Although no specific statistics can be quoted, there is no doubt that there is even a larger number of firms (employing less than 20 individuals), whose major activity is machining. Considering that to date there has been a total of 910 organizations which have submitted inquiries to AFNDC speaks for itself regarding the potential increase in services that is possible to the machining industry.

A- 19

#### COST SAVINGS RESULTING FROM AFMDC OPERATION (Figure 37, page 57)

The base used for estimating cost savings resulting from AFMDC's operation is a <u>machining situation</u> which is defined as a specific material removal operation being used on a specific material with definite chemical, physical or mechanical properties. There are many specific parameters that make a machining situation complex. The parameters include: machining operation, work material and its metallurgical and physical characteristics such as, microstructure, hardness, strength, modulus of the elasticity, etc., the part configuration, dimensional and surface finish tolerances, the machine tool being utilized, tool material, tool geometry, cutting fluid, cutting speed, feed and tool life.

This inherent complexity of a machining situation naturally reflects itself in a high cost required to develop the proper combination of parameters needed to effectively perform a given machining operation.

Several members of the AFMDC staff have had direct and extensive experience in the development and application of machining data, particularly in aerospace plants. A major part of the experience has been in increasing productivity of existing machining operations, establishing effective machining parameters for new production operations and solving problems being encountered on critical operations.

It has been the experience of the staff members of AFMDC that the selection of the proper combination of machining parameters can result in major cost savings. The most common method practiced in arriving at a workable set of conditions is that of "hit or miss". This is a costly method and manifests itself in high expenditure of time, broken cutting tools, costly scrapped parts, and schedule delays. One alternative is the systematic generation of the required machinability data in a machinability laboratory or on a production machine. This method is effective but also time consuming and costly. Ofttimes, production schedules do not permit the required time.

The concensus of these AFNDC staff members is that the dollar value of a set of recommended parameters for one machining situation given in response to an inquiry is very conservatively \$800.00, and usually runs into thousands of dollars. Thus, the \$800.00 value assigned in the cost analysis for a set of evaluated parameters applicable to a specific machining situation is indeed ultra conservative. This is particularly true in the case of a specific inquiry for which there is almost invariably an immediate need for reliable data.

For the purposes of this report a value of \$300.00 was assigned for the cost saving resulting from the application of one set of data utilized from an AFMDC data product. Each data product issued from the Center was in response to an AFMDC data product announcement, or was wold. A relative few wore used in response to an inquiry in those cases where the data product was directly applicable. It is reasonable to assume that each individual who received an AFMDC data product had a need for some portion of the published data. Each of the data products contain hundreds, and in some cases thousands, of recommendations for machining situations. In the cost analysis presented in this report it has been assumed that only the one individual she received the data product used it. Further, it was assumed that he applied only five machining mituations from the product. These assumptions are most conservative.

A- 20

Very conservatively it has been estimated that a total of \$37,800,000.00 cost savings to AFMDC users has resulted from the operation in four years. These savings are attributed to the Center's response to specific inquiries and its data products. Figure 37, page 57, presents the pertinent statistics used to make the aforementioned estimated cost savings. Considering the total funds made available to AFMDC during this 4-year period, for each dollar expended there was a return of \$47.00 in effected cost savings. If the services provided by AFMDC were not available, the cost to the Government and industry would by far exceed the \$37,800,000.00 figure. This conclusion was substantiated by examples provided by industry of the value of the Centers' services and cited in an AFMDC report, 'Cost Savings Resulting From The Operation Of The Air Force Machinability Data Center', July 29, 1968.

( _ _

Considerable value must also be placed on what timely and reliable machining information has on eliminating or minimizing production delays. It is not possible to assess dollar values for such cases, but significant emphasis should be placed on the impact of production delays. Another value of reliable machining data that is extremely difficult to place in terms of dollars is its importance on the quality and integrity of machined parts. The majority of companies involved in machining do not have proper facilities or capability to develop good reliable machining data. Those that generate this data do so at a very high cost, very often at the expense of the Government.

Unclassified	
Security Classification	
DOCU (Security classification of title, body of ebstra	IMENT CONTROL DATA · R&D ct and indexing annotation must be entered when the everall report is classified)
. ORIGINATING ACTIVITY (Corporate author)	20. REPORT SECURITY CLASSIFICATIO
Metcut Research Associates	Inc. Unclassified
Cincinnati, Ohio 45209	N/A
REPORT TITLE	
Fourth Annual Report of the	Air Force Machinability Data Center
BEPORT COVERING DEFINITION OF THE PROPERTY OF	ve dates) uarv 1. 1968 thru September 30. 1968
. AUTHOR(S) (Last name, first name, initial)	
Maranchik, Jr., John	
REPORT DATE	74. TOTAL NO. OF PAGES 75. NO. OF REFS
<u>October 1968</u>	85 4 (See Preface)
JA. CONTRACT OR BRANT NO. Contract AP 33(815)-5989	SP. GRIGINATOR'S REPORT HUMBERS)
A PROJECT NO.	AFNDC 68-6
700-8	
¢.	Sb. OTHER REPORT HO(2) (Any other sumbers that may be asel this report)
•	
18. AVAILABILITY/LIMITATION NOTICES Qu this report from DDC. This docu transmittal to foreign governme with prior approval of the A 10. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES	alified requesters may obtain copies of ment is subject to export controls & each nts or foreign nationals may be made only ir Force Materials Laboratory (MATF), 12. SPONSORING MULTARY ACTIVITY Manufacturing Technology Division Air Force Materials Laboratory Wright-Patterson Air Force Base, Ohio nnual Report of the Air Force Machinability Da
18. AVAILABILITY/LIMITATION NOTICES Qu this report from DDC. This docu transmittal to foreign governme with prior approval of the A 11. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 13. ABSTRACT This is the Fourth An Center covering period tract AF 33(615)-5263 documents were proces rently, there are 15,1 AFNDC files. Nine hun answered for 439 diff 105 different SIC cat an increase of 465 over vious year. The average cost of	alified requesters may obtain copies of ment is subject to export controls & each nts or foreign nationals may be made only ir Force Naterials Laboratory (NATF). 12. SPONSORING MULTARY ACTIVITY Manufacturing Technology Division Air Force Naterials Laboratory Wright-Patterson Air Force Base, Ohio annual Report of the Air Force Nachinability Da d February 1, 1968 through September 30, 1968 (Co 2). Two thousand eight hundred and forty (2,84 sed from which 13,833 cards were key punched. Cu 041 evaluated documents and 116,083 punched cards dred and eighty two (982) specific inquiries we ferent companies, representing 596 individuals egories. The average of 123 inquiries per month r the average of 84 per month processed in the pr
18. AVAILABILITY/LIMITATION NOTICES Qu this report from DDC. This docu transmittal to foreign governme with prior approval of the A 11. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 13. ABSTRACT This is the Fourth An Center covering period tract AF 33(615)-5263 documents were proces rently, there are 15,1 AFNDC files. Nine hun answered for 439 diff 105 different SIC cat an increase of 465 over vious year. The average cost of Two data products we	alified requesters may obtain copies of ment is subject to export controls & each nts or foreign nationals may be made only ir Force Naterials Laboratory (NATF). 12. SPONSORING MULTARY ACTIVITY Manufacturing Technology Division Air Force Naterials Laboratory Wright-Patterson Air Force Base, Ohio nnual Report of the Air Force Nachinability Da i February 1, 1968 through September 30, 1968 (Co 2). Two thousand eight hundred and forty (2,84 sed from which 13,833 cards were key punched. Cu 041 evaluated documents and 116,083 punched cards dred and eighty two (982) specific inquiries we ferent companies, representing 596 individuals egories. The average of 123 inquiries per month r the average of 84 per month processed in the pr inquiries equaled \$58.58 per inquiry. re completed and made available to the Center
18. AVAILABILITY/LIMITATION NOTICES Qu this report from DDC. This docu transmittal to foreign governme with prior approval of the A 11. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 13. ABSTRACT This is the Fourth An Center covering period tract AF 33(615)-5263 documents were proces rently, there are 15,1 AFNDC files. Nine hun answered for 439 diff 105 different SIC cat an increase of 465 over vious year. The average cost of Two data products we users.	alified requesters may obtain copies of ment is subject to export controls & each nts or foreign nationals may be made only ir Force Naterials Laboratory (NATF), 12. SPONSORING MULTARY ACTIVITY Nanufacturing Technology Division Air Force Naterials Laboratory Wright-Patterson Air Force Base, Ohio Air Force Naterials Laboratory Wright-Patterson Air Force Base, Ohio nual Report of the Air Force Machinability Da i February 1, 1968 through September 30, 1968 (Co 2). Two thousand eight hundred and forty (2,84 sed from which 13,833 cards were key punched. Cu 041 evaluated documents and 116,083 punched cards dred and eighty two (982) specific inquiries we ferent companies, representing 596 individuals egories. The average of 123 inquiries per month r the average of 84 per month processed in the pu inquiries equaled \$58.58 per inquiry. re completed and made available to the Center
18. AVAILABILITY/LIMITATION NOTICES Qu this report from DDC. This docu transmittal to foreign governme with prior approval of the A 11. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 13. ABSTRACT This is the Fourth An Center covering period tract AF 33(615)-5263 documents were proces rently, there are 15,6 AFMDC files. Nine hun answered for 439 diff 105 different SIC cat an increase of 465 over vious year. The average cost of Two data products we users. The data acquisition 1966, 46 Visitations	alified requesters may obtain copies of ment is subject to export controls & each nts or foreign nationals may be made only ir Force Materials Laboratory (MATF).
18. AVAILABILITY/LIMITATION NOTICES Qu this report from DDC. This docu transmittal to foreign governme with prior approval of the A 11. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 13. ABSTRACT This is the Fourth An Center covering period tract AF 33(615)-526 documents were proces rently, there are 15,0 AFMDC files. Nine hun answered for 439 diff 105 different SIC cats an increase of 46% over vious year. The average cost of Two data products we users. The data acquisition 1966, 46 Visitations Computer programs hav and retrieval of all dition, a computer pr relationships will be ve in gaps in accrued of	alified requesters may obtain copies of ment is subject to export controls & each nts or foreign nationals may be made only ir Force Materials Laboratory (MATF).
18. AVAILABILITY/LIMITATION NOTICES Que this report from DDC. This docu transmittal to foreign governme with prior approval of the A 11. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 13. ANSTRACT This is the Fourth An Center covering period tract AF 33(615)-526 documents were proces rently, there are 15,0 AFMDC files. Nine hun answered for 439 diff 105 different SIC cat an increase of 46% over vious year. The average cost of Two data products we users. The data acquisition 1966, 46 Visitations Computer programs hav and retrieval of all dition, a computer pr relationships will be ve in gaps in accrued of SUC 1000000000000000000000000000000000000	alified requesters may obtain copies of ment is subject to export controls & each nts or foreign nationals may be made only ir Force Naterials Laboratory (MATF). 12. SPONSONING MULTARY ACTIVITY Nanufacturing Technology Division Air Force Materials Laboratory Wright-Patterson Air Force Base, Ohio nnual Report of the Air Force Machinability Da d February 1, 1968 through September 30, 1968 (Co 2). Two thousand eight hundred and forty (2,84 med from which 13,833 cards were key punched. Cu 041 evaluated documents and 116,083 punched cards dred and eighty two (982) specific inquiries we ferent companies, representing 596 individuals egories. The average of 123 inquiries per month r the average of 84 per month processed in the pu inquiries equaled \$58.58 per inquiry. re completed and made available to the Center plant visit program was continued and mince la have been made, primarily to aerospace firms. e been developed and made operational for stora the information files in use by the Center. In m ogram has been made operational for investigati machining variables. Determination of existing r ory valuable for evaluation of new data and filli data. <u>Unclassified</u>

¥

•

•

Unclassified Security Classification LINK C LINK A LINK B 14 KEY WORDS W T ROLE WT ROLE ŴŤ ROLE Information Center Machining Management Data Center Information Center Costs Information Center Economics **Computer Data Processing** Data Products INSTRUCTIONS 1. ORIGINATING ACTIVITY: Enter the same and address imposed by security classification, using standard statements of the contractor, subcontractor, grantee, Department of Desuch as fense activity or other organization (corporate author) issuing (1) "Qualified requesters may obtain copies of this report from DDC." the report. 26. REPORT SECURITY CLASSIFICATION: Enter the over-(2) "Foreign announcement and dissemination of this all security classification of the report. Indicate whether "Restricted Data" is included. Marking is to be in accordreport by DDC is not authorized." (3) "U. S. Government agencies may obtain copies of ance with appropriate security regulations. this report directly from DDC. Other qualified DDC 28. GROUP: Automatic downgrading is specified in DoD Diusers shall request through rective 5200. 10 and Armed Forces Industrial Manual. Enter the group number. Also, when applicable, show that optional markings have been used for Group 3 and Group 4 as author-(4) "U. S. military agencies may obtain copies of this report directly from DDC. Other qualified users ized. shall request through 3. REPORT TITLE: Enter the complete report title in all Titles in all cases should be unclassified. capital letters. .. If a meaningful title cannot be selected without classifica-(5) "All distribution of this report is controlled. Qualtion, show title classification in all capitals in parenthesis ified DDC users shall request through immediately following the title. 4. DESCRIPTIVE NOTES: If appropriate, enter the type of report, e.g., interim, progress, summary, annual, or final. Give the inclusive dates when a specific reporting period is If the report has been furnished to the Office of Technical Services, Department of Commerce, for sale to the public, indicovered. cate this fact and enter the price, if known. S. AUTHOR(S): Enter the name(s) of author(s) as shown on or in the report. Enter last name, first name, middle initial. If military, show rank and brench of service. The name of the principal withor is an absolute minimum requirement. IL SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES: Use for additional explanatory notes 12. SPONSORING MILITARY ACTIVITY: Enter the name of the departmental project office or laboratory sponsoring (pay-6. REPORT DATE. Enter the date of the report as day. ing for) the research and development. Include address wonth, year; or month, year. If more than one date appears 13. ABSTRACT: Enter an abstract giving a brief and factual in the report, use date of publication. summary of the document indicative of the report, even though it may also appear elsewhere in the body of the technical re-7a. TOTAL NUMBER OF PAGES. The total page count should follow normal pagination procedures, L.s., enter the port. If additional space is required, a continuation sheet shall number of pages containing information. be attached. 74. NUMBLER OF REFERENCES. Enter the total number of It is highly desirable that the abstract of "lausified reports be unclassified. Each paragraph of the abstruct shall end with references cited in the report. an indication of the military security classification of the in-84. CONTRACT OR GRANT NUMBER: If appropriate, enter the applicable number of the contract or grant under which formation in the paragraph, represented as (TS), (S), (C), or (U). the report was written. There is no limitation on the length of the abstract. How-ever, the suggested length is from 150 to 225 words. 84, 8:, 8 8d. FROJECT NUMBER: Entor the appropriate military department identification, such as project number, subproject number, system numbers, task number, etc. 14. KEY WORDS: Key words are technically meaningful terms or short pleases that characterize a report and way be used as ORIGINATOR'S REPORT NUMBER(S): Enter the offi-9. idden entries for cataloging the report. Key words must be cial report number by which the document will be identified and controlled by the originating activity. This number must cial report nu selected so that no security classification is required. Identifiers, such as equipment model designation, trade name, military project code name, geographic location, may be used as key words but will be followed by an indication of technical con-text. The analygment of links, rules, and weights in optional. be unique to this report. 96. OTHER REPORT NUMBER(S): If the report has been saugnes any other repert numbers forther by the originatur or by the aponio), also ofter this number(s). IG. AVAILABILITY/LIMITATION NOTICES: Enter any lim itations on further disseminition of the report, other than those Unclassified

Security Classification